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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD -LOOKING INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, references to "Johixmmtrols," the "Company,
to Johnson Controls, Inc. and its consolidatediglidrses.

we," "our" and "us" inis Annual Report on Form 1R-refer

The Company has made statements in this documantatie forwardeoking and, therefore, are subject to risks andeuminties. Al
statements in this document other than statemértistorical fact are statements that are, or ciadddeemed "forwartboking statement:
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995. In this document, statetsargarding future financial positic
sales, costs, earnings, cash flows, other measd@inesults of operations, capital expenditures @ptdevels and plans, objectives, outlc
targets, guidance or goals are forwdrdking statements. Words such as "may,” "will Xgect," "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "bel\
"should," "forecast,” "project” or "plan” or terntd similar meaning are also generally intended dentify forwardlooking statement
Johnson Controls cautions that these statementsuaject to numerous important risks, uncertaingssumptions and other factors, son
which are beyond Johnson Controls' control, thaldc@ause Johnson Controls' actual results to rdiffaterially from those expressec
implied by such forwardeoking statements. A detailed discussion of riskscluded in the section entitled "Risk Factofifer to Part
Item IA, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K). Thanfvardiooking statements included in this document atlg orade as of the date of t
document, unless otherwise specified, and Johnsmtr@ls assumes no obligation, and disclaims ardigation, to update forwartboking

statements to reflect events or circumstances doguafter the date of this document.

PART |

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

General

Johnson Controls is a global diversified technolagd industrial leader serving customers in moams th50 countries. The Company cre
quality products, services and solutions to optanénergy and operational efficiencies of buildinlggdacid automotive batteries &
advanced batteries for hybrid and electric vehj@es seating and interior systems for automaobiles.

Johnson Controls was originally incorporated in skete of Wisconsin in 1885 as Johnson ElectriwiSerCompany to manufacture, ins
and service automatic temperature regulation sysfembuildings. The Company was renamed to Joh@mirols, Inc. in 1974. In 1978, 1
Company acquired Globe-Union, Inc., a Wiscorts@#ised manufacturer of automotive batteries for ktbeh replacement and origil
equipment markets. The Company entered the auteenséiating industry in 1985 with the acquisitionMithiganbased Hoover Univers
Inc. In 2005, the Company acquired York Internatio@ global supplier of heating, ventilating, edrditioning and refrigeration equipm
and services. On June 16, 2014, the Company adglireDistribution Technologies, Inc. (ADT), one tife largest independent provider
air distribution and ventilation products in NoAmerica.

The Building Efficiency business is a global marestder in designing, producing, marketing andailisy integrated heating, ventilating ¢
air conditioning (HVAC) systems, building managemegstems, controls, security and mechanical egeigmin addition, the Buildir
Efficiency business provides technical servicegrgyn management consulting and operations of entiak estate portfolios for the non-
residential buildings market. The Company also jgkes residential air conditioning and heating syst@nd industrial refrigeration products.

The Automotive Experience business is one of thed\® largest automotive suppliers, providing innovatseating and interior syste
through our design and engineering expertise. Tormganys technologies extend into virtually every aredhef interior including seatin
door systems, floor consoles, instrument panelscankpits. Customers include most of the world’'ganautomakers.

The Power Solutions business is a leading glohaplser of leadacid automotive batteries for virtually every tygfepassenger car, light tru
and utility vehicle. The Company serves both autiimooriginal equipment manufacturers (OEMs) ané theneral vehicle batte
aftermarket. The Company also supplies advancddrigaechnologies to power certain Start-Stop Jebichybrid and electric vehicles.

Financial Information About Business Segments

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280, "Segtrieeporting,” establishes the standards for r@mpinformation about segments
financial statements. In applying the criteria &ath in ASC 280, the Company has determined th&ias seven reportable segments
financial reporting purposes. The Company’s seegotable segments are presented in the contetd thfree primary businesse8uilding
Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Power Solasio




Refer to Note 19, "Segment Information," of theasoto consolidated financial statements for finalnaformation about business segments.

For the purpose of the following discussion of thempanys businesses, the four Building Efficiency repdeakegments and the t
Automotive Experience reportable segments are ptedetogether due to their similar customers amdsimilar nature of their produc
production processes and distribution channels.

Products/Systems and Services
Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency is a global leader in delivegiintegrated control systems, mechanical equipnpeatiucts, services and solutions desig
to improve the comfort, safety and energy efficien€ nonsesidential buildings and residential propertieshwiperations in 56 countrit
Revenues come from facilities management, techsealices, and the replacement and upgrade of He@@rols and mechanical equipm
in the existing buildings market, where the Comparlgrge base of current customers leads to repesindss, as well as with install
controls and equipment during the constructiones uildings. Customer relationships often spairebuilding lifecycles.

Building Efficiency sells its control systems, maoictal equipment and services primarily throughQoenpanys extensive global network
sales and service offices. Some building contmisducts and mechanical systems are sold to disbrib of aireonditioning, refrigeration ai
commercial heating systems throughout the worldisical 2014 , approximately 45% of Building Efficicy’s sales are derived from HV/
products and installed control systems for consitacand retrofit markets, including 15% of totadles related to new commer:
construction. Approximately 55% of its sales ircéis2014 originated from its service offeringsfibtal 2014, Building Efficiency accounte
for 33% of the Company’s consolidated net sales.

The Company’s systems include Yorl®illers, industrial refrigeration products, airniolers and other HYAC mechanical equipment
provide heating and cooling in non-residential #nis. The Metasys®ontrol system monitors and integrates HVAC equipinveth othe
critical building systems to maximize comfort whileducing energy and operating costs. The Compsoymoduces air conditioning &
heating equipment and products, including Titus® &uskin®brands, for the residential market. As the larggsbal supplier of HVA(
technical services, Building Efficiency staffs, inpizes and repairs building systems made by the famy and its competitors. The Comp
offers a wide range of solutions such as perforrazantracting under which guaranteed energy savangused by the customer to fi
project costs over a number of years. In additiba,Global Workplace Solutions segment providektiiole onsite operations staff and r
estate and energy consulting services to help ot especially multiational companies, reduce costs and improve thierpgance c
their facility portfolios. The Company’s agite staff typically performs tasks related to tdoenfort and reliability of the facility, and mana
subcontractors for functions such as food sendglegning, maintenance and landscaping.

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesiamtproducts and systems for passenger cars ghtltliucks, including vans, piakg
trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Thesibass produces automotive interior systems for ®Ed operates approximately
wholly- and majorityewned manufacturing or assembly plants, with op@matin 32 countries worldwide. Additionally, theidiness h¢
partially-owned affiliates in Asia, Europe, Nortim&rica and South America.

Automotive Experience products and systems inckamlaplete seating systems and interior componemtfyding instrument panels, flc
consoles, and door systems. In fiscal 2014 , Autowad-xperience accounted for 51% of the Compaangissolidated net sales.

The business operates assembly plants that suppdynative OEMs with complete seats on a "just-meilinsequence” basis. Seats
assembled to specific order and delivered on agbeeahined schedule directly to an automotive asselimte. Certain of the businessbthe
automotive interior systems are also supplied djust-in-time/insequence” basis. Foam, metal and plastic seatimpaoents, seat cove
seat mechanisms and other components are shippleelst® plants from the business’s production faslior outside suppliers.




Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive OEMs &edbiattery aftermarket by providing energy storgaghnology, coupled with syste
engineering, marketing and service expertise. Thm@any is the largest producer of lesxdd automotive batteries in the world, produ
and distributing approximately 140 million lead-édatteries annually in approximately 61 wholly-damajority-owned manufacturing

assembly plants, distribution centers and saldsesffin 22 countries worldwide. Investments in rnewduct and process technology
expanded product offerings to absorbent glass AaM) and enhanced flooded battery (EFB) technolegiat power Stai$top vehicles, :
well as lithiumion battery technology for certain hybrid and eliectehicles. The business has also invested teldpwsustainable lead
poly recycling operations in the North American ahgopean markets. Approximately 74% of unit ssleddwide in fiscal 2014vere to th
automotive replacement market, with the remainadgsto the OEM market.

Power Solutions accounted for 16% of the Compafigtsal 2014consolidated net sales. Batteries and key compsraat manufactured
wholly- and majority-owned plants in North Ameri&quth America, Asia and Europe.

Competition
Building Efficiency

The Building Efficiency business conducts its opierss through thousands of individual contracts #ra either negotiated or awarded «
competitive basis. Key factors in the award of cacts include system and service performance, tyugliice, design, reputation, technolc
application engineering capability and constructisrproject management expertise. Competitors {dAB equipment and controls in t
residential and noresidential marketplace include many regional,ameti and international providers; larger competitorclude Honeywe
International, Inc.; Siemens Building Technologies, operating group of Siemens AG; Schneider Ete@®A; Carrier Corporation,
subsidiary of United Technologies Corporation; BEancorporated, a subsidiary of Ingerdeind Company Limited; Daikin Industries, L
Lennox International, Inc.; GC Midea Holding Co,dLtand Gree Electric Appliances, Inc. In additian HVAC equipment, Buildin
Efficiency competes in a highly fragmented HVACWeges market, which is dominated by local providdiise facilities management marl
including Global Workplace Solutions, is also fragrted at the local level with many regional comparservicing specific geographies.
largest competition comes from ISS A/S; Sodexo 84 dones Lang LaSalle, Inc. Sales of servicesapely dependent upon numer
individual contracts with commercial businesseslawide. The loss of any individual contract woulot have a material adverse effect or
Company.

Automotive Experience

The Automotive Experience business faces competitiom other automotive suppliers and, with respectertain products, from t
automobile OEMs who produce or have the capabitityproduce certain products the business supplies. automotive supply indus
competes on the basis of technology, quality, lbditg of supply and price. Design, engineering gmbduct planning are increasin
important factors. Independent suppliers that gmethe principal Automotive Experience competitioclude Lear Corporation, Faure
SA and Magna International Inc.

Power Solutions

Power Solutions is the principal supplier of ba#eto many of the largest merchants in the bat@grmarket, including Advance Auto Pa
AutoZone, Robert Bosch GmbH, DAISA S.A., Costco, A O'Reilly/CSK, Interstate Battery System of Americgas, Roebuck & C
and Wal-Mart stores. Automotive batteries are sihicbughout the world under private labels and unither Companys brand nam
(Optima®, Varta®, LTH® and Heliar®jo automotive replacement battery retailers andridigors and to automobile manufacturer:
original equipment. The Power Solutions businesspmties with a number of major domestic and intégwnat manufacturers and distribut
of leadacid batteries, as well as a large number of smakgional competitors. The Power Solutions bussngrimarily competes in t
battery market with Exide Technologies, GS Yuasap@Gation, Camel Group Company Limited, East Peranidacturing Company a
Banner Batteries GB Limited. The North Americanydhean and Asian leaakid battery markets are highly competitive. Thenafacturer
in these markets compete on price, quality, tecimmmovation, service and warranty.

Backlog
The Company’s backlog relating to the Building Eiffincy business is applicable to its sales of systend services. At September 30, 2014
the backlog was $4.8 billion, the majority of whicblates to fiscal 2015. The backlog as of Septer@de2013was $4.8 billion. Th

consistency in backlog year over year was primatilg to the increase in the Other segment, offset
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by a decline in the Asia segment. The backlog datsnclude amounts associated with contractsénGlobal Workplace Solutions busin
because such contracts are typically mydtar service awards, nor does it include unitagdpcts within the Other segment. The bac
amount outstanding at any given time is not neciégsadicative of the amount of revenue to be e the upcoming fiscal year.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the businesses in connewtittntheir operations, including lead, steel, thyminum, urethane chemicals, cop
sulfuric acid and polypropylene, were readily aablé during fiscal 2014 and the Company expects such availability to ioomet In fisca
2015, commodity prices could fluctuate throughduet year and could significantly affect the resofteperations.

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory protectiorstrategic or financially important intellectyaioperty developed in connection with
business. Certain intellectual property, where appate, is protected by contracts, licenses, demtiiality or other agreements.

The Company owns numerous U.S. and ko8- patents (and their respective counterpart®, more important of which cover th
technologies and inventions embodied in currentlpets or which are used in the manufacture of tiposducts. While the Company belie
patents are important to its business operatioddrathe aggregate constitute a valuable assedingbe patent, or group of patents, is crit
to the success of the business. The Company, fromtb time, grants licenses under its patentstackinology and receives licenses u
patents and technology of others.

The Companys trademarks, certain of which are material tdiisiness, are registered or otherwise legally ptetein the U.S. and ma
nonU.S. countries where products and services of th@gany are sold. The Company, from time to timeob®es involved in trademe
licensing transactions.

Most works of authorship produced for the Compasych as computer programs, catalogs and saleatliter carry appropriate notit
indicating the Company’s claim to copyright protestunder U.S. law and appropriate internatioresties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the environmenvifonmental laws) and workersafety and health (worker safety laws) goverr
Companys ongoing global operations. They generally provimtecivil and criminal penalties, as well as injtire and remedial relief, f
noncompliance or require remediation of sites wiGwmpany-related materials have been releasedhatenvironment.

The Company has expended substantial resourcesallgloboth financial and managerial, to comply wéhvironmental laws and worl
safety laws and maintains procedures designed dterfand ensure compliance. Certain of the Compgabhysinesses are, or have b
engaged in the handling or use of substances thatimpact workplace health and safety or the emwrent. The Company is committec
protecting its workers and the environment agahmstisks associated with these substances.

The Companys operations and facilities have been, and in tihgré may become, the subject of formal or inforeraflorcement actions
proceedings for noncompliance with environmentaisland worker safety laws or for the remediatio€ompanyrelated substances relea
into the environment. Such matters typically arsoheed with regulatory authorities through committseto compliance, abatement
remediation programs and, in some cases, paymgueralties. Historically, neither such commitmemas such penalties have been mate
(See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings," of this reportafaiscussion of the Company’s potential environtakliabilities.)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Companys ongoing environmental compliance program oftesulte in capital expenditures. Environmental comsitions are a part
all significant capital expenditure decisions; hoewre expenditures in fiscal 201l#lated solely to environmental compliance were
material. It is managemestopinion that the amount of any future capitalengitures related solely to environmental compkandl not
have a material adverse effect on the Company&nitiral results or competitive position in any oeary




Employees

As of September 30, 2014the Company employed approximately 168,000 engasy of whom approximately 106,000 were hourly
62,000 were salaried.

Seasonal Factors

Certain of Building Efficiencys sales are seasonal as the demand for residaintc@@nditioning equipment generally increaseshizm summe
months. This seasonality is mitigated by the ogireducts and services provided by the Building di#ficy business that have no mati
seasonal effect.

Sales of automotive seating and interior systentscrbatteries to automobile OEMs for use as odabgaquipment are dependent upon
demand for new automobiles. Management believes demand for new automobiles generally reflectssisieity to overall economi
conditions with no material seasonal effect.

The automotive replacement battery market is affbdly weather patterns because batteries are nkefg to fail when extremely lo
temperatures place substantial additional poweuiregpents upon a vehick’electrical system. Also, battery life is shorety extremel
high temperatures, which accelerate corrosion rdtksrefore, either mild winter or moderate sumrgmnperatures may adversely af
automotive replacement battery sales.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas
Refer to Note 19, "Segment Information," of theasoto consolidated financial statements for finalnaformation about geographic areas.
Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 1, "Summary of Significant Accountifglicies," of the notes to consolidated finansiatements for research and developi
expenditures.

Available Information

The Company’s filings with the U.S. Securities &dhange Commission (SEC), including annual repmmt&orm 10K, quarterly reports ¢
Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Scheddl&, current reports on Formi8-and any amendments to those reports filed puatsa
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange #ct934, are made available free of charge thrahghlnvestor Relations section of
Companys Internet website at http://www.johnsoncontrolmcas soon as reasonably practicable after the Goyngactronically files suc
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. Copiésany materials the Company files with the SEC akso be obtained free of charge thrc
the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov, at the SHE&ublic Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wgtin, D.C. 20549, or by calli
the SEC'’s Office of Investor Education and Advocatyt-800-7320330. The Company also makes available, free agehidts Ethics Polic
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Board of Direcommsimittee charters and other information relatethe Company on the Compasay’
Internet website or in printed form upon reques$te Tompany is not including the information con¢giron the Compang'website as a pi
of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Arah Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A RISKFACTORS

General Risks

General economic, credit and capital market conditns could adversely affect our financial performane, may affect our ability tc
grow or sustain our businesses and could negativedffect our ability to access the capital markets.

We compete around the world in various geograpggions and product markets. Global economic cantaffect each of our three prim
businesses. As we discuss in greater detail ispleeific risk factors for each of our businesses &ppear below, any future financial dist
in the automotive industry or residential and conuiad construction markets could negatively affeat revenues and financial performa
in future periods, result in future restructurifgaoges, and adversely impact our ability to growsustain our businesses.

The capital and credit markets provide us withiliity to operate and grow our businesses beyondiduédity that operating cash floy
provide. A worldwide economic downturn and disroptof the credit markets could reduce our accesapdal
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necessary for our operations and executing outegfiaplan. If our access to capital were to becaigaificantly constrained or costs
capital increased significantly due to lowered dreatings, prevailing industry conditions, the atility of the capital markets or other fact
then our financial condition, results of operatiamsl cash flows could be adversely affected.

We are subject to risks associated with our non-U.®perations that could adversely affect our resudt of operations.

We have significant operations in a number of coestoutside the U.S., some of which are locatezhierging markets. Longrm economi
uncertainty in some of the regions of the worldnvinich we operate, such as Asia, South AmericaMiudglle East, Central Europe and ol
emerging markets, could result in the disruptiomafrkets and negatively affect cash flows from @perations to cover our capital needs
debt service.

In addition, as a result of our global presencsigaificant portion of our revenues and expenseteimominated in currencies other thar
U.S. dollar. We are therefore subject to foreigrrency risks and foreign exchange exposure. Oungm exposures are to the euro, Bri
pound, Japanese yen, Czech koruna, Mexican pesaeaitan lei, Hungarian forint, Polish zloty, Canaddollar and Chinese renminbi. Wt
we employ financial instruments to hedge some oft@nsactional foreign exchange exposure, thetetaes do not insulate us complet
from those exposures. Exchange rates can be eotatd could adversely impact our financial resaittd comparability of results from per
to period.

There are other risks that are inherent in our dddi- operations, including the potential for changesocioeconomic conditions, laws a
regulations, including import, export, labor andiieonmental laws, and monetary and fiscal policstectionist measures that may prot
acquisitions or joint ventures, or impact tradeuwoés; unsettled political conditions; governmiemposed plant or other operatio
shutdowns; backlash from foreign labor organizaticelated to our restructuring actions; corruptioatural and mamade disasters, haza
and losses; violence, civil and labor unrest, aogsjble terrorist attacks.

These and other factors may have a material adeéfieset on our non-U.S. operations and thereforewrbusiness and results of operations.
We are subject to regulation of our international gerations that could adversely affect our businesand results of operations.

Due to our global operations, we are subject toymiaws governing international relations, includihgse that prohibit improper payment
government officials and commercial customers, r@strict where we can do business, what informatgioproducts we can supply to cer
countries and what information we can provide toa-U.S. government, including but not limited to ther&ign Corrupt Practices Act, U.
Bribery Act and the U.S. Export Administration Astiolations of these laws, which are complex, masuit in criminal penalties or sanctit
that could have a material adverse effect on osimiess, financial condition and results of operetio

Global climate change could negatively affect ourusiness.

Increased public awareness and concern regardatilgtliimate change may result in more regional@nigderal requirements to reduct
mitigate the effects of greenhouse gas emissionsreTcontinues to be a lack of consistent climadgslation, which creates economic
regulatory uncertainty. Such regulatory uncertaiefends to future incentives for energy efficiéntldings and vehicles and costs
compliance, which may impact the demand for oudpobs, obsolescence of our products and our resiutigerations.

There is a growing consensus that greenhouse giasiens are linked to global climate changes. Giérehanges, such as extreme we:
conditions, create financial risk to our busindasr example, the demand for our products and sesyisuch as residential air conditior
equipment and automotive replacement batteries, reagffected by unseasonable weather conditiomsma@ changes could also disrupt
operations by impacting the availability and cdsinaterials needed for manufacturing and couldgase insurance and other operating ¢
These factors may impact our decisions to constraet facilities or maintain existing facilities areas most prone to physical climate ri
The Company could also face indirect financial siplassed through the supply chain, and proceagotimns due to physical climate chan
could result in price modifications for our prodsieind the resources needed to produce them.

Regulations related to conflict minerals could adwvesely impact our business.

The DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectioncAatains provisions to improve transparency aswbantability concernir
the supply of certain minerals, known as confliéghenals, originating from the Democratic RepublicdGmngo (DRC) and adjoining countri
As a result, in August 2012, the SEC adopted andisalosure and reporting requirements for thosepanies who use conflict minerals
their products. Accordingly, we began our reasomablntry of origin inquiries in fiscal
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2013, with our initial disclosure relating to caofiminerals occurring in May 2014. There are c@ssociated with complying with the
disclosure requirements, including for diligencedegermine the sources of conflict minerals usedunproducts and other potential char
to products, processes or sources of supply asigeqaence of such verification activities. Our oaréd compliance with these disclos
rules could adversely affect the sourcing, supplgl pricing of materials used in our products. Asr¢hmay be only a limited number
suppliers offering "conflict free" conflict mineslwe cannot be sure that we will be able to obt&ioessary conflict minerals from s
suppliers in sufficient quantities or at compestjrices. Also, we may face reputational challenheg determine that certain of our prodt
contain minerals not determined to be conflict foedf we are unable to sufficiently verify the gins for all conflict minerals used in ¢
products through the procedures we may implement.

We are subject to requirements relating to environmental regulation and environmental remediation maters, which could adversel
affect our business and results of operations.

Because of uncertainties associated with enviromaheagulation and environmental remediation atiési at sites where we may be lia
future expenses that we may incur to remediatetifiegh sites could be considerably higher than tuerent accrued liability on o
consolidated statement of financial position, whicluld have a material adverse effect on our basiaed results of operations.

Risks related to our defined benefit retirement plas may adversely impact our results of operationsral cash flow.

Significant changes in actual investment returndefined benefit plan assets, discount rates, nityriassumptions and other factors cc
adversely affect our results of operations andatheunts of contributions we must make to our definenefit plans in future periods. As
mark-to-market our defined benefit plan assetsli@fdities on an annual basis, large noash gains or losses could be recorded in theh
quarter of each fiscal year. Generally acceptedwaaing principles in the U.S. require that we aoldte income or expense for the plans u
actuarial valuations. These valuations reflect eggions about financial markets and interest ratdsch may change based on econc
conditions. Funding requirements for our definedd§# plans are dependent upon, among other thinterest rates, underlying asset ret
and the impact of legislative or regulatory changdated to defined benefit funding obligationsr Bodiscussion regarding the signific
assumptions used to determine net periodic beroeft, refer to "Critical Accounting Estimates andlifles" included in Item"’
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiahdition and Results of Operations."

We may be unable to realize the expected benefit$ our restructuring actions, which could adverselyaffect our profitability and
operations.

In order to align our resources with our growttatgies, operate more efficiently and control costs periodically announce restructut
plans, which include workforce reductions, globkanp closures and consolidations, asset impairmamdsother cost reduction initiatives.
may undertake additional restructuring actions aodkforce reductions in the future. As these plandg actions are complex, unfores
factors could result in expected savings and bentfibe delayed or not realized to the full exfgiahned, and our operations and busi
may be disrupted.

Negative or unexpected tax consequences could adsely affect our results of operations.

Adverse changes in the underlying profitability diméncial outlook of our operations in severaigdictions could lead to additional chan
in our valuation allowances against deferred tasetsand other tax reserves on our statement afidial position, and the future sale
certain businesses could potentially result in réygatriation of accumulated foreign earnings traild¢ materially and adversely affect
results of operations. Additionally, changes in f@xs in the U.S. or in other countries where weehsignificant operations could materi
affect deferred tax assets and liabilities on camsolidated statement of financial position andbme tax provision on our consolida
statement of income.

We are also subject to tax audits by governmenithicgities in the U.S. and in ndh-S. jurisdictions. Negative unexpected resultgifiane o
more such tax audits could adversely affect ourlte®f operations.

Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a pgrmay adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become stilbgelegal proceedings and commercial or contedaisputes. These are typically cla
that arise in the normal course of business inofgdwithout limitation, commercial or contractuabspltes with our suppliers, intellect
property matters, third party liability, includimroduct liability claims and employment claims. Tdexists the possibility that such cla
may have an adverse impact on our results of dpasathat is greater than we anticipate.




An investigation by the European Commission (EQ3tesl to European lead recyclepsbcurement practices is currently underway, wlii
Company one of several named companies subjeeview. The Company cannot predict the ultimaterfaial impact, as the investigatior
at a preliminary stage. We will continue to cooperaith the EC in their investigation and monit@lated commercial and financ
implications, if any. The Compars/policy is to comply with antitrust and competitiaws and, if a violation of any such laws is fduic
take appropriate remedial action and to coopenaitg Wwith any related governmental inquiry. Compieta and antitrust law investigatic
may continue for several years and can resulttistsutial fines depending on the gravity and daratif the violations.

A downgrade in the ratings of our debt could restret our ability to access the debt capital marketsrad increase our interest costs.

Changes in the ratings that rating agencies adsigmr debt may ultimately impact our access todebkt capital markets and the costs
incur to borrow funds. If ratings for our debt fékélow investment grade, our access to the debtataparkets would become restrict
Tightening in the credit markets and the reduceell®f liquidity in many financial markets due tarmoil in the financial and banki
industries could affect our access to the debttabpiarkets or the price we pay to issue debt.ddistlly, we have relied on our ability
issue commercial paper rather than to draw on maditcfacility to support our daily operations, whimeans that a downgrade in our rat
or volatility in the financial markets causing ltaions to the debt capital markets could havedmese effect on our business or our abili
meet our liquidity needs.

Additionally, several of our credit agreements gahg include an increase in interest rates if ings for our debt are downgraded. Fur
an increase in the level of our indebtedness mergase our vulnerability to adverse general ecoo@md industry conditions and may af
our ability to obtain additional financing.

We are subject to potential insolvency or financiatistress of third parties.

We are exposed to the risk that third parties tgoua arrangements who owe us money or goods awéteg, or who purchase goods
services from us, will not be able to perform thabtigations or continue to place orders due tolirency or financial distress. If third part
fail to perform their obligations under arrangensewith us, we may be forced to replace the undaglydommitment at current or ab
market prices or on other terms that are less &blerto us. In such events, we may incur lossesyoresults of operations, financial posi
or liquidity could otherwise be adversely affected.

We may be unable to complete or integrate acquisgns effectively, which may adversely affect our greth, profitability and results of
operations.

We expect acquisitions of businesses and asseikyoa role in our future growth. We cannot be a@erthat we will be able to identi
attractive acquisition targets, obtain financingdoquisitions on satisfactory terms, successftiguire identified targets or manage timin
acquisitions with capital obligations across ousibasses. Additionally, we may not be successfiuhtiegrating acquired businesses into
existing operations and achieving projected symsrgCompetition for acquisition opportunities i tarious industries in which we ope
may rise, thereby increasing our costs of makirguesitions or causing us to refrain from makingttier acquisitions. We are also subje«
applicable antitrust laws and must avoid anticortipetbehavior. These and other acquisitretated factors may negatively and advel
impact our growth, profitability and results of oggons.

We are subject to business continuity risks assod¢ed with centralization of certain administrative functions.

We have been and are in the process of regionaefiyralizing certain administrative functions, priihain North America, Europe and As
to improve efficiency and reduce costs. To the mixteat these central locations are disrupted salded, key business processes, su
invoicing, payments and general management opestamuld be interrupted.

A failure of our information technology (IT) infras tructure could adversely impact our business and agrations.

We rely upon the capacity, reliability and secudfyour information technology infrastructure and ability to expand and continually upd
this infrastructure in response to the changinglsed our business. For example, we are implemgratiglobal enterprise resource plani
system over a period of several years in additoother IT systems in certain of our businessesv@smplement the new systems, they
not perform as expected. We also face the challehgapporting our older systems and implementiegessary upgrades. If we experien
problem with the functioning of an important IT 8% or a security breach of our IT systems, theltieg disruptions could have an adve
effect on our business.

We and certain of our thirgarty vendors receive and store personal informatiaconnection with our human resources operatinbsothe
aspects of our business. Despite our implementafigecurity measures, our IT systems are vulnerabtiamages
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from computer viruses, natural disasters, unautkdriaccess, cyber attack and other similar dismgtiAny system failure, accident
security breach could result in disruptions to operations. A material network breach in the ségwf our IT systems could include the tt
of our intellectual property, trade secrets or cosdr information. To the extent that any disrupgian security breach results in a los
damage to our data, or an inappropriate disclosticenfidential or customer information, it coulduse significant damage to our reputa
affect our relationships with our customers, leadtlaims against the Company and ultimately harmbusiness. In addition, we may
required to incur significant costs to protect agadamage caused by these disruptions or setwmeiches in the future.

Our business success depends on attracting and retang qualified personnel.

Our ability to sustain and grow our business rezgiins to hire, retain and develop a highly skilked! diverse management team
workforce. Failure to ensure that we have the lesddp capacity with the necessary skill set anceerpce could impede our ability to deli
our growth objectives and execute our strategio.plrganizational and reporting changes as a re§woltir leadership transition and quar
of corporate initiatives could result in increasechover. Additionally, any unplanned turnover oalbility to attract and retain key employ
could have a negative effect on our results of atjpans.

Building Efficiency Risks

Failure to comply with regulations due to our contacts with U.S. government entities could adversebffect our business and results
operations.

Our Building Efficiency business contracts with gavment entities and is subject to specific rutegulations and approvals applicabl
government contractors. We are subject to routindite by the Defense Contract Audit Agency to assour compliance with the
requirements. Our failure to comply with these tireo laws and regulations could result in conttaaminations, suspension or debarn
from contracting with the U.S. federal governmaritjl fines and damages and criminal prosecutienadldition, changes in procurem
policies, budget considerations, unexpected U.8ldpments, such as terrorist attacks, or simitditipal developments or events abroad
may change the U.S. federal government’s natioce@lrity defense posture may affect sales to govenmmentities.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Increases in commodity costs negatively impaciptioditability of orders in backlog as prices on skwrders are fixed; therefore, in the short-
term we cannot adjust for changes in commoditygsri¢f we are not able to recover commodity costdases through price increases tc
customers on new orders, then such increases aik fan adverse effect on our results of operatiddsglitionally, unfavorability in ot
hedging programs during a period of declining cordityoprices could result in lower margins as weuesl prices to match the market ¢
fixed commodity cost level.

Conditions in the commercial and residential new aostruction markets may adversely affect our resultof operations.

HVAC equipment sales in the commercial and residenew construction markets correlate to the nunadfenew buildings and homes t
are built. The strength of the commercial and rsiihl markets depends in part on the availabdftgommercial and consumer financing
our customers, along with inventory and pricingeafsting buildings and homes. If economic and d¢rewrket conditions decline, it m
result in a decline in the construction of new caeneial buildings and residential housing constarctinarket. Such conditions could havt
adverse effect on our results of operations andtrgspotential liabilities or additional costsiduding impairment charges.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Building Efficiencybusiness.

Any of the following could materially and adversatypact the results of operations of our Buildinffjdiency business: loss of, changes ir
failure to perform under facility management supglgntracts or other guaranteed performance costraith our major custome
cancellation of, or significant delays in, projectour backlog; delays or difficulties in new proxd development; the potential introductiol
similar or superior technologies; financial instapior market declines of our major component digrp; the unavailability of raw materi
(primarily steel, copper and electronic componentegessary for production of HVAC equipment; pricereases of limitedource
components, products and services that we are emalgass on to the market; unseasonable weathditioms in various parts of the wor
changes in energy costs or governmental regulatioaiswould decrease the incentive for customerapate or improve their buildi
control systems; revisions to energy efficiencyrefrigerant legislation; a decline in the outsongciof facility management servic
availability of labor to support growth of our s businesses; and natural or nmaaee disasters or losses that impact our abilielivel
facility management and other products and sentiwesir customers.
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Automotive Experience Risks

Conditions in the automotive industry may adverselaffect our results of operations.

Our financial performance depends, part, on conditions in the automotive industiry.fiscal 2014, our largest customers globally v
automobile manufacturers Ford Motor Company (FoFdat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. (Chrysler), GeneMbtors Corporation (GM
Daimler AG and Volkswagen AG (VW). If automakergpexience a decline in the number of new vehiclessalle may experience reducti
in orders from these customers, incur wifés of accounts receivable, incur impairment clargr require additional restructuring acti
beyond our current restructuring plans, particyldfriany of the automakers cannot adequately furadr toperations or experience finan
distress.

Uncertainty related to the economic conditions in BErope may adversely affect our results of operation

Automakers across Europe are experiencing diffesilfrom a weakened economy and tightening creaitkets. As a result, we he
experienced and may continue to experience redwectio orders from these OEM customers. A prolondednturn in the Europe
automotive industry or a significant change in praidmix due to consumer demand could require whith down additional plants or resul
additional impairment charges, restructuring adionchanges in our valuation allowances agairfstighel tax assets, which could be mat
to our consolidated financial statements. Continuecertainty relating to the economic conditiong&iirope may continue to have an adv
impact on our business.

We are subject to pricing pressure from our automate customers.

We face significant competitive pressures in alloaf business segments. Because of their purchasieg our automotive customers
influence market participants to compete on premns. If we are not able to offset pricing redutsiaesulting from these pressures
improved operating efficiencies and reduced exganes, those pricing reductions may have an adversact on our business.

Financial distress of the automotive supply chainauld harm our results of operations.

Automotive industry conditions could adversely aff¢he original equipment supplier base. Lower paiin levels for key custome
increases in certain raw material, commodity anelrgy costs and global credit market conditions daekult in financial distress amc
many companies within the automotive supply bagrarfeial distress within the supplier base may leadommercial disputes and poss
supply chain interruptions, which in turn couldrdist our production. In addition, an adverse industivironment may require us to prov
financial support to distressed suppliers or talteeomeasures to ensure uninterrupted productitsichacould involve additional costs
risks. If any of these risks materialize, we akelly to incur losses, or our results of operatidmgncial position or liquidity could otherwi
be adversely affected.

Change in consumer demand may adversely affect ovesults of operations.

Increases in energy costs or other factors (dighate change concerns) may shift consumer demasag §om motor vehicles that typica
have higher interior content that we supply, susHight trucks, crossver vehicles, minivans and SUVs, to smaller vefsidhaving les
interior content. The loss of business with respecor a lack of commercial success of, one oravgarticular vehicle models for which
are a significant supplier could reduce our safesharm our profitability, thereby adversely affegtour results of operations.

We may not be able to successfully negotiate priginterms with our customers in the Automotive Expernce business, which m:
adversely affect our results of operations.

We negotiate sales prices annually with our autoraatustomers. Cogutting initiatives that our customers have adopederally result i
increased downward pressure on pricing. In somescasr customer supply agreements require redwgctiomomponent pricing over t
period of production. If we are unable to genematfficient production cost savings in the futureoffset price reductions, our results
operations may be adversely affected. In particuinge commercial settlements with our customeay mdversely affect our results
operations or cause our financial results to vanaguarterly basis.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Commodity prices can be volatile from year to yécommodity prices rise, and if we are not aldedcover these cost increases fronr
customers, these increases will have an adversete&fifi our results of operations.
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The cyclicality of original equipment automobile pioduction rates may adversely affect the results adperations in our Automotive
Experience business.

The financial performance of our Automotive Expade business is directly related to automotive petidn by our customers. Automot
production and sales are highly cyclical and dependyeneral economic conditions and other factowduding consumer spending ¢
preferences. An economic decline that results riedaiction in automotive production by our AutometiZxperience customers could ha
material adverse impact on our results of operation

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Automotive Experieoe business.

Any of the following could materially and adversetypact the results of operations of our Automotisgerience business: the loss of
changes in, automobile supply contracts, sourcirategies or customer claims with our major custen@ suppliers; statp expense
associated with new vehicle programs or delaysaocellations of such programs; underutilizatioroof manufacturing facilities, which &
generally located near, and devoted to, a partiauatomers facility; inability to recover engineering andling costs; market and financ
consequences of any recalls that may be requiregrasucts that we have supplied; delays or diffiealin new product development i
integration; quantity and complexity of new progré&aunches, which are subject to our customensing, performance, design and que
standards; interruption of supply of certain sirgbeirce components; the potential introduction ofilsir or superior technologies; chanc
nature and prevalence of our joint ventures anatiogiships with our strategic business partnembajl overcapacity and vehicle platfc
proliferation; and potential complications or ttaldre to consummate the anticipated joint venforenation for a majority of our Interia
business.

Power Solutions Risks

We face competition and pricing pressure from othecompanies in the Power Solutions business.

Our Power Solutions business competes with a nurobenajor domestic and international manufactura@nsl distributors of leadeic
batteries, as well as a large number of smallgipnal competitors. The North American, Europead Asian leadacid battery markets ¢
highly competitive. The manufacturers in these ratrkcompete on price, quality, technical innovateervice and warranty. If we are une
to remain competitive and maintain market shatbénregions and markets we serve, our results efadipns may be adversely affected.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Lead is a major component of our leadd batteries, and the price of lead may be higfaiatile. We attempt to manage the impac
changing lead prices through the recycling of usatleries returned to us by our aftermarket custsjreommercial terms and commo
hedging programs. Our ability to mitigate the impafclead price changes can be impacted by martgrf&dncluding customer negotiatio
inventory level fluctuations and sales volume/ntiages, any of which could have an adverse effeouo results of operations.

Additionally, the prices of other commodities, parity fuel, acid, resin and tin, may be volatileother commodity prices rise, and if we
not able to recover these cost increases througk prcreases to our customers, such increasehail an adverse effect on our resul
operations. Moreover, the implementation of anggincreases to our customers could negatively ébgbmand for our products.

Decreased demand from our customers in the automet industry may adversely affect our results of opations.

Our financial performance in the Power Solutionsibess depends, in part, on conditions in the aotiom industry. Sales to OEIl
accounted for approximately 26% of the total saffethe Power Solutions business in fiscal 20Dkclines in the North American, Europ
and Asian automotive production levels could redagesales and adversely affect our results ofaifmrs. In addition, if any OEMs reac
point where they cannot fund their operations, va imcur writeeffs of accounts receivable, incur impairment cleargr require addition
restructuring actions beyond our current restructuplans.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Power Solutions birsess.

Any of the following could materially and adversémpact the results of operations of our Power Sahs business: loss of, or change:
automobile battery supply contracts with our lagg@ginal equipment and aftermarket customers; ttoeeiasing quality and useful life
batteries or use of alternative battery technokgimth of which may adversely impact the leatd battery market, including replacerr
cycle; delays or cancellations of new vehicle paogs; market and financial consequences of anylsabalt may be required on our produ
delays or difficulties in new product development|uding lithium-ion technology;
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impact of potential increases in lithium-ion bagteolumes on established lead-acid battery voluasehthiumion battery technology groy
and costs become more competitive; financial inbtator market declines of our customers or sugmj slower than projected mar
development in emerging markets; interruption gbpdy of certain singlesource components; changing nature of our jointwes an
relationships with our strategic business partnemsseasonable weather conditions in various pafrtsh@ world; increasing glob
environmental and safety regulations related tontla@ufacturing and recycling of leadid batteries, and transportation of battery nieltg
our ability to secure sufficient tolling capacity tecycle batteries; price and availability of baftcores used in recycling; and the lack o
development of a market for hybrid and electricigiels.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has no unresolved written commentgdeggits periodic or current reports from the stdfthe SEC.
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At September 30, 2014the Company conducted its operations in 58 c@mthroughout the world, with its world headquesticated i
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- and ardy-owned facilities, which are listed in the tabletba following pages by busine
and location, totaled approximately 96 million squdeet of floor space and are owned by the Compatept as noted. The facilit
primarily consisted of manufacturing, assembly angarehouse space. The Company considers itdtililo be suitable and adequate
their current uses. The majority of the facilitee operating at normal levels based on capacity.

Building Efficiency

Alabama Dothan (3) Minnesota Fridley (3)
Geneva (3) Plymouth (1),(4)
Huntsville (2) Mississippi Hattiesburg (1)

Arizona Tucson (3) Olive Branch

California Mira Loma (2),(3) Missouri Albany
Roseville (1),(4) Grandview (4)
San Jose (1) St. Louis (1),(4)
Sanger (1) New Jersey Hainesport (1),(4)
Simi Valley (1),(4) North Carolina Charlotte (1),(4)

Delaware Newark (1),(4) Sanford

Florida Largo (1),(3) Tarboro
Medley (1),(4) Ohio Cincinnati (3)
Tampa (1),(4) Clayton

Georgia Roswell (1),(4) Dayton (4)

Idaho Nampa Oklahoma Norman (3)

lllinois Arlington Heights (4) Ponca City (1)
Carol Stream (1) Oregon Portland (1),(4)
Elmhurst (1),(4) Pennsylvania Audubon (1),(4)
Wheeling (1) East Greenville (1),(3)

Indiana Lebanon Waynesboro (3)
Rochester (3) York (1)

Kansas Lenexa (1),(4) Texas Carrollton (1),(3)
Parson (3) Coppell (1)
Wichita (2),(3) El Paso (2)

Kentucky Lexington (1),(3) Houston (1),(3)
Louisville (2),(3) Irving (4)

Maryland Baltimore (1),(4) Plano (1),(4)
Capitol Heights (1),(4) Richardson (1),(4)
Rossville (1) San Antonio
Sparks (1),(4) Washington Fife (1),(4)

Massachusetts Lynnfield (4) Wisconsin Milwaukee (2),(4)
Turner Falls (1) Waukesha (1),(4)

Michigan Grand Rapids (1),(4)

Sterling Heights (1),(4)
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Building Efficiency (continued)

Austria
Belgium
Brazil

Canada

China

Denmark

France

Germany

Hong Kong

India

Vienna (4)
Diegem (1),(4)
Curitiba (1),(4)
Ajax (1),(3)
Markham (2),(4)
Nobel (1)
Oakuville (1),(4)
Prescott (1)
Beijing (1),(4)
Qingyuan (2),(3)
Suzhou (1),(3)
Wuxi (2),(3)
Hojbjerg (3)
Hornslet (2),(3)
Viby (3)

Carquefou Cedex (2),(3)

Colombes (1),(3)
Essen (1),(3)
Hamburg (1),(3)
Mannheim (1),(3)
Hong Kong (1),(4)
Bangalore (1)
Gurgaon (1)
Mumbai (1),(4)
Pune (1)

Italy
Japan
Macau
Malaysia

Mexico

Netherlands

Poland

Russia

South Africa
Spain

Thailand
Turkey

United Kingdom

United Arab Emirates

Milan (1),(3)

Tokyo (1),(4)
Macau (1),(4)
Petaling Jaya (1),(4)
Apodaca (1),(3)

Durango

Juarez (2)

Mexicali (1)
Monterrey (1),(4)
Ojinga (1)
Reynosa (3)
Santa Catarina (1),(3)
Dordrecht (3)
Gorinchem (1),(3)
Warsaw (1),(3)
Moscow (1),(3)
Isando (1),(4)
Sabadell (1),(3)
Amper Kabinburi (1),(3)
Manisa (1)
Bridgnorth (3)
Whitstable (3)
Dubai (1)
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Automotive Experience

Alabama

Georgia
Illinois

Kentucky

Michigan

Missouri

Ohio

Tennessee

Texas

Bessemer (1)
Clanton
Eastaboga
McCalla (1)

West Point (1)
Sycamore
Cadiz
Georgetown (2)
Louisville (1)
Shelbyville (1)
Winchester (1)
Auburn Hills (1)
Battle Creek
Cascade (1)
Detroit
Highland Park (1)
Holland (2),(3)
Lansing (2)
Monroe (1)
Plymouth (2),(4)
Romulus (1)
Taylor (1)
Warren (1)
Zeeland (1)
Eldon (2)
Riverside (1)
Bryan
Greenfield
Northwood
Wauseon

Athens
Lexington (1)
Murfreesboro
Pulaski (1)

El Paso (1)
San Antonio (1)

Argentina

Australia

Austria

Belgium

Brazil

Canada

China

Czech Republic

France

Buenos Aires (1)
Rosario
Adelaide (1)
Graz (1)
Mandling
Assenede (1)
Pouso Alegre
Quatro Barras (2)
Santo Andre (1)
Sao Bernardo do Campo
Sao Jose dos Pinhais (1)
Milton
Mississauga (1)
Tillsonburg
Whitby (2)
Guangzhou (2)
Shanghai (1),(3)
Wuhu (2)
Bezdecin (1)
Ceska Lipa (4)
Mlada Boleslav (1)
Roudnice
Rychnov (1)
Strakonice
Straz pod Ralskem
Zatec
Conflans-sur-Lanterne
Fesches-le-Chatel (1)
Laroque D'Olmes
Rosny
Strasbourg
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Automotive Experience (continued)

Germany

Hungary

India

Indonesia

Italy

Japan

Korea

Malaysia

Boblingen (1)
Bochum (2)
Bremen (1)
Burscheid (2),(4)
Dautphe
Espelkamp
Grefrath
Grobbottwar (1)
Hilchenbach (1)
Kaiserslauten
Luneburg

Mannweiler (1)

Markgroningen (2)

Neuenburg (1)
Neuss (1),(4)
Neustadt
Rastatt (1)
Remscheid (1)
Rockenhausen
Saarlouis (1)
Solingen (3)
Ueberherrn
Waghausel
Wuppertal (1),(3)
Zwickau (1)
Mezolak
Mor
Dharwad (1)
Pune (2),(3)
Bekasi (1)
Purwakarta (1)
Grugliasco (1)
Melfi
Ogliastro Cilento
Rocca D'Evandro
Hamamatsu
Higashiomi
Yokohama (1),(4)
Yokosuka (2)
Ansan (1),(4)
Asan
Melaka (1)
Pekan (1)

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Mexico

Poland

Portugal

Romania

Russia

Slovak Republic

South Africa

Spain

Coahuila (1)
El Marquez
Juarez
Lerma (1)
Matamaros (1)
Monclova
Puebla (1)
Ramos Arizpe
Saltillo (2)
Tlaxcala
Toluca (1)
Bierun
Siemianowice
Skarbimierz (1)
Swiebodzin
Zory
Palmela
Bradu
Craiova (1)
Jimbolia
Mioveni (1)
Pitesti (1)
Ploesti
Timisoara (1)
St. Petersburg (2)
Togliatti (1)
Bratislava (1),(4)

Kostany nad Turcom (2)

Lozorno (1)
Lucenec
Trencin (1),(4)
Zilina (2)
Chloorkop (1)
East London (1)
Eastern Cape (1)
Joannesburg
Port Elizabeth (1)
Pretoria
Swartkops (1)
Uitenhage (1)
Wynberg (1)
Abrera

Alagon
Almussafes (1)
Pedrola
Redondela (1)
Valladolid
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Automotive Experience (continued)

Sweden
Thailand

Turkey

United Kingdom

Goteburg (1)
Chonburi (1)
Rayong
Bursa (1)
Kocaeli
Birmingham
Burton-Upon-Trent
Ellesmere (1)
Garston (1)

Sunderland
Telford (1)
Wednesbury
Power Solutions
Arizona Yuma (3) Austria Vienna (1),(3)
Delaware Middletown (3) Brazil Sorocaba (3)
Florida Tampa (3) China Changxing (3)
Georgia Columbus (1) Chongging (3)
Illinois Geneva (3) Shanghai (2),(3)
Indiana Ft. Wayne (3) Colombia Yumbo (2),(3)
lowa Red Oak (3) Czech Republic Ceska Lipa (2),(3)
Kentucky Florence (2),(3) France Rouen
Michigan Holland (3) Sarreguemines (3)
Missouri St. Joseph (3) Germany Hannover (3)
North Carolina Kernersville (3) Krautscheid (3)
Ohio Toledo (3) Zwickau (2),(3)
Oregon Canby (2),(3) Korea Gumi (2),(3)
South Carolina Florence (3) Mexico Celaya
Oconee (2),(3) Cienega de Flores (1)
Texas San Antonio (3) Escobedo
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4) Flores
Garcia
San Pedro (1),(4)
Tlalnepantla (1),(4)
Torreon
Peru Lima (1),(4)
Spain Burgos
Guadalajara (1)
Guadamar del Segura
Ibi (3)
Sweden Hultsfred
Corporate
Wisconsin Milwaukee (2),(4) China Dalian (1),(4)
Mexico Monterrey (1),(4)
Singapore Singapore (1),(4)

Slovak Republic

Bratislava (1),(4)
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(1) Leased facility

(2) Includes both leased and owned facilities
3) Includes both administrative and manufactufaxglities
(4) Administrative facility only

In addition to the above listing, which identifikrge properties (greater than 25,000 square fdstje are approximately 534 Build
Efficiency branch offices and other administratfices located in major cities throughout the worThese offices are primarily lea:
facilities and vary in size in proportion to thelwme of business in the particular locality.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As noted in Item 1, liabilities potentially ariséobally under various environmental laws and worgafety laws for activities that are no
compliance with such laws and for the cleanup talssivhere Company-related substances have beasedlato the environment.

Currently, the Company is responding to allegatithra it is responsible for performing environmémtnediation, or for the repayment
costs spent by governmental entities or othersopmihg remediation, at approximately 40 sites i@ thnited States. Many of these sites
landfills used by the Company in the past for tlposal of waste materials; others are secondad/denelters and lead recycling sites w
the Company returned leadntaining materials for recycling; a few involvieetcleanup of Company manufacturing facilities; dhe
remaining fall into miscellaneous categories. Tloen@any may face similar claims of liability at atifoial sites in the future. Where poter
liabilities are alleged, the Company pursues asmof action intended to mitigate them.

The Company accrues for potential environmentailltees in a manner consistent with accountingpiples generally accepted in the Un
States; that is, when it is probable a liabilityshaeen incurred and the amount of the liabilityrésasonably estimable. Reserves
environmental liabilities totaled $24 million an@%million at September 30, 2014 and 2Q0X8spectively. The Company reviews the s
of its environmental sites on a quarterly basis adjists its reserves accordingly. Such potenaailities accrued by the Company do
take into consideration possible recoveries ofriuinsurance proceeds. They do, however, takesictount the likely share other parties
bear at remediation sites. It is difficult to estite the Compang’ultimate level of liability at many remediatioites due to the large numl
of other parties that may be involved, the compjeaf determining the relative liability among tleoparties, the uncertainty as to the n¢
and scope of the investigations and remediatiobet@onducted, the uncertainty in the applicationaef and risk assessment, the var
choices and costs associated with diverse techiesldgat may be used in corrective actions at itles,sand the often quite lengthy peri
over which eventual remediation may occur. Nevédes®e the Company does not currently believe that daims, penalties or costs
connection with known environmental matters wilvea material adverse effect on the Compaffiyiancial position, results of operation:
cash flows. In addition, the Company has identifisdet retirement obligations for environmentalteratthat are expected to be address
the retirement, disposal, removal or abandonmeraxidting owned facilities, primarily in the Pow8plutions business. AZeptember 3
2014 and 2013, the Company recorded conditiorsatastirement obligations of $52 million and $5#lion , respectively.

In June 2013, the Company setfported to the Securities and Exchange CommigS&C) and the Department of Justice (DOJ) all
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) violationsatet to its Building Efficiency marine businessGhina dating back to 2007. Th
allegations were isolated to the Compangiarine business in China which had annual salegirrg from $20 million to $50 million duril
this period. The Company, under the oversight ©Atdit Committee and Board of Directors, proadiivieitiated an investigation into tt
matter with the assistance of external legal coumse external forensic accountants. In conneotih this investigation, the Company |
made and continues to evaluate certain enhancerteitss FCPA compliance program. The Company caetsnto fully cooperate with t
SEC and the DOJ; however, at this time, the Comjsmaopable to predict the ultimate resolution a$ timatter with these agencies.

The Company is involved in a number of productiliBband various other casualty lawsuits incidémtthe operation of its businesses.
Company maintains insurance coverages and recstidsaged costs for claims and suits of this natliis. managemerg’ opinion that none
these will have a material adverse effect on then@anys financial position, results of operations or cfistvs. Costs related to such mat
were not material to the periods presented.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

20




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of FormKLOthe following list of executive officers of thEompany as of November 19, 201
included as an unnumbered Item in Part | of thporein lieu of being included in the CompasyProxy Statement relating to the Anr
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on January @852

Michael K. Bartschat , 52, was elected a Vice President and named EGmafurement Officer in July 2014. He previouslyveer a:
Group Vice President and General Manager, MetalsMechanisms, Automotive Seating from January 201Rily 2014, as Group Vi
President and General Manager, Trim and Fabric$orAative Seating from November 2011 to December228dd as Group Vi
President, Global Purchasing from November 2004adeember 2011. Mr. Bartschat joined the Compar3064.

Beda Bolzenius , 58, was elected a Vice President in November 20@bhas served as Presidetutomotive Experience and as V
Chairman, Asia Pacific since May 2014. He previpustrved as President, Automotive Seating from t®012 to May 2014,
President of the Automotive Experience businesmfiovember 2006 to October 2012 and as Executive Yresident and Gene
Manager Europe, Africa and South America for Auttineo Experience from November 2004 to November 2@6 Bolzenius joine
the Company in November 2004 from Robert Bosch G(aHylobal manufacturer of automotive and indastiéchnology, consum
goods and building technology) where he most régesetved as the president of Bosch’s Body Eledtiodivision.

Brian J. Cadwallader, 55, was elected a Vice President in January 208i4amed General Counsel and Secretary in Octoldet. 24
previously served as Assistant Secretary from Jgn2@14 to September 2014, as Assistant Generahs&bdrom September 2011
September 2014 and as Group Vice President andr&e@eunsel, Building Efficiency from August 2016 September 2011. N
Cadwallader joined the Company in 2010. Prior tmijy the Company, Mr. Cadwallader served as AsdeciGeneral Couns
International Business and Shared Services from® 2002010 of International Paper Company, Memphsnnessee (a paper i
packaging company) and as Associate General Cquisated Services of International Paper Company 2005 to 2009.

Grady L. Crosby, 48, was elected Vice President, Public Affairs aathed Chief Diversity Officer in October 2014. Hedously serve
as Vice President and Global General Counsel, P@agrtions from October 2013 to September 2014/ies President and Gene
Counsel, Power Solutions Americas and Global Aftekat from August 2012 to October 2013 and as \Reesident and Gene
Counsel, Power Solutions Americas from August 2@lAugust 2012. Prior to joining the Company in Asg2011, Mr. Crosby serv
as Associate General Counsel of Hanesbrands Inostov-Salem, North Carolina (an apparel manufacturerraatketer) from 2005
2011.

Smon Davis , 50, was elected a Vice President and named Assi§thief Human Resources Officer in May 2014. Hevipusly
served as Vice President - Talent Strategy & Owmitinal Excellence from July 2011 to May 2014 asdVice President Humar
Resources for Power Solutions from January 200Uy 2011. Mr. Davis has held human resources iposiof increasing responsibil
since joining the Company in 1997.

Susan F. Davis, 61, was elected an Executive Vice President pte®eber 2006 and named Chief Human Resources Offidday
2014. She previously served as Executive Vice Beasiof Human Resources from September 2006 to A04y, as Vice President
Human Resources from May 1994 to September 2006 aandice President of Organizational Development tfee Automotivi
Experience business from August 1993 to April 19@4. Davis joined the Company in 1983. Ms. Davia Birector of Quanex Buildir
Products Corporation, Houston, Texas (building potsl manufacturer), where she is the Chairwomarthef Compensation a
Management Development Committee and serves oNdh@nating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Charles A. Harvey , 62, was elected a Vice President in November 26f@5previously served as Vice President of Divgranc
Public Affairs from November 2005 to September 2@bdl as Chief Diversity Officer from 2013 to Sepbeam2014. Mr. Harvey al:
served as Vice President of Human Resources foAtiemotive Experience business and in other hureaaurces leadership positic
Mr. Harvey joined the Company in 1991.

William C. Jackson , 54, was elected a Vice President and named RrasiBuilding Efficiency in September 2014. He poesly
served as Executive Vice President, Corporate Deweént from September 2013 to September 2014, asident, Automotiv
Electronics & Interiors from March 2012 to July 20&and as Executive Vice President, Operations andvation, from May 2011
September 2013. Prior to joining Johnson Contrbls, Jackson was Vice President and President obative at Sears Holdin
Corporation, (an integrated retailer) from 2002®4.0. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice
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President and board member of Booz, Allen & Hamilamd Booz & Company, (a strategy and consulting)fwhere he led the firre’
Global Automotive, Transportation and Industriatad®ice.

Brian Kesseler , 48, was elected a Vice President and named rasilower Solutions in January 2013. He previosslyed as tt
Chief Operating Officer of the Power Solutions Imesis from May 2012 to January 2013. He served as Wresident and Gene
Manager, Europe Systems & Service, North Americqai€e & Unitary Products Group for the Building Efency business from 2009
April 2012, as Vice President and General Mana@erericas for the Power Solutions business from 2008009 and as Vice Presid
and General Manager, North America for the Autorr@business from 2003 to 2006. Mr. Kesseler jothedCompany in 1994.

R. Bruce McDonald , 54, was elected Vice Chairman in September 201! lmas served as an Executive Vice President
September 2006. He previously served as Chief Einb®fficer from May 2005 to September 2014, asé/#President from January 2!
to September 2006, as Assistant Chief Financiac@fffrom October 2004 to May 2005 and Corporatattdier from November 20(
to October 2004. Mr. McDonald joined the Companp@®1. Mr. McDonald is a Director of Dana Holdingr@oration, Maumee, OF
(global provider of high technology driveline, dagland thermatmanagement products), where he serves on the Qaditmittee an
Compensation Committee.

Kim Metcalf-Kupres , 53, was elected a Vice President and named Ghéeketing Officer in May 2013. She previously sefa
Vice President, Strategy, Marketing and SalesénRbwer Solutions business from 2007 to May 2018. MetcalfKupres also served
Vice President, Sales and Marketing for Buildindidigncy Systems in North America and has held fpmss$ of increasing responsibil
since joining the Company in 1994.

Alex A. Molinaroli , 55, was elected Chief Executive Officer and PRiesi effective October 2013. He also serves a£tmpanys
Principal Executive Officer. He was also electedaithan of the Board of Directors in January 2014 has served as a Director si
October 2013. He previously served as Vice Chairfram January 2013 to October 2013, as a CorpMiate President from May 201
to January 2013 and as President of the CompdaPgwer Solutions business from January 2007 toalgr?013. Mr. Molinaroli serve
as Vice President and General Manager for North hgaeSystems & the Middle East for the CompanBuilding Efficiency busine:
and has held increasing levels of responsibilityclantrols systems and services sales and opesafibm Molinaroli joined the Compa
in 1983.

Jerome D. Okarma , 62, was elected a Vice President in Septembe3.286 previously served as Secretary and Genenahgab fron
November 2004 to September 2014, as Assistant taegifeom 1990 to November 2004 and as Deputy Gar@@ounsel from June 20
to November 2004. Mr. Okarma joined the Compan}d89.

Brian J. Stief , 58, was elected an Executive Vice President amiéf@inancial Officer in September 2014. He alsoves as tf
Companys Principal Financial Officer. He previously servasl Vice President and Corporate Controller fromy 2010 to Septemb
2014. Prior to joining the Company in July 2010,. I8tief was a partner with PricewaterhouseCoopem, [(an audit and assurance,
and consulting services provider) which he joired979 and in which he became partner in 1989.

Suzanne M. Vincent , 44, was elected a Vice President and Corporatgr@ter in September 2014. She also serves a€dmepanys
Principal Accounting Officer. She previously senagdVice President, Internal Audit since joining thompany in October 2012. Prio
joining the Company, Ms. Vincent was a partner VilBMG LLP, (an audit and assurance, tax and coingustervices provider) whit
she joined in November 2001 and in which she becameudit partner in October 2008.

Frank A. Voltalina , 54, was elected a Vice President and Corporagashrer in July 2003 when he joined the Companyr R
joining the Company, Mr. Voltolina was Vice Presitiand Treasurer at ArvinMeritor, Inc., (now knoas Meritor, Inc. -an automobil
component manufacturer for military suppliers, ksicand trailers).

There are no family relationships, as defined leyitistructions to this item, among the Companykscexive officers.

All officers are elected for terms that expire be tlate of the meeting of the Board of Directoto¥ang the Annual Meeting of Sharehold
or until their successors are duly-elected andifigélor until their earlier resignation or removal
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ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The shares of the Company’s common stock are traddlde New York Stock Exchange under the symbol."J

Number of Record Holders

Title of Class as of September 30, 2014
Common Stock, $1.00 par value 36,687

Common Stock Price Range Dividends

2014 2013 2014 2013
First Quarter $39.42 51.9C $24.75-30.74 $ 02z $ 0.1¢
Second Quarter 43.8%2.5C 30.30 -35.17 0.2z 0.1¢
Third Quarter 43.16 -50.71 31.95 -38.33 0.2z 0.1¢
Fourth Quarter 43.7451.6C 35.43 -43.4¢ 0.2z 0.1¢
Year $39.42 52.5C $24.7543.49 $ 08¢t $ 0.7¢

In November 2012, the Company’s Board of Direcauthorized a stock repurchase program to acquite $500 million of the Company’
outstanding common stock, which supersedes any pragrams. In September 2013, the Compamoard of Directors authorized up tc
additional $500 million in stock repurchases of @@mpanys outstanding common stock, and in November 2018 Qompany's Board
Directors authorized an additional $3.0 billion enthe stock repurchase program, both incremeantatior authorizations. Stock repurche
under the stock repurchase program may be madeghropen market, privately negotiated, or structuransactions or otherwise at tir
and in such amounts as Company management deemmpagie. The stock repurchase program does na Aavexpiration date and may
amended or terminated by the Board of Directorargt time without prior notice. The Company spenpragimately $1,249 million c
repurchases under the stock repurchase prograiscal 2014. As of November 19, 2014, the Comparsydpeent approximately $395 milli
on repurchases under the stock repurchase progréistal 2015.

The Company entered into an Equity Swap Agreentated March 13, 2009, with Citibank, N.A. (Citibankhe Company selectively u:
equity swaps to reduce market risk associated igithtockbased compensation plans, such as its deferredeswation plans. These eqt
compensation liabilities increase as the Compasigsk price increases and decrease as the Conspstiogk price decreases. In contrast
value of the Equity Swap Agreement moves in theosjip direction of these liabilities, allowing t@®mpany to fix a portion of the liabiliti
at a stated amount.

In connection with the Equity Swap Agreement, Gitik may purchase unlimited shares of the Compastygck in the market or in privat

negotiated transactions. The Company disclaimsQitdtank is an "affiliated purchaser" of the Compas such term is defined in Rule 10b-

18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act or @itibank is purchasing any shares for the Compaimg Equity Swap Agreement has
stated expiration date. The net effect of the chaimgfair value of the Equity Swap Agreement and thange in equity compensa
liabilities was not material to the Company’s enags for the three months ended September 30, 2014 .
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The following table presents information regardthg repurchase of the Compasyommon stock by the Company as part of the gy
announced program and purchases of the Compammyhmon stock by Citibank in connection with thguiey Swap Agreement during 1
three months ended September 30, 2014 .

Total Number of Shares Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Part of the Value of Shares that
Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid per Publicly Announced  May Yet be Purchased

Period Purchased Share Program under the Programs
7/1/14 - 7/31/14

Purchases by Company 1,009,37 $49.51 1,009,37 $2,400,629,83
8/1/14 - 8/31/14

Purchases by Company — — — $2,400,629,83
9/1/14 - 9/30/14

Purchases by Company — — — $2,400,629,83
7/1/14 - 7/31/14

Purchases by Citibank (1) — — — NA
8/1/14 - 8/31/14

Purchases by Citibank — — — NA
9/1/14 - 9/30/14

Purchases by Citibank — — — NA

(1) In July 2014, Citibank reduced its holding of then@pany's stock by 250,000 shares in connection twélEquity Swap Agreeme
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The following information in Item 5 is not deemexlkie "soliciting material” or to be "filed" with ¢hSEC or subject to Regulation 14/
14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (&rgk Act) or to the liabilities of Sectid8 of the Exchange Act, and will not be dee
to be incorporated by reference into any filing enthe Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange A&gtept to the extent the Comp.
specifically incorporates it by reference into sacfiling.

The line graph below compares the cumulative tstalreholder return on our Common Stock with theuative total return of compani
on the Standard & Poor’s (S&)’' 500 Stock Index and companies in our Diversifiedustrials Peer Group.* This graph assume:
investment of $100 on September 30, 2009 and theagtment of all dividends since that date.

COMPANY/INDEX Sepl? Sepll Sepll Sepl2 Sepl3 Sepld
Johnson Controls, Inc. 100 12158 106.99 113.88 176.39 19040
Diversified Industrials Peer Group 100 123.56 11522 151.08 207.98 227.82
S&P 300 Comp-Ltd. 100 110.16 11142 145.08 17313 20729
Total Return to Shareholders
Dollars
230 ‘
200
150
100 —,
30
[I T T T T
Sepld Sepld Sepll Sepl2 Sepl3 Sepld
—e— Johnson Controls, Inc. —— Diversified Industnals Peer Group —a— 3&P 300 Comp-Ltd.

* The JCI Diversified Industrials Peer Group includes: Danaher Corporation. Dover Corporation. Eaton Corporation. Emerson Electric
Corporation. Honeywell International Inc., Ingersoll Rand Plc., Thnois Tool Works Inc., 3M Company, Textron Inc., and United
Technologies Corporation.

The Company’s transfer agent’s contact informatsoas follows:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services Department
P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

(877) 602-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data reflects tiesults of operations, financial position data apdimon share information for the fis
years ended September 30, 2010 through Septemp2038 (dollars in millions, except per share dafartain amounts have been revise
reflect the retrospective application of the clisation of the Automotive Experience Electroniegsent as a discontinued operation fa
periods presented.

Year ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $ 4282t $ 4141 $ 40606 $ 39,54: $ 33,38
Segment income (1) 2,871 2,68¢ 2,34¢ 2,187 1,96¢
Income from continuing operations attributabledbrison
Controls, Inc. (6) 1,43: 1,07 1,09¢ 1,32¢ 1,32
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,21t 1,17¢ 1,18¢ 1,41¢ 1,35¢
Earnings per share from continuing operations (6)
Basic $ 218 % 15¢ $ 161 $ 19 $ 1.97
Diluted 2.12 1.5¢ 1.6C 1.9: 1.94
Return on average shareholders’ equity attributedhlmhnson
Controls, Inc. (2) (6) 12% 9% 10% 12% 14%
Capital expenditures $ 1,19¢ ¢ 137 $ 1831 $ 1,328 § 777
Depreciation and amortization 95t 952 824 731 691
Number of employees 168,00( 170,00( 170,00( 162,00( 137,00(
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital (3) $ 971 $ 1,06z $ 237 $ 1,701 $ 1,031
Total assets 32,80 31,51¢ 30,95 29,78¢ 25,85¢
Long-term debt 6,357 4,56( 5,321 4,53: 2,652
Total debt 6,68( 5,49¢ 6,06¢ 5,14¢ 3,38¢
Shareholders' equity attributable to Johnson Cés)thoc. 11,31 12,31« 11,62t 11,15¢ 10,18:
Total debt to capitalization (4) 37% 31% 34% 32% 25%
Net book value per share (5) $ 7o $ 179¢ $ 1704 $ 164 $ 1511
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Dividends per share $ 08t $ 0.7¢ $ 07z $ 064 $ 0.52
Market prices
High $ 52.5( $ 43.4¢ § 3598 $§ 429 § 35.7i
Low 39.4: 24.7¢ 23.3i 25.91 23.62
Weighted average shares (in millions)
Basic 666.¢ 683.7 681. 677.7 672.(
Diluted 674.¢ 689.2 688.¢ 689.¢ 682.
Number of shareholders 36,68 38,06" 40,01¢ 43,34( 44,62°

(1) Segment income is calculated as income from coimgnoperations before income taxes and noncomiplinterests excluding r
financing charges, significant restructuring angbénment costs, and net mark#imrket adjustments on pension and postretire
plans.

(2) Return on average shareholderquity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. (R@&)resents income from continuing operat
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. divided grage shareholders’ equity attributable to Johr@somtrols, Inc.
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3) Working capital is defined as current assess Icurrent liabilities, excluding cash, short-tetebt, the current portion of longfrr
debt, and the current portion of assets and liaslheld for sale.

4 Total debt to total capitalization represetotsil debt divided by the sum of total debt andrehalders’equity attributable to Johns
Controls, Inc.

(5) Net book value per share represents shareh’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. daddby the number of comm
shares outstanding at the end of the period.

(6) Income from continuing operations attributable tdhdson Controls, Inc. includes $324 million, $95#liom and $287 million ¢
significant restructuring and impairment costsigtdl year 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.db ahcludes $274 million, $(4C
million, $445 million, $383 million and $268 millioof net mark-tanarket charges (gains) on pension and postretireplans it
fiscal year 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010, rés@de The preceding amounts are stated on agrédasis.

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

General

The Company operates in three primary businesseitdiBg Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Pow&olutions. Building Efficienc
provides facility systems, services and workplagi@tns including comfort, energy and security mgement for the residential and non-
residential buildings markets. Automotive Experierdesigns and manufactures interior systems andupt® for passenger cars and |
trucks, including vans, piclip trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. BEo®olutions designs and manufactures automotitteries fo
the replacement and original equipment markets.

This discussion summarizes the significant facw@ffecting the consolidated operating results, faiancondition and liquidity of tt
Company for the three-year period ended Septenthe2@®L4. This discussion should be read in conjunctiorhvitiém 8, the consolidat
financial statements and the notes to consolid@edcial statements.

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganittedreportable segments within its Building Effiodg business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aesiviPrior to this reorganization, Building Effiniey was comprised of five reporta
segments for financial reporting purposes: Northefioa Systems, North America Service, Global WakplSolutions, Asia and Other. A
result of this change, Building Efficiency is nownaprised of four reportable segments for finanéglorting purposes, with the only cha
being the the combination of North America Systemd North America Service into one reportable sedralled North America Systel
and Service. Historical information has been ravigereflect the new Building Efficiency reportatsegment structure.

At March 31, 2014, the Company determined thatAitsomotive Experience Electronics segment met thier@a to be classified as
discontinued operation, which required retrospectapplication to financial information for all peds presented. Refer to Note
"Discontinued Operations," of the notes to conséd financial statements for further informati@garding the Company's discontin
operations.

Outlook

On October 30, 2014, the Company gave a prelimimamjook of its market and financial expectations fiscal 2015, saying it believ
improving markets, ongoing business portfolio cremgnd focused capital allocation strategies willlde the Company to pursue gro
markets with higher returns in the upcoming yeatdifionally, the Company announced that it expéistsal 2015 first quarter earnings fr
continuing operations, excluding transaction/indign related costs, to be $0.88-77 per diluted share. The Company will provideHe
detailed fiscal 2015 guidance at an analyst meatim@®ecember 2, 2014, which will be accessibldhopublic in a manner that the Comp
will disclose in advance.
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FISCAL YEAR 2014 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2013

Net Sales
Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Net sales $ 42.82¢ $ 41,41( 3%

The increase in consolidated net sales was duegtehsales in the Automotive Experience busingds5(billion) and Power Solutio
business ($244 million), and the favorable impddboeign currency translation ($60 million), paity offset by lower sales in the Buildi
Efficiency business ($370 million). Excluding thavbrable impact of foreign currency translationnsalidated net sales increased 39
compared to the prior year. The favorable impattigher Automotive Experience volumes globallyddrigher global battery shipments
improved pricing in the Power Solutions businessewgartially offset by lower market demand for Blinlg Efficiency in North America, tt
Middle East, Latin America and Europe. The incretaksales related to business acquisitions wer@ $@ifion across all segments. Refe
the segment analysis below within Item 7 for a aéston of net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Cost of sales $ 36,20 $ 34,94t 4%
Gross profit 6,627 6,46¢ 3%
% of sales 15.59% 15.€%

The increase in cost of sales year over year quoress to the sales growth noted above, with grosfit percentage decreasing by 10 b
points. Gross profit in the Automotive Experienagsiness was favorably impacted by higher volumebajly, and lower operating a
purchasing costs due to improved operational perdoce, partially offset by net unfavorable pricargd commercial settlements. The Pc
Solutions business was impacted by favorable prieimd product mix including lead acquisition castdl battery cores, and increased ber
of vertical integration. Gross profit in the Buitdj Efficiency business was unfavorably impacteddwer market demand in North Ameri
the Middle East, Latin America and Europe, and @mttrelated charges in the Middle East, partiaffget by strong operating performanc
Asia due to cost and pricing initiatives. Foreignrency translation had an unfavorable impact @t obsales of approximately $62 milli
Net marl-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirememtsphad a net unfavorable year over year impaatosh of sales of $2:
million ($43 million charge in fiscal 2014 comparéal a $184 million gain in fiscal 2013) primarilyuel to a decrease in year over
discount rates. Refer to the segment analysis befitlin Item 7 for a discussion of segment incorgesbgment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 4,30¢ % 3,78( 14%
% of sales 10.1% 9.1%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGiéeased by $528 million year over year, and SG#sPa percentage of sales incre
100 basis points. Net mark-toarket adjustments on pension and postretiremantsgiad a net unfavorable year over year impa&@&A
of $452 million ($231 million charge in fiscal 20b6mpared to a $221 million gain in fiscal 2013)marily due to a decrease in year ¢
year discount rates. Net pension settlement agthad a net unfavorable year over year impact o&/&6f $85 million ($16 million charg
in fiscal 2014 compared to a $69 million gain ischl 2013) primarily related to lumgum buyouts of participants in the U.S. pensiom.
The Automotive Experience business SG&A increasedarily due to higher employee related expensesijglly offset by lower engineeril
expenses, prior year distressed supplier coststtemdbenefits of cost reduction initiatives. The Rovolutions business SG&A increa
primarily due to prior year net favorable legaltisebhents and higher employee related expensesBiuiliding Efficiency business SG&
decreased primarily due to lower employee relatgoesses and other cost reduction initiatives, allytioffset by a prior year pensi
curtailment gain resulting
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from a lost Global Workplace Solutions contract drahsactiorrelated costs. Foreign currency translation hadigfavorable impact ¢
SG&A of $1 million. Refer to the segment analysétdw within Item 7 for a discussion of segment imeoby segment.

Gain (Loss) on Business Divestitures - Net

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Gain (loss) on business divestitures - net
$ (111 ¢ 7 *

* Measure not meaningful

Refer to Note 2, "Acquisitions and Divestituresf'tiee notes to consolidated financial statementsnflormation on the gain (loss) on busir
divestitures - net.

Restructuring and Impairment Costs

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Restructuring and impairment costs $ 324 $ 957 -66 %

Refer to Note 16, "Significant Restructuring andoaitment Costs," of the notes to consolidated fir@rstatements for information on
restructuring and impairment costs.

Net Financing Charges

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Net financing charges $ 244 $ 247 -1%

Net financing charges decreased slightly in fi&@l4 as compared to fiscal 2013 primarily due teelointerest expense as a result of Ic
interest rates, partially offset by higher averagerowing levels.

Equity Income

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Equity income $ 39t $ 39¢ -1%

The decrease in equity income was primarily dueprior year gains on acquisitions of a partiadkned affiliates in the Automoti
Experience business ($106 million) and lower curngear income at certain Power Solutions and BuogdEfficiency partiallyewnec
affiliates, partially offset by higher current yaacome at certain Automotive Experience partialyned affiliates and gains on acquisiti
of partially-owned affiliates in the Power Solutions busined® (®illion) and Building Efficiency business ($19llion). Refer to the segme
analysis below within Item 7 for a discussion ajrsent income by segment.

Income Tax Provision

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Income tax provision $ 48z $ 69¢€ -31%

* Measure not meaningful

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory fatefiscal 2014primarily due to the benefits of continuing glolak planning initiatives ar
income in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions with a take lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate, pytoffset by the
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tax consequences of business divestitures, signifiestructuring and impairment costs, the chamgessertion over reinvestment of fore
undistributed earnings related to the Global WakplSolutions business and valuation allowancestdgnts. The effective rate is above
U.S. statutory rate for fiscal 203&imarily due to the tax consequences of significastructuring and impairment costs, and valui
allowance and uncertain tax position adjustmenastigily offset by favorable tax audit resolutionlee benefits of continuing global 1
planning initiatives and income in certain noOrs. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than theSUstatutory tax rate. Refer to Note
"Income Taxes," of the notes to consolidated fitaratatements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedeftax asset valuation allowances on a quartedisbar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiredidtermining the requirement for a valuation alowae, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groepording the net deferred tax asset are considaledg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthito@ompanys valuation allowances m
be necessary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014he Company performed an analysis related toghkzability of its worldwide deferred tax asseAs. ¢
result, and after considering tax planning initiati and other positive and negative evidence, trapany determined that it was more lik
than not that deferred tax assets within Italy wlaubt be realized. Therefore, the Company recof&Bzdmillion of net valuation allowanc
as income tax expense in the three month periodd=8éptember 30, 2014 .

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Companyedined that it was more likely than not that tleferred tax asset associated with a c¢
loss in Mexico would not be utilized. Thereforeg Bompany recorded a $21 million valuation alloweaas income tax expense.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compamyedmined that it was more likely than not thatedefd tax assets within Germany
Poland would not be realized. The Company alsorated that it was more likely than not that thdedeed tax assets within two Frel
Power Solutions entities would be realized. Therfthe Company recorded $145 million of net vabragllowances as income tax expe
in the three month period ended September 30, 2013.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compagterdhined that it was more likely than not thatoatipn of the deferred tax assets wit
Brazil and Germany would not be realized. Thereftire Company recorded $94 million of valuatiomwances as income tax expense.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the HrS. numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isiiregl in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relassets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehef Companys business, there are m.
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, tax audit fesions resulted in a net $79 million benefit tcame tax expense.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

The Company'’s federal income tax returns and certanU.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearaae under various stages of a
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh@-tax authorities. Although the outcome of taxlits is always uncertain, managen
believes that it has appropriate support for tha&tfmms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtaxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposelebtaking authorities. At September 30, 2014, then@any had recorded a liability for
best estimate of the probable loss on certain sofak positions, the majority of which is included other noncurrent liabilities in tl
consolidated statements of financial position. Nbeakess, the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upesolution of the issues raised by
taxing authorities may differ materially from thmaunts accrued for each year.

It is reasonably possible that certain tax exanonat appellate proceedings and/or tax litigatialh @@nclude within the next twelve mont|
the impact of which could be up to a $50 milliofjustinent to tax expense.
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Other Tax Matters

During fiscal 2014 and 2013, the Company incuriigdiicant charges for restructuring and impairmeosts. Refer to Note 16, "Significi
Restructuring and Impairment Costs," of the nadesoinsolidated financial statements for additianfdrmation. A substantial portion of the
charges cannot be benefited for tax purposes doartaurrent tax position in these jurisdictionsl dhe underlying tax basis in the impal
assets, thus causing $75 million and $229 milllmrémental tax expense in fiscal 2014 and 201Becwvely.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compaecorded a discrete tax benefit of $51 milliare do change in entity status.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compampvided income tax expense on the foreign undisteith earnings of the nda:-S.
subsidiaries related to the Global Workplace Sohgibusiness, which resulted in $35 million of éagpense.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Companspdised of its Automotive Experience Interiors higedland sun visor product lines. Refe
Note 2, "Acquisitions and Divestitures," of the @®to consolidated financial statements for adufiianformation. As a result, the Compi
recorded a préax loss on divestiture of $95 million and incorag expense of $38 million. The income tax expeashie to the jurisdiction
mix of gains and losses on the sale, which resiuttedn-benefited losses in certain countries amdlile gains in other countries.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compangoteed certain Mexican tax issues, which resulted 61 million benefit to income t
expense.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

The "look-through rule," under subpart F of the Ur8ernal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyseptember 30, 2014 . The "look-
through rule" had provided an exception to the Walation of certain income generated by foreigbsgliaries. It is generally thought t
this rule will be extended with the possibility mftroactive application. The "lodkrough rule" previously expired for the Company
September 30, 2012 but was extended in Januaryr2irt&ctive to the beginning of the Company's 208l year.

As a result of changes to Mexican tax law in thstfquarter of fiscal 2014, the Company recorddzbmefit to income tax expense of !
million. Tax legislation was also adopted in vagather jurisdictions during the fiscal year en&egtember 30, 2014. These law change
not have a material impact on the Company's catest@d financial statements.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

Income (Loss) From Discontinued Operations, Net ofax

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of tax $ (218 $ 101 *

* Measure not meaningful

The change in income (loss) from discontinued apers, net of tax, was primarily due to a prior ygain, net of tax, of $257 million relai
to the sale of the Automotive Experience ElectrenidomeLink® product line, a fiscal 2014 discretenash tax charge of $180 milli
related to the repatriation of foreign cash asdediwith the divestiture of the Electronics bussaad $80 million of divestiture related los
recorded in fiscal 2014, partially offset by a &013 tax charge of $210 million related to fgreundistributed earnings of the nbnS.
subsidiaries related to the Electronics business.

Refer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operations," of tlides to consolidated financial statements foihfrinformation regarding the Compat
discontinued operations.
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Income from Continuing Operations Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Income from continuing operations attributable
to noncontrolling interests $ 12C $ 114 5%

The increase in income from continuing operatidirisbaitable to noncontrolling interests for fis@il14 was primarily due to higher incom
certain Automotive Experience and Building Efficdgrpartially-owned affiliates, partially offset by lower incorak certain Power Solutio
partially-owned affiliates and the effects of anrgase in ownership percentage in a Power Solupiart&@lly-owned affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,21t $ 1,17¢ 3%

The increase in net income attributable to Johr@omtrols, Inc. was primarily due to lower restruatg and impairment costs, a decreas
the income tax provision and higher gross profaytiplly offset by higher selling, general and adistrative expenses, a loss fr
discontinued operations, and a loss on businessiitiures. Fiscal 201diluted earnings per share attributable to Johr@omtrols, Inc. we
$1.80 compared to $1.71 in fiscal 2013.

Segment Analysis
Management evaluates the performance of its busimeiss based primarily on segment income, whialfeiined as income from continu
operations before income taxes and noncontrolliimegrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring and impairment co

and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension astigtirement plans.

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change
North America Systems and Service $ 4,33t $ 4,49; 3% $ 458 3 50¢€ -1C%
Global Workplace Solutions 4,07¢ 4,26¢ -4 % 95 11z -1€%
Asia 2,06¢ 2,022 2% 33¢€ 277 21%
Other 3,68( 3,81z -3% 44 88 -5C %
$ 14,16¢ $ 14,59 3% $ 93C $ 984 -5%
Net Sales
. The decrease in North America Systems and Servasedue to lower volumes of equipment, controlsesystand energy solutic

($132 million), and the unfavorable impact of fgmicurrency translation ($24 million).

. The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions wastdulest customer accounts and lower project wog6gmillion), partially offse
by incremental sales from a prior year businessiiaitgpn ($66 million) and the favorable impactfofeign currency translation ($
million).

. The increase in Asia was due to higher volumesgafment and controls systems ($74 million), arghbt service volumes ($

million), partially offset by the unfavorable impaaf foreign currency translation ($51 million).

. The decrease in Other was due to lower volumetectta a prior period business divestiture ($228ian), and lower volumes in tl
Middle East ($156 million), Latin America ($58 nidlh) and Europe ($28 million), partially offset by
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incremental sales related to a business acquis{®@76 million), higher volumes in unitary produd44 million) and othe
businesses ($9 million), and the favorable impé&ébeign currency translation ($6 million).

Segment Income:

. The decrease in North America Systems and Servdcedue to unfavorable mix and margin rates ($116om), lower volumes ($2
million), a prior year pension settlement gain ($@ilion), net unfavorable current year contradated charges ($9 million), t
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translat{§8 million) and a current year pension settlentess ($3 million), partially offs
by lower selling, general and administrative exgsn&118 million).

. The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions wastduie indemnification of certain costs associatéith a previously diveste
business ($25 million), a prior year pension clmant gain resulting from a lost contract net dfestcontract losses ($24 million’
prior year pension settlement gain ($14 millioojvér volumes ($13 million) and a current year pemsettlement loss ($4 milliol
partially offset by lower selling, general and adisirative expenses ($46 million), and favorablegimarates ($16 million).

. The increase in Asia was due to higher volumes (®#Bon), favorable margin rates ($19 million) amdgain on acquisition
partially-owned affiliates ($19 million), partially offset the unfavorable impact of foreign currency tratista ($7 million), an
higher selling, general and administrative expei$&snillion).

. The decrease in Other was due to net unfavorabierduyear contract related charges in the MiddstE$50 million), lowe
volumes ($40 million), acquisition related cost&{$nillion), lower equity income ($12 million) aradprior year pension settlem
gain ($2 million), partially offset by lower selljp general and administrative expenses ($27 mjllianprior year loss on busin
divestiture including transaction costs ($22 millipincremental operating income due to a busirsspiisition ($20 million
favorable margin rates ($8 million), net unfavomlplrior year contract related charges ($7 milliany higher operating incot
related to a prior year business divestiture ($an).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Loss)
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change
Seating $ 1753 $ 16,28t 8% $ 88C $ 71C 24%
Interiors 4,501 4,17¢ 8% 6 12 *

$ 2203 $ 2046 8% $ 88t $ 69¢ 27%
* Measure not meaningful
Net Sales
. The increase in Seating was due to higher volur$ig® (billion), incremental sales related to bussnasquisitions ($139 millior

favorable sales mix ($115 million) and the favoeabhpact of foreign currency translation ($44 roitl), partially offset by lowt
volumes due to a prior year business divestitus8 (@illion), and net unfavorable pricing and comaigrsettlements ($25 million).

. The increase in Interiors was due to higher volu($846 million), net favorable pricing and commatdettlements ($79 millior
and the favorable impact of foreign currency tratish ($43 million), partially offset by lower vales related to busine
divestitures ($134 million) and unfavorable salds (9 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in Seating was due to higher volui®&85 million), lower operating costs ($130 millipigwer purchasing costs ($
million), higher equity income ($71 million), prigrear distressed supplier costs ($21 million), lowagineering expenses (¢
million), incremental operating income due to besm acquisitions ($9 million) and the favorable actpof foreign currenc
translation ($4 million), partially offset by prigiear gains on acquisitions of partiatyrned affiliates ($106 million), higher sellit
general and administrative expenses ($80 millina),unfavorable pricing and commercial settlemé &8 million), unfavorable m
($51 million), a prior year gain on business diitast ($29
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million), a prior year pension settlement gain ($®illion), lower operating income due to a priorayebusiness divestiture (
million) and a current year pension settlement (8gdsmillion).

. The increase in Interiors was due to higher volufg&® million), lower operating costs ($50 milligrjigher equity income ($:
million) and lower purchasing costs ($6 milliongrpally offset by a net loss on business divesgu$86 million), lower operatil
income due to a business divestiture ($15 milliomfavorable mix ($10 million), net unfavorableging and commercial settleme
($8 million), a prior year pension settlement géid million), higher engineering expenses ($2 miil)i and a current year pens
settlement loss ($1 million).

Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Net sales $ 6,63 $ 6,35¢ 4%
Segment income 1,061 1,004 6%
. Net sales increased due to incremental sales detate business acquisition ($141 million), higlsaies volumes ($74 millior

favorable pricing and product mix ($48 million),catihe favorable impact of foreign currency transla($30 million), partially offse
by the impact of lower lead costs on pricing ($1ifliom).

. Segment income increased due to favorable prodirctimoluding lead acquisition costs and batteryesof$81 million), lowe
operating costs ($54 million), higher volumes ($2lllion), a gain on acquisition of a partialpwned affiliate ($19 million
incremental operating income related to a busiaegsiisition ($14 million) and the favorable impaétforeign currency translatis
($3 million), partially offset by higher sellingegeral and administrative expenses ($54 milliorirpyear favorable legal settleme
($20 million), higher transportation costs ($20lioil), a prior year change in asset retirementgattions ($17 million), a prior ye
pension settlement gain ($16 million), a currerdrygension settlement loss ($4 million) and lowarity income ($4 million).
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FISCAL YEAR 2013 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2012

Net Sales
Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net sales $ 41,41C $ 40,60+ 2%

The increase in consolidated net sales was duégt@hsales in the Automotive Experience busin&6d§ million) and Power Solutio
business ($459 million), partially offset by thefawvorable impact of foreign currency translatior238$ million) and lower sales in t
Building Efficiency business ($35 million). Exclumj the unfavorable impact of foreign currency ttatisn, consolidated net sales incre:
3% as compared to fiscal 2012. The favorable ingathigher Automotive Experience volumes in Nokimerica and Europe, higher glo
battery shipments and improved pricing in the Po@elutions business, and improved market conditionthe North America resident
market were partially offset by softness in globailding demand. Refer to the segment analysisvb&dhin Item 7 for a discussion of t
sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Cost of sales $ 34,94t % 34,76 1%
Gross profit 6,46¢ 5,83 11%
% of sales 15.6% 14.4%

The increase in total cost of sales year over gearesponds to the sales growth noted above, witksgprofit as a percentage of s
increasing by 120 basis points. Gross profit in Awgomotive Experience business was favorably ingghdy higher volumes and lov
purchasing costs, partially offset by higher oparatosts, and net unfavorable commercial settlésnand pricing. The Power Solutic
business experienced favorable pricing and prochirct higher volumes and increased benefits of gatiintegration including the incremer
contribution of the Company's battery recyclingilfac Gross profit in the Building Efficiency buséss experienced favorable margin ri
and benefited year over year from improved labibization and pricing initiatives. Foreign currentgnslation had a favorable impact on
of sales of approximately $205 million. Net markat@rket adjustments on pension and postretiremansgiad a net favorable year over
impact on cost of sales of $216 million ($184 mifligain in fiscal 2013 compared to a $32 milliomrgfe in fiscal 2012) primarily due to
increase in year over year discount rates and &lerasset return experience, partially offset gsumption changes for certain nors.
plans. Refer to the segment analysis below witteamI7 for a discussion of segment income by segment

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 3,780 % 4,311 -12%
% of sales 9.1% 10.6%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGé&greased by $531 million year over year, and S@&A percentage of sales decre
by 150 basis points. The favorable impact of netkat@-market adjustments on pension and postretiremamisph SG&A increased ye
over year by $634 million ($221 million gain inde 2013 compared to a $413 million charge in fi&€Hd2) primarily due to an increase
year over year discount rates and favorable astetnr experience, partially offset by assumptioanges for certain n-U.S. plans. |
addition, a pension settlement gain recorded irfdbeth quarter of fiscal 2013 related to a lusym buyout of deferred vested participan
the U.S. pension plan had a favorable impact on 86&$69 million. Power Solutions business SG&A aexsed primarily due to favora
legal settlements and a fiscal 2012 impairmentrofquity investment, partially offset by higher dayge related expenses. Automo
Experience business SG&A increased primarily dugigber engineering and employee related expeBagisling Efficiency business SG&
increased primarily due to higher employee rel&egenses, partially offset by cost reduction progrand a fiscal 2013 pension curtailn
gain resulting
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from a lost Global Workplace Solutions contractréign currency translation had a favorable impacS&&A of $17 million. Refer to tt
segment analysis below within Item 7 for a discmwsgif segment income by segment.

Gain on Business Divestitures - Net

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Gain on business divestitures - net $ 7 % 40 -83%

Refer to Note 2, "Acquisitions and Divestituresf'tbe notes to consolidated financial statementsirfformation on the gain on busin
divestitures - net.

Restructuring and Impairment Costs

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Restructuring and impairment costs $ 957 $ 287 *

* Measure not meaningful

Refer to Note 16, "Significant Restructuring andpitment Costs," of the notes to consolidated firgrstatements for information on
restructuring and impairment costs.

Net Financing Charges

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net financing charges $ 247 $ 231 7%

The increase in net financing charges was primatilg to higher interest expense as a result ofehiglebt levels during fiscal 2013
compared to fiscal 2012.

Equity Income

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Equity income $ 39¢ $ 33¢ 18%

The increase in equity income was primarily dugams on acquisitions of partiallywned affiliates in the Automotive Experience best
($106 million), partially offset by a fiscal 2012demption of a warrant for an existing partiadhyned affiliate in the Power Solutions busir
($25 million), a fiscal 2012 equity interest gamthe Automotive Experience business ($15 millianyl a fiscal 2012 equity interest gair
acquisition of a partiallpwned affiliate in the Power Solutions businessr{@ion). Refer to the segment analysis below witlhem 7 for :
discussion of segment income by segment.

Income Tax Provision

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Income tax provision $ 69€¢ $ 161 *

* Measure not meaningful

The effective rate is above the U.S. statutory fatdiscal 2013 primarily due to significant rastturing and impairment costs and valua
allowance and uncertain tax position adjustmerggjally offset by favorable tax audit resolutiottse benefits of
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continuing global tax planning initiatives and imo@ in certain noid.S. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than the&SUstatutory tax rate. T
effective rate is below the U.S. statutory rateffecal 2012 primarily due to continuing global takanning initiatives and income in cert
non-U.S. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower thare th.S. statutory tax rate. Refer to Note 18, "Inedhaxes," of the notes to consolide
financial statements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedeftax asset valuation allowances on a quartedisbar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation alowae, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groepording the net deferred tax asset are considaledg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthito@ompanys valuation allowances m
be necessary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compaeyfprmed an analysis related to the realizabilftyt® worldwide deferred tax assets. A
result, and after considering tax planning initiati and other positive and negative evidence, trapany determined that it was more lik
than not that deferred tax assets within GermamulyRoland would not be realized. The Company alsergened that it was more likely th
not that the deferred tax assets within two FrePaiver Solutions entities would be realized. Theesfthe Company recorded $145 millio
net valuation allowances as income tax expendeeithiree month period ended September 30, 2013.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compagterdhined that it was more likely than not thatoatipn of the deferred tax assets wit
Brazil and Germany would not be realized. Thereftire Company recorded $94 million of valuatiomwances as income tax expense.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overalldgase to its valuation allowances of $47 milliomarily due to a discrete period inco
tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fouqtlarter of fiscal 2012, the Company determinedlith@as more likely than not that defer
tax assets within Power Solutions in China would m® realized. Therefore, the Company recorded &arfilion valuation allowance
income tax expense in the three month period eSeptember 30, 2012.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the HrS. numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isiiregl in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relaissets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehef Companys business, there are m.
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, tax audit fesions resulted in a net $79 million benefit tcame tax expense.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

As a result of certain events related to priorgkenning initiatives, during the third quarter efdal 2012, the Company reduced the resen
uncertain tax positions by $22 million, including3million of interest and penalties, resultingaibenefit to income tax expense.

The Company'’s federal income tax returns and certanU.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearaae under various stages of a
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh@-tax authorities. Although the outcome of taxdits is always uncertain, managen
believes that it has appropriate support for tha&tfmms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtaxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposelebtaking authorities. At September 30, 2013, then@any had recorded a liability for
best estimate of the probable loss on certain sofak positions, the majority of which is included other noncurrent liabilities in tl
consolidated statements of financial position. Nbeakess, the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upesolution of the issues raised by
taxing authorities may differ materially from thmaunts accrued for each year.

Other Tax Matters
During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company incuriigdiScant charges for restructuring and impairmeosts. Refer to Note 16, "Significi
Restructuring and Impairment Costs," of the natesonsolidated financial statements for additionidrmation. A substantial portion of the

charges cannot be benefited for tax purposes daertourrent tax position in these jurisdictionslan
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the underlying tax basis in the impaired assetss tausing $229 million and $78 million incremeritat expense in fiscal 2013 and 2(
respectively.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compangoteed certain Mexican tax issues, which resulted 61 million benefit to income t
expense.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

The "look-through rule,” under subpart F of the Ur8ernal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyseptember 30, 2012. The "look-
through rule" had provided an exception to the WaRation of certain income generated by foreigbsgliaries. The rule was extende:
January 2013 retroactive to the beginning of then@any's 2013 fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20¥2egislation was adopted in Japan which reducedtétutory income tax rate by 5%. A
tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictida limit the annual utilization of tax lossestthse carried forward. None of these chal
had a material impact on the Company’s consolidftechcial condition, results of operations or célslws.

Income From Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 101 $ 85 19%

The increase in income from discontinued operatiaes$ of tax, was primarily due to a gain, netaf,tof $257 million related to the fis
2013 sale of the Automotive Experience ElectronitaieLink® product line, partially offset by a fiscal 2013 talkarge of $210 millic
related to foreign undistributed earnings of the-bbS. subsidiaries primarily related to the Elecicerbusiness, and higher selling, ger
and administrative expenses.

Refer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operations," of tliges to consolidated financial statements foihfmrinformation regarding the Compat
discontinued operations.

Income from Continuing Operations Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Income from continuing operations attributable to
noncontrolling interests $ 114 $ 12€ -10%

The decrease in income attributable to noncontlinterests was primarily due to the effects ofiramrease in the Company's owner:
percentage in an Automotive Experience partiallyred affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,17¢  $ 1,18¢ 1%

The decrease in net income attributable to Joh@mntrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher restaittg and impairment costs, higher
financing charges, an increase in the income taxigion and the unfavorable impact of foreign cncetranslation, partially offset by higt
gross profit, lower selling, general and admintsieexpenses, incremental gains on business divest
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net of transaction costs, higher equity income lamgr income attributable to noncontrolling intesed-iscal 2013 diluted earnings per s
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. was $1. #hgared to $1.72 in fiscal 2012.

Segment Analysis
Management evaluates the performance of its busimeiss based primarily on segment income, whialfeiined as income from continu
operations before income taxes and noncontrollimegrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring and impairment co

and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension astigtirement plans.

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
North America Systems and Service $ 4,49; $ 4,53¢ 1% $ 50€ $ 44¢ 13%
Global Workplace Solutions 4,26¢ 4,29¢ 1% 11z 51 *
Asia 2,02% 1,987 2% 277 26¢€ 4%
Other 3,81: 3,90( 2% 88 14C -37%
$ 1459 $ 14,71 1% $ 984 ¢ 90¢€ 9%
* Measure not meaningful
Net Sales
. The decrease in North America Systems and Sewas due to a reduction in trubksed volumes ($46 million), lower volume:

equipment and controls systems ($25 million), dreunfavorable impact of foreign currency transtati$3 million), partially offse
by higher energy solutions volumes ($32 million).

. The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions wastdwenet decrease in services to new and exististpmers ($109 million) ai
the unfavorable impact of foreign currency transta{$26 million), partially offset by incrementsales from a business acquisi
($106 million).

. The increase in Asia was due to higher volumesgofenent and controls ($47 million), and highervgss volumes ($30 million

partially offset by the unfavorable impact of fapeicurrency translation ($42 million).

. The decrease in Other was due to fiscal 2012 diuess$ ($67 million), lower volumes in the Middlea& ($64 million) and Euro
($54 million), and the unfavorable impact of foreigurrency translation ($18 million), partially sét by higher volumes in unit:
products ($66 million), Latin America ($23 millioand other businesses ($26 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in North America Systems and Serviag due to favorable mix and margin rates ($87 omli a pension settlem
gain ($12 million) and a fiscal 2012 loss on busmalivestitures ($3 million), partially offset byigher selling, general a
administrative expenses ($24 million), and loweluares ($21 million).

. The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was @uéavorable margin rates ($47 million), a pensgumtailment gain resultir
from a lost contract net of other contract cos&4(#illion), a pension settlement gain ($14 mil)ioimcremental operating incol
from a business acquisition ($3 million), higheuigg income ($1 million) and the favorable impadtforeign currency translatic
($1 million), partially offset by lower volumes ($Inillion), and higher selling, general and adntiaisve expenses ($14 million).

. The increase in Asia was due to favorable margiesré$32 million) and higher volumes ($19 milliopjgrtially offset by highe
selling, general and administrative expenses ($8Hon), the unfavorable impact of foreign currentwnslation ($5 million) ar
lower equity income ($1 million).

. The decrease in Other was due to fiscal 2012 gairtsusiness divestitures net of transaction c@gt3 (nillion), a fiscal 2013 loss
business divestiture including transaction cos22 (fillion), higher selling, general and adminisitra expenses ($21 million), low
operating income due to fiscal 2012 divestitureisl(fillion), contract related charges ($7
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million) and the unfavorable impact of foreign @mcy translation ($2 million), partially offset Hgvorable margin rates ($
million), higher equity income ($3 million) and ampsion settlement gain ($2 million).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Loss)
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Seating $ 16,28 $ 15,85 3% $ 71C % 682 4%
Interiors 4,17¢ 4,12¢ 1% (12 (29 -48 %

$ 20462 $ 19,98 2% $ 69¢ $ 66C 6 %
Net Sales
. The increase in Seating was due to higher voluméiset Company's major OEM customers ($407 milliamremental sales due

business acquisitions ($89 million), favorable satex ($75 million), and the fiscal 2012 negatiwgpact of the flooding in Thailal
and related events ($25 million), partially offést the unfavorable impact of foreign currency ttatisn ($147 million) and lowt
volumes due to a business divestiture ($18 million)

. The increase in Interiors was due to higher voluioethe Company's major OEM customers ($38 millianyl the favorable imp:
of foreign currency translation ($9 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in Seating was due to gains onisitiqus of partiallyewned affiliates ($106 million), higher volumes @illion),
lower purchasing costs ($54 million), a gain onibess divestiture ($29 million), a pension settlatngain ($21 million), the fisc
2012 negative impact of the flooding in Thailandl aalated events ($6 million), and incremental afieg income due to a busin
acquisition ($4 million), partially offset by nehfavorable pricing and commercial settlements (86on), higher selling, gener
and administrative expenses ($61 million), unfabtegamix ($42 million), higher operating costs ($@8llion), distressed suppli
costs ($21 million), higher engineering and launchts ($17 million), lower equity income includiadiscal 2012 equity interest g.
($14 million), litigation charges ($10 million), élunfavorable impact of foreign currency transkai$7 million) and lower operatii
income due to a business divestiture ($5 million).

. The increase in Interiors was due to net favorglieing and commercial settlements ($49 milliorgwér operating costs ($
million), higher volumes ($7 million), favorable m{$6 million), a pension settlement gain ($4 roiflj and the favorable impact
foreign currency translation ($2 million), partiabffset by higher engineering and launch cost$8 ($dlion), higher selling, genei
and administrative expenses ($25 million), higherchasing costs ($17 million), distressed suppiests ($2 million) and low
equity income ($1 million).

Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net sales $ 6,35¢ $ 5,90¢ 8%
Segment income 1,004 783 28%
. Net sales increased due to favorable pricing andymt mix ($223 million), higher sales volumes ($Xillion) and the impact |

higher lead costs on pricing ($64 million), patfiadffset by the unfavorable impact of foreign @y translation ($7 million).

. Segment income increased due to favorable prodictimoluding lead acquisition costs and batteryeso($187 million), hight
volumes ($29 million), favorable legal settleme(®#20 million), a pension settlement gain ($16 roill), a fiscal 2012 impairment
an equity investment ($14 million), change in assttement obligations ($7 million) and higher ggincome ($2 million), partiall
offset by a fiscal 2012 gain on redemption of aramir for an existing partiallpwned affiliate ($25 million), higher selling, gemal
and administrative expenses ($15 million), a fifl2 gain on
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acquisition of a partiallpwned affiliate ($9 million), higher net operatiagd transportation costs ($4 million), and the uafable
impact of foreign currency translation ($1 million)

GOODWILL, LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Goodwill at September 30, 201Mas $7.1 billion, $538 million higher than the prigear. The increase was primarily due to the s
acquisitions in the Building Efficiency Other andviRer Solutions segments, partially offset by thelassification of goodwill as assets t
for sale for the Building Efficiency Global Workpla Solutions segment and impairment in the Buildifficiency Other segment,
discussed below.

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable asstets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ajger or more frequently if events or changes inurnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment revieasits reporting units, which have been determitedbe the Compang’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segnierdsrtain instances, using a fair value methogsetaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddae received to sell the unit as a whol
an orderly transaction between market participattthe measurement date. In estimating the faweyathe Company uses multiples
earnings based on the average of historical, hédismultiples of earnings of comparable entitiethvgimilar operations and econol
characteristics. In certain instances, the Compe®g discounted cash flow analyses or estimated paice to further support the fair ve
estimates. The inputs utilized in the analyse<kassified as Level 3 inputs within the fair vahierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Ve
Measurement.” The estimated fair value is then @eg with the carrying amount of the reporting uimtluding recorded goodwill. Tl
Company is subject to financial statement riskhéxtent that the carrying amount exceeds thmatsd fair value.

During fiscal 2014, as a result of recent operatagylts, restructuring actions and expected fyuoéitability, the Company's forecasted ¢
flow estimates used in the goodwill assessment wegatively impacted as of September 30, 2014herBuilding Efficiency Other Latin
America reporting unit. As a result, the Compangaoded that the carrying value of the Buildingi&é&ncy Other Latin America reportin
unit exceeded its fair value as of September 30420he Company recorded a goodwill impairment geaof $47 millionin the fourtt
quarter of fiscal 2014, which was determined by paring the carrying value of the reporting unit®dwill with the implied fair value «
goodwill for the reporting unit. The Building Effency Other -Latin America reporting unit has no remaining goddat September 3
2014.

The Company's impairment testing in the fourth tpraof fiscal 2014 indicated that the estimated ¥aiue of the Building Efficiency Other -
Middle East reporting unit exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including goodwill by approximigt 9%. Accordingly, the Compa
has not recognized any impairment of goodwill aisged with this reporting unit, which as of SeptemB0, 2014 had a goodwill balance
$85 million. The Company continuously monitors fevents and circumstances that could negatively dmnplze key assumptions
determining fair value, including lontgrm revenue growth projections, profitability, cbsint rates, recent market valuations from tramnsas
by comparable companies, volatility in the Compsaumyarket capitalization, and general industry, raaand macr@conomic conditions. It
possible that future changes in such circumstanmed the variables associated with the judgmeassumptions and estimates use
assessing the fair value of the reporting unit, Weaquire the Company to record a nmash impairment charge. Except as described &
no other reporting units were determined to beskt of failing step one of the goodwill impairmeest as the impairment testing perfori
indicated that the estimated fair value of eacloripy unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorc
goodwill at September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

During fiscal 2013, based on a combination of festoncluding the recent operating results of theotnotive Experience Interiors busine
restrictions on future capital and restructuringdimg, and the Company's announced intention tdoexpstrategic options related to 1
business, the Company's forecasted cash flow gssmeed in the goodwill assessment were negativgdgcted as of September 30, 2(
As a result, the Company concluded that the cagryalue of the Interiors reporting unit exceedsdair value as of September 30, 2013.
Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge &0bdillion in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, iwh was determined by comparing
carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill withe implied fair value of goodwill for the repioig unit.

The assumptions included in the impairment tesisiire judgment, and changes to these inputs coofhét the results of the calculatic
Other than management's internal projections afréutash flows, the primary assumptions used inrtfmairment tests were the weighted-
average cost of capital and lotegm growth rates. Although the Company's cash florgcasts are based on assumptions that are eoec
reasonable by management and consistent with #res@nd estimates management is using to opeetentterlying businesses, there
significant judgments in determining the expectatlife cash flows attributable to a reporting umite impairment charges are ncast
expenses recorded within restructuring and impaitroests on the
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consolidated statements of income and did not adleaffect the Company's debt position, cash floyuidity or compliance with financi
covenants.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are alsbject to at least annual impairment testing. Asiderable amount of management judgr
and assumptions are required in performing the imEnt tests. While the Company believes the judgmand assumptions used in
impairment tests are reasonable and no impairmdsted at September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, diifeassumptions could change
estimated fair values and, therefore, impairmeat@és could be required, which could be materitthéoconsolidated financial statements.

The Company reviews lonlgred assets, including property, plant and equipinaad other intangible assets with definite liies,impairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the asset’carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Campanducts i
long-lived asset impairment analyses in accordavitte ASC 360-10-15, "Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets." ASC 360-105
requires the Company to group assets and lialsildiethe lowest level for which identifiable castwis are largely independent of the ¢
flows of other assets and liabilities and evaldh&easset group against the sum of the undiscodutee cash flows. If the undiscounted ¢
flows do not indicate the carrying amount of theedss recoverable, an impairment charge is medsaasehe amount by which the carry
amount of the asset group exceeds its fair valsedan discounted cash flow analysis or appraisals.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2014 thompany concluded it had triggering events réggiiassessment of impairment for cer
of its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructurangions announced in fiscal 2014. In addition,ha fourth quarter of fiscal 201
the Company concluded that it had a triggering evequiring assessment of impairment of ldivgd assets held by the Building Efficier
Other - Latin America reporting unit due to the miqment of goodwill in the quarter. As a resule ompany reviewed the lotiged assel
for impairment and recorded a $91 million impairteharge within restructuring and impairment caststhe consolidated statemen
income, of which $45 million was recorded in the@dhuarter and $46 million in the fourth quartérfiscal 2014. Of the total impairme
charge, $45 million related to the Automotive Expece Interiors segment, $34 million related to Buglding Efficiency Other segment,
million related to the Automotive Experience Segtsegment and $5 million related to corporate as$etaddition, the Company recori
$43 million of asset and investment impairmentimidiscontinued operations in the third quartefisfal 2014 related to the divestiture
the Automotive Experience Electronics businesseR#&l Note 3, "Discontinued Operations,” and Node "Significant Restructuring a
Impairment Costs," of the notes to consolidatedriirial statements for additional information. Thpairment was measured, dependin
the asset, either under an income approach uglibrecasted discounted cash flows or a marketoggpr utilizing an appraisal to deterrr
fair values of the impairment assets. These methoelssonsistent with the methods the Company ereplay prior periods to value otl
long-ived assets. The inputs utilized in the analyseschassified as Level 3 inputs within the fairw@hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "I
Value Measurement.”

In the second, third and fourth quarters of fifal3, the Company concluded it had a triggeringiekequiring assessment of impairmen
certain of its londived assets in conjunction with its restructuraagions announced in fiscal 2013. In addition,hia fourth quarter of fisc
2013, the Company concluded that it had a triggeenent requiring assessment of impairment for ltrgived assets held by t
Automotive Experience Interiors segment due toittgairment of goodwill in the quarter. As a restiie Company reviewed the lotiged
assets for impairment and recorded a $156 milliopairment charge within restructuring and impairtrests on the consolidated stater
of income, of which $13 million was recorded in gexond quarter, $36 million in the third quarted 107 million in the fourth quarter
fiscal 2013. Of the total impairment charge, $5Tiam related to the Automotive Experience Intesicegment, $40 million related to
Building Efficiency Other segment, $22 million ridd to the Automotive Experience Seating segmel®, iillion related to the Pow
Solutions segment, $12 million related to corpoeseets and $7 million related to various segmeiitsn the Building Efficiency busines
Refer to Note 16, "Significant Restructuring andplimment Costs," of the notes to consolidated fitelnstatements for additior
information. The impairment was measured, dependimghe asset, either under an income approadhkingilforecasted discounted c.
flows or a market approach utilizing an appraisatétermine fair values of the impairment assetes€ methods are consistent with
methods the Company employed in prior periods taevather longived assets. The inputs utilized in the analygesctassified as Level
inputs within the fair value hierarchy as definedNSC 820, "Fair Value Measurement."

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 tBompany concluded it had a triggering event raggiassessment of impairment for cer
of its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructuranggions announced in fiscal 2012. In addition,he fourth quarter of fiscal 201
the Company concluded it had a triggering eventirety assessment of impairment for certain ofatgydived assets due to volume decli
in the European automotive markets. As a resudt,Gompany reviewed the long-lived assets for inmait and recorded $39 million
impairment charge within restructuring and impaintneosts on the consolidated statement of incoimehich $3 millionwas recorded in tt
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quartdrfiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $tillion related to the Power Solutic
segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Bxgrece Interiors segment, $4 millioalated to the Building Efficiency Other segmendl
$10 million related to corporate assets. Refer
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to Note 16, "Significant Restructuring and Impainh€osts," of the notes to consolidated finandialesnents for additional information. 1
impairment was measured, depending on the as#le¢r @inder an income approach utilizing forecastisdounted cash flows or a mai
approach utilizing an appraisal to determine faiues of the impairment assets. These methodsoasstent with the methods the Comg
employed in prior periods to value other ldihgd assets. The inputs utilized in the analysesctassified as Level 3 inputs within the
value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Vdileasurement."

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compa&apnded an impairment charge related to an invedtinenarketable common stock du
the investeas bankruptcy announcement in March 2012. As a tiethid Company recorded a $14 million impairmerdrgle within selling
general, and administrative expenses in the PowiertiSns segment. The impairment reduced the imvest to zero and was measured u
a market approach using the publicized share pfibe. inputs utilized in the analysis are classifedLevel 1 inputs within the fair val
hierarchy as defined in ASC 820.

Investments in partially-owned affiliates (“affiles") at September 30, 20iere $1.0 billion, $6 million lower than the prigear. Th
decrease was primarily due to acquisitions of tbetrolling interest in formerly unconsolidated Bliilg Efficiency and Power Solutic
affiliates, partially offset by positive earningscagrtain Automotive Experience affiliates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital

September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Current assets $ 13,100 $ 13,69¢
Current liabilities (11,69¢) (12,117

1,41 1,581 -11%
Less: Cash 40¢ 1,05¢
Add: Short-term debt 18z 11¢
Add: Current portion of long-term debt 14C 81¢
Less: Assets held for sale 2,157 804
Add: Liabilities held for sale 1,801 40z
Working capital $ 971 $ 1,06z -9%
Accounts receivable 5,871 7,20¢ -18 %
Inventories 2,47 2,32t 7%
Accounts payable 5,27( 6,31¢ -17%
. The Company defines working capital as curresets less current liabilities, excluding cash/tstesm debt, the current portion

longterm debt, and the current portion of assets adidlilies held for sale. Management believes that measure of working capit
which excludes financing-related items, providesae useful measurement of the Company’s operagénfiprmance.

. Excluding the impact of amounts classified aklHer sale, the decrease in working capital att&mjper 30, 2014s compared
September 30, 2013 was primarily due to higher aetsopayable and an increase in other currentitiabi
related to accrued income taxes, partially offsehigher inventory levels.

. The Company’s days sales in accounts receivatbeptember 30, 2014 were 54, a slight increasa &1 at September 30, 2013
There has been no significant adverse change iletieéof overdue receivables or changes in reveecegnition methods.

. The Company’s inventory turns for the year en8egtember 30, 201ere lower than the comparable period ended Semes
2013 primarily due to higher inventory productionnieet higher sales levels.

. Days in accounts payable at September 30, 2@td W4, a slight increase from 72 at Septembe?2@03.
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Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013

Cash provided by operating activities $ 2,39 % 2,68¢
Cash used by investing activities (2,599 (580)
Cash used by financing activities (412) (1,219
Capital expenditures (1,199 (1,3779)

The decrease in cash provided by operating a&$vitvas primarily due to unfavorable changes in @atsopayable and accrt
liabilities, unfavorable changes in inventoriesgher income tax payments and higher pension anttgbosment contribution
partially offset by favorable changes in accourteivable.

The increase in cash used by investing activitias primarily due to cash paid for the ADT acquisitand lower cash received fr
business divestitures, partially offset by lowepital expenditures.

The decrease in cash used by financing actvitias primarily due to an increase in Idegn debt incurred to finance the acquisi
of ADT, partially offset by current year stock rephases and higher debt repayments. Refer to Not®é&bt and Financir
Arrangements," of the notes to consolidated fingrgtiatements for further discussion on debt issemand debt levels.

The decrease in capital expenditures in the cuwreat is primarily related to prior year capacigpansion and vertical integrati
efforts in the Power Solutions business.

Capitalization

September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 Change
Short-term debt $ 18z % 11¢
Current portion of long-term debt 14C 81¢
Long-term debt 6,357 4,56(
Total debt $ 6,68 $ 5,49¢ 21%
Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsttac. 11,31 12,31 -8%

Total capitalization $ 17,99 $ 17,81: 1%
Total debt as a % of total capitalization 37% 31%
. The Company believes the percentage of total wetotal capitalization is useful to understagdthe Companyg financial conditio

as it provides a review of the extent to which @@mpany relies on external debt financing for itsding and is a measure of risl
its shareholders.

At September 30, 2014, a 100 million euro rewr@\credit facility, two 50 million euro revolvingredit facilities, and a 37 millioaurc
revolving credit facility expired. The Company et into a new 100 millioruro revolving credit facility scheduled to expin
August 2015 and two new 50 million euro credit lities scheduled to expire in August and Septen#i5, respectively. Tt
Company also entered into a new 37 million eurdicriacility scheduled to expire in September 20TFhere were no draws on
facilities in fiscal 2014.

At September 30, 2014, a $50 million revolvingdit facility expired. The Company entered intaeav $50 millionrevolving credi
facility scheduled to expire in September 2015er€hwere no draws on this facility during fiscall20

In September 2014, the Company retired a $500mi, floating rate term loan plus accrued interest thatured in September 20
The Company also retired a $150 million , floatiate term loan plus accrued interest initially sifled to mature in January 2015.

In June 2014, the Company issued $300 milliogregate principal amount of 1.4%&nior unsecured fixed rate notes due in f
2018, $500 million aggregate principal amount 625% senior unsecured fixed rate notes due ialfid224 ,
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$450 million aggregate principal amount of 4.6258fisr unsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 28dd $450 millionaggregat
principal amount of 4.95% senior unsecured fixetd r@otes due in fiscal 2064 . Aggregate net progedd$l.7 billionfrom the
issuance were used to finance the acquisition of ADd for other general corporate purposes. Reféidte 2, "Acquisitions ar
Divestitures," of the notes to consolidated finahstatements for further information regarding A&T acquisition.

In March 2014, the Company entered into a ninenth, $150 million , floating rate term loan schkedl to mature in December 2014
Proceeds from the term loan were used for generpbcate purposes. The loan was repaid during ubetey ended June 30, 2014.

In March 2014, the Company retired $450 milliarprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, oflit85%fixed rate notes that matui
March 2014.

In February 2014, the Company retired $350 orilin principal amount, plus accrued interest, offldgting rate notes that matu
February 2014.

In January 2014, the Company entered into a-pear, $150 million , floating rate term loan schkedl to mature in January 2015
Proceeds from the term loan were used for generpbcate purposes. The loan was repaid during whetey ended September 2014.

In November 2013 and December 2013, a $35 millind $100 milliorcommitted revolving credit facility expired, resgigely. The
Company entered into a new $35 million committeebheing credit facility scheduled to expire in Nowber 2014 and a ne§10(
million committed revolving credit facility schedad to expire in December 2014As of September 30, 2014, there were no drav
either facility.

In December 2013, the Company entered into @ fjear, 220 millioreuro, floating rate credit facility scheduled totore in fisca
2019. The Company drew on the full credit facility chgithe quarter ended December 31, 2013. Proceeuistfre facility were use
for general corporate purposes.

In September 2013, the Company retired $300ionilin principal amount, plus accrued interestjtef4.875%fixed rate notes th
matured September 2013.

In August 2013, the Company made a partial repay of 43 million euro, plus accrued interestjt®f100 millioneuro floating rat
credit facility scheduled to mature in February 201

In November 2012, the Company entered into a fiyear, 70 millioneuro, floating rate credit facility scheduled to tora ir
November 2017. The Company drew on the creditifaalring the quarter ended December 31, 2012cd&ds from the facility we
used for general corporate purposes.

In November 2012, the Company retired $100 millin principal amount, plus accrued interest, tof5.8%fixed rate notes th
matured November 2012.

The Company also selectively makes use of dieomt-credit lines. The Company estimates that,fé&eptember 30, 2014it coulc
borrow up to $1.8 billion on committed credit lines

The Company believes its capital resources anpddity position at September 30, 2044 adequate to meet projected needs
Company believes requirements for working capitedpital expenditures, dividends, stock repurchasesjiimum pensio
contributions, debt maturities and any potentigjésitions in fiscal 2015 will continue to be furttifom operations, supplementec
short- and long-term borrowings, if required. Thentpany currently manages its shttm debt position in the U.S. and €
commercial paper markets and bank loan marketthdrevent the Company is unable to issue commepeiaér, it would have tl
ability to draw on its $2.5 billion revolving cradacility, which matures in August 2018. There e draws on the revolving cre
facility as of September 30, 2014s such, the Company believes it has sufficigrdrfcial resources to fund operations and me
obligations for the foreseeable future.

The Company earns a significant amount of its dpegancome outside the U.S., which is deemed t@é&enanently reinvested
foreign jurisdictions. The Company currently does imtend nor foresee a need to repatriate thesgsfurhe Compang’intent is fo
such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiari¢e be repatriated only when it would be tax effee through the utilization
foreign tax credits. The Company expects existinghestic cash and liquidity to continue to be sigfit to fund the Company’
domestic operating activities and cash commitmintgvesting and
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financing activities for at least the next twelvemths and thereafter for the foreseeable futureaddition, the Company expe
existing foreign cash, cash equivalents, skenti investments and cash flows from operationsotttinue to be sufficient to fund 1
Companys foreign operating activities and cash commitmémtsénvesting activities, such as material cap&gbenditures, for at le:
the next twelve months and thereafter for the feable future. Should the Company require mordalapithe U.S. than is genera
by operations domestically, the Company will eliectaise capital in the U.S. through debt or eqgisgpiances. This alternative cc
result in increased interest expense or otheridiludf the Company earnings. The Company has borrowed funds doraégtanc
continues to have the ability to borrow funds doticedly at reasonable interest rates.

. The Company’s debt financial covenants requingirmum consolidated shareholdeegjuity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc
at least $3.5 billion at all times and allow a nmaxim aggregated amount of 10% of consolidated shatets’ equity attributable 1
Johnson Controls, Inc. for liens and pledges. kop@ses of calculating the Company’s covenantssaatated shareholdersquity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. is calcwatdéthout giving effect to (i) the application ofS&C 715-60, "Defined Benefit Plans -
Other Postretirement," or (ii) the cumulative fgmicurrency translation adjustment. As of Septer@Ber2014, consolidate
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac. as defined per the Compamgebt financial covenants was $11.6 billion
there was a maximum of $279 million of liens anédges outstanding. The Company expects to remagonmpliance with a
covenants and other requirements set forth inrédicagreements and indentures for the foresedatlee. None of the Comparsy’
debt agreements limit access to stated borrowingldeor require accelerated repayment in the eokatdecrease in the Compasy’
credit rating.

A summary of the Company’s significant contractolaligations as of September 30, 2014 is as follpwsnillions):

2020

Total 2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 and Beyond
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt
(including capital lease obligations)* $ 6,497 $ 14C $ 1,68¢ $ 70C % 3,96¢
Interest on long-term debt
(including capital lease obligations)* 4,04¢ 26¢ 44C 38C 2,95¢
Operating leases 97t 294 38¢ 187 10t
Purchase obligations 2,41¢ 1,891 412 94 21
Pension and postretirement contributions 347 76 41 45 18t
Interest rate swaps* 3 — 2 1 —
Total contractual cash obligations $ 14,28:  § 2,67C $ 297§ 1,401 § 7,23¢

* See "Capitalization"” for additional informatioalated to the Company's lotgrm debt. The Company's outstanding interestswsgs in a
asset position are not included in the table ate®eper 30, 2014, which indicates the Company wasriet position of receiving cash un
such swaps.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated financigéstants in conformity with accounting principlesigeally accepted in the United State
America (U.S. GAAP). This requires management tkenastimates and assumptions that affect reportezliats and related disclosul
Actual results could differ from those estimateleTollowing policies are considered by manageneiie the most critical in understanc
the judgments that are involved in the preparatibthe Companys consolidated financial statements and the urindgs that could impa
the Company’s results of operations, financial pesiand cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsizevenue from certain lortgrm contracts over the contractual period unde
percentage-otompletion (POC) method of accounting. This metbbdccounting recognizes sales and gross profivak is performe
based on the relationship between actual costsredand total estimated costs at completion. Reized revenues that will not be bil
under the terms of the contract until a later @aterecorded primarily in accounts receivable. Wilse, contracts where billings to date h
exceeded recognized revenues are recorded priniardther current liabilities. Changes to the arajiestimates may be required during
life of the contract and such estimates are reviementhly. Sales and gross profit are adjustedguiie cumulative catchp method fc
revisions in estimated total contract costs andrach
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values. Estimated losses are recorded when ideshti€laims against customers are recognized asuevepon settlement. The amoun
accounts receivable due after one year is notfgigni. The use of the POC method of accountinglves considerable use of estimate
determining revenues, costs and profits and ingaB®j the amounts to accounting periods. The pariogviews have not resulted
adjustments that were significant to the Compamg5sults of operations. The Company continualBluates all of the assumptions, risks
uncertainties inherent with the application of B@C method of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into exthdvarranties and longrm service and maintenance agreements with nectetomer:
For these arrangements, revenue is recognizedstyaight-line basis over the respective contrachte

The Companys Building Efficiency business also sells certa@ating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) arefrigeration products a
services in bundled arrangements, where multiptelyets and/or services are involved. In accordamitie ASU No. 200913, "Revenu
Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Rewen Arrangements A Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Fothe
Company divides bundled arrangements into sepaklieerables and revenue is allocated to each efalble based on the relative sel
price method. Significant deliverables within theseingements include equipment, commissioningicsetabor and extended warranties
order to estimate relative selling price, markefadand transfer price studies are utilized. Apprately four to twelve months separate
timing of the first deliverable until the last peeof equipment is delivered, and there may be eedgnvarranty arrangements with duratio
one to five years commencing upon the end of thiedstrd warranty period.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascesrare performed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable asstets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ajger or more frequently if events or changes inurnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment revieasits reporting units, which have been determiteedbe the Compang’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segnierdsrtain instances, using a fair value methogsetaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddae received to sell the unit as a whol
an orderly transaction between market participattthe measurement date. In estimating the faweyathe Company uses multiples
earnings based on the average of historical, phddismultiples of earnings of comparable entitiethvgimilar operations and econol
characteristics. In certain instances, the Compe®g discounted cash flow analyses or estimated paice to further support the fair ve
estimates. The inputs utilized in the analyse<kassified as Level 3 inputs within the fair vahierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Ve
Measurement.” The estimated fair value is then @e with the carrying amount of the reporting uimtluding recorded goodwill. Tl
Company is subject to financial statement riskhéxtent that the carrying amount exceeds thmatsd fair value.

Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Ass" of the notes to consolidated financial statet® for information regarding t
goodwill impairment testing performed in the fouggharters of fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are alsoject to at least annual impairment testing. Othangible assets with definite lives conti
to be amortized over their estimated useful lived are subject to impairment testing if eventstmnges in circumstances indicate tha
asset might be impaired. A considerable amountarfagement judgment and assumptions are requirgetiorming the impairment tests.

Refer to Note 17, "Impairment of Lorigved Assets,” of the notes to consolidated finahatatements for information regarding
impairment testing performed in fiscal years 21,3 and 2012.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a range of benefits to itsleyges and retired employees, including pensiodspamstretirement benefits. Plan as
and obligations are measured annually, or moreufrstly if there is a remeasurement event, basetherCompanys measurement d:
utilizing various actuarial assumptions such asadalist rates, assumed rates of return, compensatogases, turnover rates and health
cost trend rates as of that date. The Companyws\iis actuarial assumptions on an annual basisrakes modifications to the assumpti
based on current rates and trends when appropriate.

The Company utilizes a mark-toarket approach for recognizing pension and pastreént benefit expenses, including measuring tagke
related value of plan assets at fair value andgieizong actuarial gains and losses in the fourthrtgur of each fiscal
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year or at the date of a remeasurement event. Refiote 15, "Retirement Plans,"” of the notes tasotidated financial statements
disclosure of the Company's pension and postretintimenefit plans.

U.S. GAAP requires that companies recognize instagement of financial position a liability for dedéd benefit pension and postretiren
plans that are underfunded or unfunded, or an éssdefined benefit pension and postretirementhplénat are overfunded. U.S. GAAP
requires that companies measure the benefit oldigatind fair value of plan assets that determiberefit plan$ funded status as of the ¢
of the employer’s fiscal year end.

The Company considers the expected benefit paynoenésplan-byplan basis when setting assumed discount ratea.rasult, the Compa
uses different discount rates for each plan dependn the plan jurisdiction, the demographics afippants and the expected timing
benefit payments. For the U.S. pension and postre@int plans, the Company uses a discount ratedee\by an independent third pe
calculated based on an appropriate mix of highiguabnds. For the nobt.S. pension and postretirement plans, the Compangistentl
uses the relevant country specific benchmark irsdfoe determining the various discount rates. Tleen@anys discount rate on U.S. ple
was 4.35% and 4.90% at September 30, 2014 and ,2@kpectively. The Company’s weighted averageodistrate on not).S. plans we
3.00% and 3.60% at September 30, 2014 and 205pectvely.

In estimating the expected return on plan asskésCompany considers the historical returns on pksets, adjusted for forwalabking
considerations, inflation assumptions and the imphthe active management of the plans’ invesg=tts. Reflecting the relatively loteAr
nature of the plans’ obligations, approximately 4@#4he plans’assets are invested in fixed income securities333d in equity securitie
with the remainder primarily invested in alternatimvestments. For the years ending September@3@, and 2013 , the Compasyexpecte
longterm return on U.S. pension plan assets used &ordite net periodic benefit cost was 8.00%. Thaalatte of return on U.S. pens
plans was above 8.00% in fiscal 2014 and 2013 .tReryears ending September 30, 2014 and 2013 Cdimepanys weighted avera
expected long-term return on non-U.S. pension pksets was 4.75% and 4.55%, respectively. Thelaetieaof return on nok).S. pensio
plans was above 4.75% in fiscal 2014 and above24.ibfiscal 2013 . For the years ending SeptembeB814 and 2013 , the Compasy’
weighted average expected lotegm return on postretirement plan assets was 5.0 actual rate of return on postretirement plaset
approximated 5.80% in fiscal 2014 and 2013 .

Beginning in fiscal 2015 , the Company believesltmg-term rate of return will approximate 7.509%@% and 5.75% for U.S. pension, non-
U.S. pension and postretirement plans, respectively differences between actual investment reauitsthe expected lortgrm asset retur
will be reflected in net periodic benefit coststie fourth quarter of each fiscal year. If the Camys actual returns on plan assets are
than the Company’s expectations, additional coatiéims may be required.

In fiscal 2014 , total employer and employee cdmittions to the defined benefit pension plans wd@million, of which $84 milliorwere
voluntary contributions made by the Company. ThenBany expects to contribute approximately $64 omlin cash to its defined bene
pension plans in fiscal 2015 . In fiscal 2014 at@mployer and employee contributions to the ptisament plans were $8 milliqgrof whick
$6 million were voluntary contributions made by the Compartye Tompany does not expect to make any significantributions to it
postretirement plans in fiscal year 2015 .

Based on information provided by its independenti@ies and other relevant sources, the Comparigviesl that the assumptions usec
reasonable; however, changes in these assumptoitimpact the Company’s financial position, réswif operations or cash flows.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its customers gipg upon the specific product and terms of th&ta@mer purchase agreement. A tyg
warranty program requires that the Company reptifective products within a specified time periodnfi the date of sale. The Comp
records an estimate of future warrantyated costs based on actual historical retuesrahd other known factors. Based on analysistofn
rates and other factors, the Company’s warrantyipians are adjusted as necessary. At Septemb&034d, the Company had recorded $
million of warranty reserves, including extendedrraaties for which deferred revenue is recordede Tompany monitors its warral
activity and adjusts its reserve estimates whengtobable that future warranty costs will be giéint than those estimates.

Refer to Note 7, "Product Warranties," of the ndesonsolidated financial statements for disclesof the Company's product warre
liabilities.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordafitteASC 740, "Income Taxes." Deferred tax asseis liabilities are recognized
the future tax consequences attributable to diffees between financial statement carrying amounéxisting assets and liabilities and tl
respective tax bases and operating loss and atksrclarryforwards. Deferred tax assets and lissliatre measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeamstiith those temporary differences are expectdebtoecovered or settled. The Comg
records a valuation allowance that primarily reprgés nond.S. operating and other loss carryforwards forolhiealization is uncerta
Management judgment is required in determining @wmpanys provision for income taxes, deferred tax assath labilities and th
valuation allowance recorded against the Compangt deferred tax assets. In calculating the piawifor income taxes on an interim be
the Company uses an estimate of the annual eféetdiv rate based upon the facts and circumstanuasrkat each interim period. Ol
quarterly basis, the actual effective tax ratedpisted as appropriate based upon the actual sessitompared to those forecasted &
beginning of the fiscal year.

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedeitax asset valuation allowances on a quartedisbar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation alowae, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groepording the net deferred tax asset are considaledg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthito@ompanys valuation allowances m
be necessary. At September 30, 2014, the Compahy kaluation allowance of $1,285 million, of whi$B74 million relates to federal |
operating loss carryforwards primarily in BrazitakRce, Germany and Spain, for which sustainableblexincome has not been demonstri
and $311 million for other deferred tax assets.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bn8. numerous nob-S. jurisdictions. Judgment is required in deteing its worldwidk
provision for income taxes and recording the relaissets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehef Companys business, there are m.
transactions and calculations where the ultimatedtgtermination is uncertain. The Company is redylander audit by tax authorities.
September 30, 2014, the Company had unrecognizdzeteefits of $1,655 million.

The Company does not generally provide additiong.Uncome taxes on undistributed earnings of UdB.- consolidated subsidiar
included in shareholdergquity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Seamings could become taxable upon the sale adhitjon of thes
non-U.S. subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriatibhe Company intent is for such earnings to be reinvestedheysubsidiaries or to
repatriated only when it would be tax effectiveotigh the utilization of foreign tax credits. Howeyvthe Company did provide incremel
income tax expense on the undistributed earningedéin nond.S. subsidiaries that have assets held for saégeothemselves held for s
at September 30, 2014. Refer to "Capitalizatiorthimithe "Liquidity and Capital Resources" sectfon discussion of domestic and fore
cash projections.

Refer to Note 18, "Income Taxes," of the notestiesolidated financial statements for the Compangsme tax disclosures.
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargsldtie (ASU) No. 201489, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Tojil6)6
ASU No. 201409 clarifies the principles for recognizing reverwieen an entity either enters into a contract witetomers to transfer goc
or services or enters into a contract for the fiensf non-financial assets. ASU No. 200g-will be effective retrospectively for the Comg
for the quarter ending December 31, 2017, withyeadloption not permitted. The Company is curreagessing the impact adoption of
guidance may have on its consolidated financiaéstants.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2008; "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topi6)2ihd Property, Plant and Equipn
(Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations dddclosures of Disposals of Components of an EfitiBSU No. 201408 limits
discontinued operations reporting to situationsnetibe disposal represents a strategic shift that(or will have) a major effect on an enti
operations and financial results, and requires meapd disclosures for discontinued operations. AStl R01408 will be effectivi
prospectively for the Company for disposals thatuoauring or after the quarter ending December2B15, with early adoption permittec
certain instances. The significance of this guigafoc the Company is dependent on any future dispos or disposals.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 201B-"Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of ameldognized Tax Benefit When a |
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossacfax Credit Carryforward Exists." ASU No. 2013-clarifies that companies sho
present an unrecognized tax benefit as a reduttiendeferred tax asset for a net operating loggfoaward, a similar tax loss or a tax cre
carryforward. ASU No. 20131 will be effective prospectively for the Compafor the quarter ending December 31, 2014, withy
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assgsthe impact adoption of this guidance may haweite consolidated statement
financial position. The adoption of this guidancdl have no impact on the Company's consolidatedlte of operations.
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In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013- "Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Paredttounting for the Cumulati
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Cert8ubsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreignity or of an Investment in
Foreign Entity." ASU No. 20185 clarifies when companies should release the tative translation adjustment (CTA) into net incomleer
a parent either sells a part or all of its investtrie a foreign entity or no longer holds a contng financial interest in a subsidiary or grou
assets within a foreign entity. Additionally, ASWbN201305 states that CTA should be released into netilgcopon an acquirer obtain
control of an acquiree in which it held an equitterest immediately before the acquisition datep(sicquisition). ASU No. 20135 was earl
adopted by the Company in the quarter ended SepieB) 2014. The adoption of this guidance did lmte a significant impact on
Company's consolidated financial condition or ressaf operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-"Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): ReportingAafiounts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU NA.3X02 requires companies to provide information altbetamounts reclassified
of accumulated other comprehensive income by comporAdditionally, companies are required to diseldhese reclassifications by e
respective line item on the statements of inconf@UMNo. 201392 was effective for the Company for the quarteteehDecember 31, 20:
The adoption of this guidance had no impact onGbenpany's consolidated financial condition or ressof operations. Refer to Note
"Equity and Noncontrolling Interests," of the notesonsolidated financial statements for disclesuegarding other comprehensive income.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bajance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about QffgeAAssets and Liabilities." AS
No. 20111 requires additional quantitative and qualitativ&closures of gross and net information regardiegvative instruments that
offset or eligible for offset in the consolidatadtement of financial position. ASU No. 2011-was effective for the Company for the qu
ending December 31, 2013. The adoption of this angd had no impact on the Companygonsolidated financial condition or result:
operations. Refer to Note 10, "Derivative Instrutsesend Hedging Activities," of the notes to condaled financial statements for disclos
of gross and net information regarding the Comgsadgtivative instruments.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumenteduce market risk associated with changesrigidn currency, commodities, intel
rates and stockased compensation. All hedging transactions atedred and executed pursuant to clearly defingditips and procedure
which strictly prohibit the use of financial instnents for speculative purposes. At the inceptionthef hedge, the Company assesse
effectiveness of the hedge instrument and designéiee hedge instrument as either (1) a hedge efcagnized asset or liability or o
recognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge),ghedge of a forecasted transaction or of theab#ity of cash flows to be received
paid related to an unrecognized asset or liab{itycash flow hedge) or (3) a hedge of a net investnin a nond.S. operation (a n
investment hedge). The Company performs hedgeteff@ess testing on an ongoing basis depending®type of hedging instrument us
All other derivatives not designated as hedgindrimsents under ASC 815, "Derivatives and Hedgirage revalued in the consolida
statements of income.

For all foreign currency derivative instrumentsigeated as cash flow hedges, retrospective efieeéss is tested on a monthly basis us
cumulative dollar offset test. The fair value oéthedged exposures and the fair value of the hedgymments are revalued, and the rati
the cumulative sum of the periodic changes in tileesof the hedge instruments to the cumulative stithe periodic changes in the valu
the hedge is calculated. The hedge is deemed hly leffective if the ratio is between 80% and 123%r commodity derivative contra
designated as cash flow hedges, effectivenesstedteising a regression calculation. Ineffectivengsinimal as the Company aligns mot
the critical terms of its derivatives with the siyppontracts.

For net investment hedges, the Company assessex itsvestment positions in the nbnS. operations and compares it with the outstay
net investment hedges on a quarterly basis. Thgeheddeemed effective if the aggregate outstandimcipal of the hedge instrume
designated as the net investment hedge in a nonege®ation does not exceed the Company’s net timegg positions in the respective non-
U.S. operation.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdioce market risk associated with changes inasteates for its fixedate bonds. /
September 30, 2014, all outstanding interest natgps qualify for the londraul method. The Company assesses retrospectiveraspectiv
effectiveness and records any measured ineffe@sgeim the consolidated statements of income oardhly basis.

Equity swaps and any other derivative instrumerds designated as hedging instruments under ASC régjhire no assessment
effectiveness.
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A discussion of the Compars/'accounting policies for derivative financial imshents is included in Note 1, "Summary of Sigrifi
Accounting Policies," of the notes to consolidatiédncial statements, and further disclosure ne¢atd derivatives and hedging activitie
included in Note 10, "Derivative Instruments anddgieg Activities,” and Note 11, "Fair Value Measments," of the notes to consolide
financial statements.

Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distobutcilities around the world and thus makes itmesits and enters into transacti
denominated in various foreign currencies. In otdamaintain strict control and achieve the beseaditthe Companyg’ global diversificatiot
foreign exchange exposures for each currency dtechmternally so that only its net foreign excharexposures are, as appropriate, he
with financial instruments.

The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal amofietach of its known foreign exchange transacti@xposures. The Compe
primarily enters into foreign currency exchange tcaets to reduce the earnings and cash flow impéd¢he variation of norunctiona
currency denominated receivables and payables.sGaid losses resulting from hedging instrumentsetfthe foreign exchange gain
losses on the underlying assets and liabilitiendéiedged. The maturities of the forward excharm@racts generally coincide with 1
settlement dates of the related transactions. Bghlnd unrealized gains and losses on these ctsnéige recognized in the same peric
gains and losses on the hedged items. The Compaayselectively hedges anticipated transactions dha subject to foreign exchai
exposure, primarily with foreign currency exchawgatacts, which are designated as cash flow hadgesordance with ASC 815.

The Company has entered into cressrency interest rate swaps to selectively hedgégms of its net investment in Japan. The cury
effects of the crossurrency interest rate swaps are reflected in #euraulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) actauthin
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsitimc. where they offset gains and losses recbatethe Companyg’ net investment
Japan.

At September 30, 2014 and 201the Company estimates that an unfavorable 10%geh&n the exchange rates would have decreas
unrealized gains by approximately $210 million &84 million, respectively.

Interest Rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps to offsekfiesure to interest rate movements. In accordaitbeASC 815, these outstanding sw
qualify and are designated as fair value hedges.Gdmpany had thirteen interest rate swaps tot#ling billion outstanding &eptember 3
2014 and ten interest rates swaps totaling $1llbmibutstanding at September 30, 2012 10% increase in the average cost of
Company'’s variable rate debt would have resultednrunfavorable change in pie« interest expense of approximately $7 million &
million for the year ended September 30, 2014 @182 respectively.

Commodities

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firmtdrivatives market in cases where commodityeprisk cannot be naturally offset
hedged through supply base fixed price contraateni@odity risks are systematically managed purst@pblicy guidelines. As a cash fli
hedge, gains and losses resulting from the hedgsiguments offset the gains or losses on purchefsége underlying commodities that v
be used in the business. The maturities of the amdityncontracts coincide with the expected purchadbe commodities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Companys global operations are governed by environmeatak land worker safety laws. Under various circuntsta, these la
impose civil and criminal penalties and fines, adlwas injunctive and remedial relief, for noncomapte and require remediation at ¢
where Company-related substances have been reliedasdde environment.

The Company has expended substantial resourceallgloboth financial and managerial, to comply wéthplicable environmental laws ¢
worker safety laws and to protect the environmertt workers. The Company believes it is in subsséhrtbmpliance with such laws ¢
maintains procedures designed to foster and ermsungliance. However, the Company has been, arttkifuture may become, the subjec
formal or informal enforcement actions or procegdinmegarding noncompliance with such laws or theediation of Companyelatec
substances released into the environment. Suclersagipically are resolved with regulatory authestthrough commitments to compliar
abatement or remediation programs and in some gasesent of penalties. Historically, neither sudmenitments nor penalties imposec
the Company have been material.
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Environmental considerations are a part of all ificgnt capital expenditure decisions; however,engitures in fiscal 2014elated solely t
environmental compliance were not material. Resefoeenvironmental liabilities totaled $24 milli@md $25 million aSeptember 30, 20
and 2013 respectively. A charge to income is recorded wihénprobable that a liability has been incuresd! the amount of the liability
reasonably estimable. The Compangnvironmental liabilities do not take into corsamtion any possible recoveries of future insur
proceeds. Because of the uncertainties associatadeywironmental remediation activities at sitesene the Company may be potenti
liable, future expenses to remediate identifiedssitould be considerably higher than the accruaddility. However, while neither the timi
nor the amount of ultimate costs associated withwmenvironmental remediation matters can be deteunat this time, the Company d
not expect that these matters will have a matedakrse effect on its financial position, resuk®perations or cash flows. In addition,
Company has identified asset retirement obligatimnsenvironmental matters that are expected t@addressed at the retirement, dispe
removal or abandonment of existing owned facilitipgmarily in the Power Solutions business. At teember 30, 2014 and 2013the
Company recorded conditional asset retirement atitigs of $52 million and $56 million , respectiyel

Additionally, the Company is involved in a numbdrpsoduct liability and various other casualty laits incident to the operation of
businesses. The Company maintains insurance caseyl records estimated costs for claims and suitsis nature. It is management’
opinion that none of these will have a materialliyerse effect on the Compansyfinancial position, results of operations or clstvs (se
Note 21, "Commitments and Contingencies," of thees®o consolidated financial statements). Codéda® to such matters were not matt
to the periods presented.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
Previously reported quarterly amounts have beeisedvto reflect the retrospective application of ttlassification of the Automoti

Experience Electronics segment as a discontinuedatipn. Refer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operation$the notes to consolidated finan
statements for additional details.

(in millions, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth Full
(unaudited) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2014
Net sales $ 10,57 $ 10,46 $ 10,81: $ 10,97¢ 42,82¢
Gross profit 1,57¢ 1,54¢ 1,66: 1,84z 6,627
Net income (1) 502 291 19¢€ 34¢€ 1,33t
Net income attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. 46¢ 261 17€ 30¢ 1,21¢
Earnings per share (3)
Basic 0.7cC 0.3¢ 0.2¢ 0.4¢€ 1.82
Diluted 0.6¢ 0.3¢ 0.2¢€ 0.4¢€ 1.8C
2013
Net sales $ 10,10¢ $ 10,10: $ 10,49¢ $ 10,70( 41,41(
Gross profit 1,43¢ 1,44( 1,56¢ 2,02t 6,46¢
Net income (2) 38¢ 19z 572 13¢ 1,292
Net income attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. 35¢ 164 55C 10k 1,17¢
Earnings per share
Basic 0.5: 0.24 0.8C 0.1t 1.72
Diluted 0.5z 0.24 0.8C 0.1¢ 1.71

(1)  The fiscal 2014 third quarter net income includ&éZmillion of significant restructuring and impaient costs, an $120 million Ic
on business divestitures, divestitwegated losses of $80 million within discontinuecbemations and $20 million f
transaction/integration costs. The fiscal 2014 ttouguarter net income includes $162 million of #igant restructuring ar
impairment costs, $274 million of net mark#taarket losses on pension and postretirement pda$$6 million pension settlement |
and $23 million for transaction/integration coStee preceding amounts are stated on a pre-tax basis
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(2)  The fiscal 2013 second quarter net income incl®&8E million of significant restructuring and impaient costs and an $82 milli
gain on acquisition of a partiallgwned affiliate in India in the Automotive Exper@nSeating segment. The fiscal 2013 third qu
net income includes $143 million of significanttresturing and impairment costs and a $29 milli@mgon business divestitures in
Automotive Experience Seating segment. The fis€al32fourth quarter net income includes $730 millafrsignificant restructurir
and impairment costs, a $476 million gain on ditest of the HomeLink®product line net of transaction costs within diggmnec
operations, $405 million of net mark-toarket gains on pension and postretirement plagé9amillion pension settlement gain, !
million of restructuring costs within discontinuegerations and a $22 million loss on business tives including transaction costs
the Building Efficiency Other segment. The precgdamounts are stated on a pre-tax basis.

3) Due to the use of the weightaderage shares outstanding for each quarter fopeting earnings per share, the sum of the qua
per share amounts may not equal the per share arfoouhe year.

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See "Risk Management" included in Item 7 - Managgfadiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditamd Results of Operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johi@ontrols, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present faiityall material respects, the finan
position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsiégaat September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the sesfulheir operations and their cash fli
for each of the three years in the period endedefdger 30, 2014 in conformity with accounting pirtes generally accepted in the Un
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, firancial statement schedule listed in the accomipg indexpresents fairly, in all mater
respects, the information set forth therein whextdr@ conjunction with the related consolidatedficial statements. Also in our opinion,
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffecinternal control over financial reporting asSeptember 30, 2014, based on cri
established ininternal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadwa
Commission (COSO). The Company's management isomegge for these financial statements and findnstatement schedule, -
maintaining effective internal control over finaakreporting and for its assessment of the effecss of internal control over finani
reporting, included in Management's Report on tr@keControl Over Financial Reporting appearing urnitem 9A. Our responsibility is
express opinions on these financial statementsherfinancial statement schedule, and on the Coypanternal control over financ
reporting based on our integrated audits. We caeduour audits in accordance with the standardthefPublic Company Accounti
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamlginethat we plan and perform the audits to obta@asonable assurance about whethe
financial statements are free of material misstatgnand whether effective internal control overafinial reporting was maintained in
material respects. Our audits of the financialestegnts included examining, on a test basis, evasapporting the amounts and disclosur
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made bpagement, and evaluating the ov
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimak control over financial reporting included abtag an understanding of internal con
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thatagerial weakness exists, and testing and evaty#tie design and operating effectivene:
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other proced@®sve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviteaaonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is sopess designed to provide reasonable assurancediregahe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahctatements for external purposes in accordandb génerally accepted account
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclsdinose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately fairty reflect the transactions and dispositionstloé assets of the company; (i) proy
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdadcessary to permit preparation of financialestents in accordance with genei
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being made ion¢cordance with authorizations
management and directors of the company; andp(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventidimely detection of unauthoriz
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

éPricewater houseCoopers LLP, 100 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, WI 53202
T: (414)212- 1600, F: (414) 212- 1880, www.pwc.com/us
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or déteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods argject to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management's Report on Internati@b@ver Financial Reporting, management has @eaduAir Distribution Technologie
Inc. (ADT) from its assessment of internal contovker financial reporting as of September 30, 20&danse ADT was acquired by
Company in June 2014. We have also excluded ADm four audit of internal control over financial refoeg. ADT is a whollyewnec
subsidiary whose total assets and total revenuelkided from management's assessment and our amésent 1% and less than

respectively, of the related consolidated finansiatement amounts as of and for the year endei8bpr 30, 2014.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 19, 2014
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012
Net sales

Products and systems* $ 34,97¢ $ 33,090 $ 32,21(

Services* 7,85(C 8,31¢ 8,39/

42,82¢ 41,41( 40,60¢

Cost of sales

Products and systems* 29,91( 28,18¢ 27,86¢

Services* 6,291 6,75¢€ 6,89¢

36,20: 34,94t 34,767

Gross profit 6,627 6,46° 5,837
Selling, general and administrative expenses (4,30¢) (3,780 (4,31
Gain (loss) on business divestitures - net (111 7 40
Restructuring and impairment costs (329 (957) (287)
Net financing charges (244 (247) (237)
Equity income 39¢ 39¢ 33¢
Income from continuing operations before income$ax 2,03t 1,887 1,38¢
Income tax provision 482 69¢€ 161
Income from continuing operations 1,55: 1,191 1,22¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nearf(Note 3) (21¢) 101 85
Net income 1,33¢ 1,292 1,31(
Income from continuing operations attributable emecontrolling interests 12C 114 12¢€
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,218 $ 1,17¢  $ 1,18¢

Amounts attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. camrmshareholders:

Income from continuing operations $ 1,43 $ 1,077 % 1,09¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (21€) 101 85
Net income $ 1,21t % 1,17¢  $ 1,18¢

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable taism Controls, Inc.

Continuing operations $ 21t % 158 $ 1.61
Discontinued operations (0.39) 0.1f 0.1z
Net income ** $ 182 $ 172 $ 1.74

Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributableotm3on Controls, Inc.

Continuing operations $ 21z % 156 $ 1.6C
Discontinued operations (0.3 0.1t 0.1z
Net income $ 1.8 $ 171 $ 1.72

*  Products and systems consist of Automotive Exepee and Power Solutions products and system8aitding Efficiency installed systems.



Services are Building Efficiency technical and GibW/orkplace Solutions.

**  Certain items do not sum due to rounding.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thBnancial statements.
Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (kEs)

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Net income $ 1,33  $ 1,29: $ 1,31C

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (642) (20 (222)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on deresitiv (3) (5) 39
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on marketashmon stock @) 2 1)
Pension and postretirement plans (5) (16) (8)
Other comprehensive loss (657) (39 (192
Total comprehensive income 67¢ 1,25: 1,11¢
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliitgrests 11¢€ 11t 12t
Comprehensive income attributable to Johnson Clsntirac. $ 56C $ 1,13t $ 99z

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thnancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions, except par value and share data)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $72 and $68, respectively

Inventories

Assets held for sale

Other current assets
Current assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Goodwill

Other intangible assets - net
Investments in partially-owned affiliates
Noncurrent assets held for sale

Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Liabilities held for sale
Other current liabilities

Current liabilities

Long-term debt

Pension and postretirement benefits

Other noncurrent liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 21)

Redeemable noncontrolling interests

Common stock, $1.00 par value, shares authoriz8601000,000
shares issued: 2014 - 706,761,661; 2013 - 700,838,7

Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost (2014 - 41,264,918; 20153643,146 shares)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac.
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

September 30,
2014 2013

$ 40¢ $ 1,05¢
5,871 7,20¢

2,471 2,32t

2,157 804

2,19: 2,30¢

13,107 13,69¢

6,31¢ 6,58t

7,127 6,58¢

1,63¢ 99¢

1,01¢ 1,02¢

63C —

2,96¢ 2,622

$ 32,80: $ 31,51¢
$ 18 % 11¢
14C 81¢

5,27( 6,31¢

1,12¢ 1,21¢

1,801 40z

3,17¢ 3,244

11,69 12,117

6,357 4,56(

86& 75C

2,132 1,36(

9,35¢ 6,67(

194 157

707 70C

2,66¢ 2,39¢

9,95¢ 9,32¢
(1,789 (531)

(237) 41¢

11,31: 12,31

251 26(

11,56: 12,57:

$ 32,80: $ 31,51¢




The accompanying notes are an integral part of thBnancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Operating Activities
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,21 % 1,17¢ % 1,18¢
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 12C 114 12¢€
Net income 1,33¢ 1,292 1,31(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praviole operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 95t 952 824
Pension and postretirement benefit expense (income) 321 (475) 47¢
Pension and postretirement contributions (161) 97 (419
Equity in earnings of partially-owned affiliatestrof dividends received (153 (8€) (13¢)
Deferred income taxes (329 273 (239
Non-cash restructuring and impairment charges 181 58€ 53
Loss (gain) on divestitures - net 111 (483) (40
Fair value adjustment of equity investment (39) (20¢€) 12
Equity-based compensation 82 64 5€
Other 2 (21 (11)
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding adtipris and divestitures:
Receivables (18 (182) (119
Inventories (311) 97 10¢
Other assets (192 (183 (367)
Restructuring reserves (31 234 19¢
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44¢ 691 (63)
Accrued income taxes 197 322 (79)
Cash provided by operating activities 2,39t 2,68¢ 1,55¢

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures (1,299 (1,377) (1,83))
Sale of property, plant and equipment 7¢ 11€ 58
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (1,739 (123 (30
Business divestitures 22t 761 10¢
Changes in long-term investments 19 (1C) (100)
Other 1€ 53 6

Cash used by investing activities (2,599 (580) (1,792)

Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in short-term debt - net 73 (197) (302)
Increase in long-term debt 2,001 114 1,26(
Repayment of long-term debt (839 (490 (3€)
Stock repurchases (1,249 (350 (102)
Payment of cash dividends (56¢) (519 477
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 18¢€ 254 4C
Cash paid to acquire a noncontrolling interest (5) (64) (115
Other ()] 32 (61)

Cash provided (used) by financing activities (412) (1,214 207
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaénts (20 (98) 34
Cash held for sale (1€) (4 —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (64€) 79C 8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,05¢ 26E 257

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 40¢ % 1,058 % 26E




The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity Attbutable to Johnson Controls,

nc.

Accumulated

Capital in Treasury Other
Common  Excess of Retained Stock, Comprehensive
(in millions, except per share data) Total Stock Par Value  Earnings at Cost Income (Loss)
At September 30, 2011 $ 11,15 $ 68: $ 194¢ $ 795 $ (74) $ 64¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 992 — — 1,18¢ — (197
Cash dividends

Common ($0.72 per share) (492 — — (492 — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interests (35 — — (35 — —
Repurchases of common stock (102 — — — (102 —
Other, including options exercised 107 5 101 4 (©)] —
At September 30, 2012 11,62¢ 68¢ 2,04 8,611 179 45¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 1,13¢ — — 1,17¢ — (40

Cash dividends

Common ($0.76 per share) (520 — — (520 — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interests 59 — — 59 — —
Repurchases of common stock (350 — — — (350 —
Other, including options exercised 362 12 352 — 2 —
At September 30, 2013 12,31« 70C 2,39¢ 9,32¢ (53)) 41€
Comprehensive income (loss) 56( — — 1,21t — (65%)
Cash dividends
Common ($0.88 per share) (58€) — — (58¢€) — —
Repurchases of common stock (1,249 — — — (1,249 —
Other, including options exercised 272 7 27C Q) (4) —
At September 30, 2014 $ 11317 $ 707 $ 2,66¢ $ 995¢ $ (1,78) $ (237)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
Johnson Controls, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tbepants of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its domestid nont.S. subsidiaries that ¢
consolidated in conformity with accounting prinepl generally accepted in the United States of AsaefU.S. GAAP). All significar
intercompany transactions have been eliminatecedtmrents in partiallpwned affiliates are accounted for by the equitythod when th
Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Companyraddsgve a controlling interest.

Under certain criteria as provided for in Financhadcounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadd Codification (ASC) 81
"Consolidation," the Company may consolidate aigiytowned affiliate. To determine whether to colidate a partiallypwned affiliate, th
Company first determines if the entity is a var@abiterest entity (VIE). An entity is consideredlie a VIE if it has one of the followil
characteristics: 1) the entity is thinly capitatize?) residual equity holders do not control theitgn3) equity holders are shielded fr
economic losses or do not participate fully in gmtity’s residual economics; or 4) the entity watablished with nosubstantive voting.
the entity meets one of these characteristicsCthrapany then determines if it is the primary beriafy of the VIE. The party with the pov
to direct activities of the VIE that most signifitly impact the VIES economic performance and the potential to abiseniefits or losses tt
could be significant to the VIE is considered thenary beneficiary and consolidates the VIE. If gty is not considered a VIE, then
Company applies the voting interest model to deiteerwhether or not the Company shall consolidateptrtially-owned affiliate.

Consolidated VIEs

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, tleen@any has determined that it was the primary lieinef in threeVIEs for the reportin



periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2(88the Company absorbs significant economic®fentities and has the power to direc
activities that are considered most significarthi® entities.

Two of the VIEs manufacture products in North Amarfor the automotive industry. The Company furids éntities’ shorterm liquidity
needs through revolving credit facilities and Has power to direct the activities that are congidanost significant to the entities througt
key customer supply relationships.

During the three month period ended December 311 28 pre-existing VIE accounted for under the gguiethod was reorganized irtaree
separate investments as a result of the countgrpretrcising its option to put its interest to thempany. The Company acquired additi
interests in twmf the reorganized group entities. The reorgangredip entities are considered to be VIEs as theraitvner party has be
provided decision making rights but does not haydtg at risk. The Company is considered the printaneficiary of on®f the entities du
to the Company power pertaining to decisions over significartivities of the entity. As such, this VIE has bemmsolidated within tt
Company’s consolidated statements of financialtfmsi The impact of consolidation of the entity tve Companys consolidated stateme
of income for the years ended September 30, 20842803 was not material. The VIE is named as aldigor under a third party de
agreement of $168 millionmaturing in fiscal 2020, under which it could bee subject to paying more than its allocated shhthe thirc
party debt in the event of bankruptcy of one orenafrthe other co-obligors. The otheralotigors, all related parties in which the Compés
an equity investor, consist of the remaining greufities involved in the reorganization. As partlodé overall reorganization transaction,
Company has also provided financial support togiteeip entities in the form of loans totaling $57liom , which are subordinate to the tt
party debt agreement. The Company is a significastomer of certain cobligors, resulting in a remote possibility of logglditionally, the
Company is subject to a floor guaranty expirindigcal 2022; in the event that the other ownerypard longer owns any part of the gr
entities due to sale or transfer, the Company hasagteed that the proceeds received from thewsalensfer will not be less tha$REt
million . The Company has partnered with the grenfities to design and manufacture battery compsrienthe Power Solutions business.
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The carrying amounts and classification of assetsé of which are restricted) and liabilities irddd in the Compang’ consolidate
statements of financial position for the consokdVIEs are as follows (in millions):

September 30,
2014 2013
Current assets $ 21¢  $ 273
Noncurrent assets 13¢€ 13¢
Total assets $ 35€¢ $ 412
Current liabilities $ 18¢ % 212
Noncurrent liabilities 37 39
Total liabilities $ 22€ % 251

The Company did not have a significant variabler@st in any other consolidated VIEs for the presstreporting periods.
Nonconsolidated VIEs

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had a #lésest in an equity method investee whereby tivestee was a VIE. The inves
produces and sells leadtid batteries of which the Company both purchases supplies certain batteries to complement eawebstmer
partner’s portfolio. The Company had a contractigiit to purchase the remaining 6@¥uity interest in the investee between May 201d
May 2016 (the "call option"). If the Company didtrexercise the call option prior to its expirationMay 2016, for a period ofix month:
thereafter the Company was subject to a contractbiédation at the counterparty’s option to sekk tBiompanys equity investment in tl
investee to the counterparty (the "repurchase ofjtidrhe purchase price was fixed under both tHeagion and the repurchase opti
Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, tlen@any determined that the investee was a VIE @eduity holders, through their eqt
investments, may not participate fully in the enstresidual economics. The Company was not the pyifeneficiary as the Company
not have the power to make key operating decistmmsidered to be most significant to the VIE. Tkane the investee was accountec
under the equity method of accounting as the Corigaimterest exceeded 20% and the Company did na hasontrolling interest. Tl
investment balance included within investments artiplly-owned affiliates in the consolidated statementsfinéncial position ¢
September 30, 2013 was $56 million , which repriezbthe Compang’ maximum exposure to loss. Current assets anititlesbrelated to th
VIE were immaterial and represented normal coufdausiness trade receivables and payables foraedemted periods. In the first quarte
fiscal 2014, the Company purchased an addition® BQuity interest in the investee to bring the Conyfsatotal interest in the investee
90% . As a result of this transaction, the fixed praadl option and repurchase option no longer exiat] the Company consolidates
investee under the voting interest model. ReféMdte 2, "Acquisitions and Divestitures," of the @®to consolidated financial statement:
additional information regarding this transaction.

As mentioned previously within the "ConsolidatedE¥T section above, during the three month periotiednDecember 31, 2011, a pre-
existing VIE was reorganized into threeparate investments as a result of the countgrpadrcising its option to put its interest to
Company. The reorganized group entities are coreid® be VIEs as the other owner party has beewiged decision making rights |
does not have equity at risk. The Company is nosickered to be the primary beneficiary of tefathe entities as the Company cannot n
key operating decisions considered to be most feggni to the VIES. Therefore, the entities arecarted for under the equity methoc
accounting as the Company’s interest exceeds 2@thenCompany does not have a controlling intefidse. Companys maximum exposu

to loss includes the partially-owned affiliate istment balance of $59 million and $57 million ap®enber 30, 2014 and 2018espectively

as well as the subordinated loan from the Compamyd party debt agreement and floor guaranty nometil previously within tt
"Consolidated VIEs" section above. Current lialgBtdue to the VIEs are not material and represemhal course of business trade paye
for all presented periods.

The Company did not have a significant variableriest in any other nonconsolidated VIEs for thes@néed reporting periods.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statemémiconformity with U.S. GAAP requires managemeninake estimates and assumpt

that affect the reported amounts of assets andifieb and disclosure of contingent assets antilltges at the date of the financial statem
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the reporting period. Actual results coultfetifrom those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, atsaaceivable, shoterm debt and accounts payable approximate thaiying values. Se
Note 10, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Adiés," and Note 11, "Fair Value Measurements,"haf hotes to consolidated finan:
statements for fair value of financial instrumeintsjuding derivative instruments, hedging actadtiand long-term debt.

Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

The Company classifies assets and liabilities (iapgroups) to be sold as held for sale in theogen which all of the following criteria a
met: management, having the authority to approeeattiion, commits to a plan to sell the disposaligr the disposal group is available
immediate sale in its present condition subjecy dolterms that are usual and customary for sdlesich disposal groups; an active prog
to locate a buyer and other actions required topteta the plan to sell the disposal group have ligated; the sale of the disposal grou
probable, and transfer of the disposal group issetqul to qualify for recognition as a completede saithin one year, except if events
circumstances beyond the Company's control exteaghériod of time required to sell the disposalugrbeyond one year; the disposal g
is being actively marketed for sale at a price thatasonable in relation to its current fair egland actions required to complete the
indicate that it is unlikely that significant chasgto the plan will be made or that the plan wélvithdrawn.

The Company initially measures a disposal groupithelassified as held for sale at the lower sfciarrying value or fair value less any c
to sell. Any loss resulting from this measuremanteicognized in the period in which the held fde saiteria are met. Conversely, gains
not recognized on the sale of a disposal group th&idate of sale. The Company assesses thediaie wf a disposal group less any cos
sell each reporting period it remains classifiedhalsl for sale and reports any subsequent charsgas adjustment to the carrying value of
disposal group, as long as the new carrying vabes chot exceed the carrying value of the dispagalmat the time it was initially classifi
as held for sale.

Upon determining that a disposal group meets therier to be classified as held for sale, the Camyp@ports the assets and liabilities of
disposal group, if material, in the line items asdeld for sale, noncurrent assets held for sadeliabilities held for sale in the consolida
statement of financial position. Refer to Note Bjstontinued Operations,” of the notes to constdiddinancial statements for furtl
information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmewith a maturity of three monthsr less when purchased to be cash equivalen
September 30, 2014 and 2013 , the Company heldctest cash of approximately $4 million and $32limil , respectively, within cash a
cash equivalents. These amounts primarily wereectat from customers for payment of maintenancesagsder contract, and withdraw
are restricted for this purpose.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and curreshily from customers and unbilled costs and acquusfits related to revenues on loteg+r
contracts that have been recognized for accoumimgoses but not yet billed to customers. The Comptends credit to customers in
normal course of business and maintains an allogvéorcdoubtful accounts resulting from the inailir unwillingness of customers to mi
required payments. The allowance for doubtful aot®us based on historical experience, existinghnenuc conditions and any spec
customer collection issues the Company has idedftifi

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtanking the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Bhed goods and work-iprocess inventoris
include material, labor and manufacturing overheasts.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arangements

The Companys policy for engineering, research and developnamd,other design and development costs relatpcbtiucts that will be so
under longterm supply arrangements requires such costs texpensed as incurred or capitalized if reimburserfrem the customer
contractually assured. Income related to recovdrythese costs is recorded within selling, generad administrative expense in

consolidated statements of income. At Septembe2@04 and 2013 the Company recorded within the consolidatecestants of financii
position approximately $265 million and $259 mifliprespectively, of engineering and research aneldpment costs for which custor
reimbursement is contractually assured. The reisdfle costs are recorded
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in other current assets if reimbursement will odauess than one year and in other noncurrenta#fseimbursement will occur beyoruhe
year.

Costs for molds, dies and other tools used to nmkducts that will be sold under lotgrm supply arrangements are capitalized w
property, plant and equipment if the Company hts to the assets or has the raamcelable right to use the assets during the tdrthe
supply arrangement. Capitalized items, if spedifjcdesigned for a supply arrangement, are amattiaeer the term of the arrangem
otherwise, amounts are amortized over the estimagetul lives of the assets. The carrying valueassits capitalized in accordance witl
foregoing policy are periodically reviewed for inipaent whenever events or changes in circumstaincisate that its carrying amount n
not be recoverable. At September 30, 2014 and 2@pproximately $96 million and $99 milligrrespectively, of costs for molds, dies
other tools were capitalized within property, plamd equipment which represented assets to whelCtimpany had title. In addition,
September 30, 2014 and 2013he Company recorded within the consolidatedestants of financial position in other current as
approximately $151 million and $297 millignrespectively, of costs for molds, dies and otioets for which customer reimbursemer
contractually assured.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Eeetreciation is provided over the estimated uskfek of the respective assets using
straight-line method for financial reporting purpesand accelerated methods for income tax purpdbesestimated useful lives range fr@m
to 40 years for buildings and improvements and fota 15 years for machinery and equipment.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsrdyutihe active construction period of major capitajects. Capitalized interest is adde
the cost of the underlying assets and is amortized the useful lives of the assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable asstets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ajger or more frequently if events or changes inurnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment revieasits reporting units, which have been determiteedbe the Compang’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segnierdsrtain instances, using a fair value methogetaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddae received to sell the unit as a whol
an orderly transaction between market participattthe measurement date. In estimating the faweyathe Company uses multiples
earnings based on the average of historical, phédismultiples of earnings of comparable entitiethvgimilar operations and econol
characteristics. In certain instances, the Compe®g discounted cash flow analyses or estimated paice to further support the fair ve
estimates. The inputs utilized in the analyse<kassified as Level 3 inputs within the fair vahierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Ve
Measurement.” The estimated fair value is then @eg with the carrying amount of the reporting uimtluding recorded goodwill. Tl
Company is subject to financial statement riskhéxtent that the carrying amount exceeds thmatsd fair value.

Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Ass" of the notes to consolidated financial statet® for information regarding t
goodwill impairment testing performed in the fouggharters of fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are alsoject to at least annual impairment testing. Othangible assets with definite lives conti
to be amortized over their estimated useful lived are subject to impairment testing if eventstmnges in circumstances indicate tha
asset might be impaired. A considerable amountarfagement judgment and assumptions are requirgetiorming the impairment tests.

Refer to Note 17, "Impairment of Lorigved Assets,” of the notes to consolidated finahatatements for information regarding
impairment testing performed in fiscal years 2(201,3 and 2012.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews longred assets, including property, plant and equiphaad other intangible assets with definite liies,impairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the asset’carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Comganducts i
long-lived asset impairment analyses in accordamtie ASC 360-10-15, "Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets." ASC 360-105
requires the Company to group assets and lialildaiethe lowest level for which identifiable castwis are largely independent of the ¢
flows of other assets and liabilities and evaldhteasset group against the sum of the undiscodutect cash flows. If the undiscounted ¢
flows do not indicate the carrying amount of theedss recoverable, an impairment charge is medsage¢he amount by which the carry
amount of the asset group exceeds its fair valsedan discounted cash flow analysis or appraisals.
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Refer to Note 17, "Impairment of Lorigved Assets,” of the notes to consolidated finahatatements for information regarding
impairment testing performed in fiscal years 2(201,3 and 2012.

Percentage-of-Completion Contracts

The Building Efficiency business records certaingderm contracts under the percentageafipletion (POC) method of accounting. Ur
this method, sales and gross profit are recogni=edvork is performed based on the relationship éetwactual costs incurred and t
estimated costs at completion. The Company recoodss and earnings in excess of billings on uncetegl contracts primarily with
accounts receivable and billings in excess of casth earnings on uncompleted contracts primarilghiwiother current liabilities in tl
consolidated statements of financial position. €@std earnings in excess of billings related tseheontracts were $507 million as80:
million at September 30, 2014 and 2013 , respdgti®&illings in excess of costs and earnings reldtethese contracts were $363 milliamc
$250 million at September 30, 2014 and 2013 , ispmy.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsizevenue from certain lortgrm contracts over the contractual period unde
percentage-otompletion method of accounting. This method ofoacting recognizes sales and gross profit as woperformed based
the relationship between actual costs incurredtated estimated costs at completion. Recognizedmegs that will not be billed under
terms of the contract until a later date are reedrorimarily in accounts receivable. Likewise, caots where billings to date have excet
recognized revenues are recorded primarily in otherent liabilities. Changes to the original esties may be required during the life of
contract and such estimates are reviewed montllesSand gross profit are adjusted using the cuielaatchup method for revisions
estimated total contract costs and contract valdsmated losses are recorded when identifiednSlagainst customers are recognize
revenue upon settlement. The amount of accountsviadgle due after one year is not significant. Tise of the POC method of accoun
involves considerable use of estimates in detengimévenues, costs and profits and in assigningatheunts to accounting periods.
periodic reviews have not resulted in adjustmehg tvere significant to the Compansyresults of operations. The Company contini
evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and urioéiga inherent with the application of the POC hoet of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into exthdvarranties and longrm service and maintenance agreements with nectetomer:
For these arrangements, revenue is recognizedstaight-line basis over the respective contrachte

The Companys Building Efficiency business also sells certa@ating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) arefrigeration products a
services in bundled arrangements, where multiptelyets and/or services are involved. In accordamitie ASU No. 200913, "Revenu
Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Rewen Arrangements A Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Fothe
Company divides bundled arrangements into sepakdieerables and revenue is allocated to each efalble based on the relative sel
price method. Significant deliverables within theseingements include equipment, commissioningicetabor and extended warranties
order to estimate relative selling price, markefadand transfer price studies are utilized. Apprately four to twelve monthseparate tt
timing of the first deliverable until the last peeof equipment is delivered, and there may be edgnvarranty arrangements with duratio
one to five years commencing upon the end of thiedstrd warranty period.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascgsrare performed.
Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research activities relating toduct development and improvement are charged stg@icome as incurred and inclus
within selling, general and administrative expengesthe consolidated statement of income. Such mdipgres for the years enc
September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $792 mill®791 million and $834 millionrespectively. A portion of the costs associatéith
these activities is reimbursed by customers andfHe fiscal years ended September 30, 2014 , 20032012 were $352 million$347
million and $426 million , respectively.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents both basic and diluted eamagshare (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcutgtédii/iding net income attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. by the weighted average murabcommon shares outstanding during the reppgriod. Diluted EPS is calcula
by dividing net income attributable to Johnson @alst Inc. by the weighted average number of commsleeres and common equiva
shares outstanding during the reporting period #natcalculated using the treasury stock methodstimek options and unvested restris
stock. See Note 13, "Earnings per Share," of thesim consolidated financial statements for theutation of earnings per share.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Compargyinternational operations use the respective loaakncy as the functional currency. Assets aatuilities o
international entities have been translated abpexnd exchange rates, and income and expenses havéraeslated using average exchi
rates for the period. Monetary assets and liagdidenominated in non-functional currencies arasaegl to reflect periodnd exchange rat
The aggregate transaction gains (losses), net efirtipact of foreign currency hedges, included in imeome for the years enc
September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $(8) miJl|&(25) million and $12 million , respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has written policies and proceduretsfiage all financial instruments under the direetof corporate treasury and restric
derivative transactions to those intended for heglgiurposes. The use of financial instruments fecalative purposes is strictly prohibit
The Company uses financial instruments to managerthirket risk from changes in foreign exchangesyatemmodity prices, stodbase:
compensation liabilities and interest rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are recordedhia consolidated statements of financial positiime change in a derivativefair value i
recorded each period in current earnings or accatedilother comprehensive income, depending on whétle derivative is designatec
part of a hedge transaction and if so, the typeedlige transaction. See Note 10, "Derivative Insémisiand Hedging Activities," and Note
"Fair Value Measurements," of the notes to constdid financial statements for disclosure of the gamy's derivative instruments a
hedging activities.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The Company utilizes a mark-toarket approach for recognizing pension and pastreént benefit expenses, including measuring take
related value of plan assets at fair value andgmieong actuarial gains and losses in the fourthrtpr of each fiscal year or at the date
remeasurement event. Refer to Note 15, "Retireftarts,"” of the notes to consolidated financialestegnts for disclosure of the Compa
pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Retrospective Changes

Certain amounts as of September 30, 2014 , 2013284@ , as described below, have been revised mfoico to the current yea’
presentation.

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganittexdreportable segments within its Building Effioig business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aesiviPrior to this reorganization, Building Effiniey was comprised of fiveeportabli
segments for financial reporting purposes: Northefina Systems, North America Service, Global WakplSolutions, Asia and Other. A
result of this change, Building Efficiency is nownaprised of foureportable segments for financial reporting purpogéth the only chang
being the combination of North America Systems Biodth America Service into one reportable segmaiied North America Systems ¢
Service. Historical information has been reviseckeftect the new Building Efficiency reportable segnt structure.

At March 31, 2014, the Company determined thatAitdsomotive Experience Electronics segment met thier@a to be classified as
discontinued operation, which required retrospectapplication to financial information for all peds presented. Refer to Note
"Discontinued Operations," of the notes to conséd financial statements for further informati@garding the Company's discontin
operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargsldte (ASU) No. 20149, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Toi6)6
ASU No. 201409 clarifies the principles for recognizing reverwdeen an entity either enters into a contract witetomers to transfer goc
or services or enters into a contract for the fiensf non-financial assets. ASU No. 200g-will be effective retrospectively for the Compg
for the quarter ending December 31, 2017, withyeadoption not permitted. The Company is curreaigessing the impact adoption of
guidance may have on its consolidated financiaéstants.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2008; "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topi6)2ihd Property, Plant and Equipn
(Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations dddclosures of Disposals of Components of an EfitiSU No. 201408 limits
discontinued operations reporting to situationsnetiee disposal represents a strategic shift thsi(dr will have)
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a major effect on an entity's operations and fire@nesults, and requires expanded disclosuredifmontinued operations. ASU No. 2008-
will be effective prospectively for the Company fiisposals that occur during or after the quartetirg December 31, 2015, with e¢
adoption permitted in certain instances. The sigaifce of this guidance for the Company is depenadle@ny future dispositions or dispos.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 201B- "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of amedognized Tax Benefit When a |
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossacfax Credit Carryforward Exists." ASU No. 2013-clarifies that companies sho
present an unrecognized tax benefit as a redutdiandeferred tax asset for a net operating losgfoaward, a similar tax loss or a tax cre
carryforward. ASU No. 20131 will be effective prospectively for the Compafor the quarter ending December 31, 2014, withy
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assgsthe impact adoption of this guidance may haweits consolidated statement
financial position. The adoption of this guidandd thave no impact on the Company's consolidatadlts of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 201R- "Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Paredttsounting for the Cumulati
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Cert8ubsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreigrity or of an Investment in
Foreign Entity." ASU No. 2013-05 clarifies when goamies should release the cumulathemslation adjustment (CTA) into net income w
a parent either sells a part or all of its investtrie a foreign entity or no longer holds a contng financial interest in a subsidiary or grou
assets within a foreign entity. Additionally, ASWbN201305 states that CTA should be released into netilecopon an acquirer obtain
control of an acquiree in which it held an equitterest immediately before the acquisition datep(sicquisition). ASU No. 20135 was earl
adopted by the Company in the quarter ended SepieB() 2014. The adoption of this guidance did lmte a significant impact on
Company's consolidated financial condition or ressaf operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-"Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): ReportingAafiounts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU NA.3X02 requires companies to provide information altbetamounts reclassified
of accumulated other comprehensive income by comporAdditionally, companies are required to diseldhese reclassifications by e
respective line item on the statements of inconf@UANo. 201392 was effective for the Company for the quarteteehDecember 31, 20:
The adoption of this guidance had no impact onGbenpany's consolidated financial condition or ressof operations. Refer to Note
"Equity and Noncontrolling Interests," of the notesonsolidated financial statements for disclesuegarding other comprehensive income.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bajance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about QffgeAAssets and Liabilities." AS
No. 20111 requires additional quantitative and qualitativ&closures of gross and net information regardiegvative instruments that
offset or eligible for offset in the consolidatadtement of financial position. ASU No. 2011-was effective for the Company for the qu
ending December 31, 2013. The adoption of this angd had no impact on the Companygonsolidated financial condition or result:
operations. Refer to Note 10, "Derivative Instrutseend Hedging Activities," of the notes to condaled financial statements for disclos
of gross and net information regarding the Comgsadgtivative instruments.

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

On June 16, 2014, the Company completed its puechfgir Distribution Technologies, Inc. (ADT) fapproximately $1.6 billion net o
cash acquired, all of which was paid as of Septen3e 2014. ADT is one of the largest independewntiders of air distribution at
ventilation products in North America. On June 2314, the Company completed a public offering af7$illion aggregate principal amot
of fixed rate senior notes to finance the purchafs@DT. In connection with the ADT acquisition, tl@mpany recorded goodwill &837
million in the Building Efficiency Other segmenth& Company also recorded approximately $477 millibmtangible assets that are suk
to amortization, of which approximately $475 mifliovas assigned to customer relationships with udiefs between 18 and 2fears. h
addition, the Company recorded approximately $280om of trade names that are not subject to amortizafibe purchase price allocatic
may be subsequently adjusted to reflect final widnastudies.

Also during fiscal 2014, the Company completed fadditional acquisitions for a combined purchaseepmet of cash acquired, $f4<
million , all of which was paid as of September 30, 201t @cquisitions in the aggregate were not mataridhe Company's consolida
financial statements. In connection with the adtjoiss, the Company recorded goodwill of $140 roilli The purchase price allocations r
be subsequently adjusted to reflect final valuatitrdies. Threef the acquisitions increased the Company's owigefsbm a noncontrollin
to controlling interest. As a result, the Compaagarded a combined non-cash gain of $38 milliloequity income to adjust the Compa
existing equity investments in the partially-owredffiliates to fair value. The $38 million gain incles $19 milliorfor the Power Solutiol
business and $19 million for the Building Efficign&sia business.
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On September 30, 2014, the Company announced tigtion to divest its Global Workplace Solutionssimess. The Company
determined that the business meets the criteripet@lassified as held for sale in the consolidattdement of financial position as
September 30, 2014. Refer to Note 3, "DiscontinDpdrations," of the notes to consolidated finansiatements for further disclosure rel:
to the Company's assets held for sale.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Companynpteted the divestiture of the Automotive Experinnteriors headliner and sun vi
product lines. As part of this divestiture, the Q@mmy made a cash payment of $54 millimnthe buyer to fund future operatio
improvement initiatives. The Company recorded atpreloss on divestiture, including transactiontspef $95 million. The tax impact of tt
divestiture was income tax expense of $38 milliae tb the jurisdictional mix of gains and lossedtensale, which resulted in ndenefite(
losses in certain countries and taxable gainshiaratountries. There was no change in goodwill eesalt of this transaction.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compangoreled a $25 milliorioss in the Building Efficiency Global Workplace I8tions segmel
related to the indemnification of certain costoagsted with a divested business in 2004.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compamyoanced that it had reached an agreement to tselteémainder of its Automoti
Experience Electronics business to Visteon Corpmrasubject to regulatory and other approvals. 3&le closed on July 1, 2014. The «
proceeds from the sale were $266 millicall of which was received as of September 3042@& March 31, 2014, the Company determ
that the Automotive Experience Electronics segmmet the criteria to be classified as a discontinopgration. Refer to Note
"Discontinued Operations,” of the notes to consd#d financial statements for further disclosurateel to the Company's discontini
operations.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Companynpteted one additional divestiture for a salesepat$13 million, all of which was receive
as of September 30, 2014. The divestiture was retemal to the Compang’ consolidated financial statements. In connectigth the
divestiture, the Company recorded a gain, netasfaaction costs, of $9 million in the AutomotivepExience Interiors segment. There was
change in goodwill as a result of this transaction.

During fiscal 2014, the Company adjusted the pusehaice allocation of certain fiscal 2013 acqigsis and recorded additional goodwil
$2 million .

During fiscal 2013, the Company completed threeusitipns for a combined purchase price, net ohcasquired, of $123 million all of
which was paid as of September 30, 2013. The aitiguis in the aggregate were not material to then@any's consolidated financ
statements. In connection with the acquisitiong, @ompany recorded goodwill of $266 million . Twb the acquisitions increased
Company's ownership from a noncontrolling to cdlfitrg interest. As a result, the Company recordecbmbined non-cash gain 6f0¢
million in Automotive Experience Seating equity amee to adjust the Company's existing equity invesitsin the partiallpwned affiliate
to fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compaompleted its divestiture of its Automotive Expace Electronics' HomeLink@®roduc
line to Gentex Corporation. The selling price wa@®% million, all of which was received as of September 303201 connection with tt
HomeLink® product line divestiture, the Companyaeled a gain, net of transaction costs, of $47@ianiland reduced goodwill b$177
million in the Automotive Experience Electronicssmess.

Also during fiscal 2013, the Company completed aaditional divestitures for a combined sales pnieg,of cash transferred, of $60 million
all of which was received as of September 30, 20h8. divestitures were not material to the Commaoghsolidated financial statements
connection with the divestitures, the Company réedra gain of $29 million and reduced goodwill ki5$million in the Automotiv:
Experience Seating segment, and recorded a lassf transaction costs, of $22 million in the Build Efficiency Other segment.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeusitipns for a combined purchase price, net ohcasquired, of $38 million all of
which was paid as of September 30, 2012. The aitiquis in the aggregate were not material to then@anys consolidated financi
statements. In connection with the acquisitions,@lempany recorded goodwill of $50 million . Asesult of twoof the acquisitions, each
which increased the Company’s ownership from a aptrolling to controlling interest, the Company aeted an aggregate naash gain ¢
$12 million , of which $9 million was recorded witthPower Solutions equity income and $3 milliwas recorded in Automotive Experie
Seating equity income, to adjust the Company’stijsequity investments in the partially-owned lédfies to fair value.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeestitures for a combined sales price of $105 mmilli@ll of which was received as
September 30, 2012. The divestitures in the agtgegare not material to the Company’s consolidéteghcial statements.
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In connection with the divestitures, the Compargorded a gain, net of transaction costs, of $40aniand reduced goodwill b$34 million
in the Building Efficiency business.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Companynpleted its divestiture of its Automotive ExpegerElectronics' HomeLink®roduct line
to Gentex Corporation. In the second quarter afafi®014, the Company announced that it had reaahéefinitive agreement to sell -
remainder of the Automotive Experience Electroricsiness to Visteon Corporation, subject to regwyatind other approvals. The ¢
closed on July 1, 2014. At March 31, 2014, the Camypdetermined that the Automotive Experience Edaits segment met the criteria tc
classified as a discontinued operation, which mneglietrospective application to financial inforioatfor all periods presented. The Comg
did not allocate any general corporate overhealtisimontinued operations. The assets and liabildfahe Automotive Experience Electror
segment were reflected as held for sale in thedtmlzded statement of financial position at Septengd, 2013.

The following table summarizes the results of theofnotive Experience Electronics business, whickuiles the HomeLink®roduct line il
fiscal 2013 and 2012 results, reclassified as diticoed operations for fiscal years ended Septei@®e2014 , 2013 and 2012 (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Net sales $ 1,027 % 1,32 % 1,351
Income (loss) from discontinued operations befoo®ine taxes (8) 57¢ 134
Provision for income taxes on discontinued openatio 20z 472 48
Income from discontinued operations attributabladacontrolling
interests, net of tax 8 5 1
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, naagf $ (21¢) $ 101 $ 85

For the year ended September 30, 2014 , the discewt operations before income taxes included tives-related losses &80 million
comprised of asset and investment impairment claofeb43 million , transaction costs of $27 milliand severance obligations $1C
million . For the year ended September 30, 201 discontinued operations before income taxesides a $476 milliomain on divestitur
of the HomeLink® product line net of transactiorstsoand $28 million of restructuring costs.

The effective tax rate is different than the U.@tgory rate for fiscal 2014 primarily due to sedaguarter discrete nazash tax charge
$180 millionrelated to the repatriation of foreign cash assediavith the divestiture of the Electronics busgesid unbenefited forei
losses. The effective rate is different than th&.statutory rate for fiscal 2013 primarily duethe tax consequences of the sale o
HomeLink® product line, the change in our assertion overvestment of foreign undistributed earnings and nefited foreign losses. T
effective rate is different than the U.S. statut@te for fiscal 2012 primarily due to unbenefifeckign losses.

Assetsand Liabilities Held for Sale
The Company has determined that certain of itsnmssies met the criteria to be classified as heldsdte. The Automotive Experier
Electronics segment and the headliner and sun pigatuct lines were classified as held for salarb@gg September 30, 2013. The head

and sun visor product lines and the Automotive Exgmee Electronics segment were sold during thel tand fourth quarters of fiscal 20
respectively; refer to Note 2, "Acquisitions and/&stitures," of the notes to consolidated finansiatements for additional information.
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The following table summarizes the carrying valdett® Electronics and headliner and sun visor asaatl liabilities held for sale |
millions):

September 30,
2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4
Accounts receivable - net 197
Inventories 124
Other current assets 91
Property, plant and equipment - net 167
Goodwill 74
Other intangible assets - net 57
Investments in partially-owned affiliates 26
Other noncurrent assets 64
Assets held for sale $ 804
Short-term debt $ 5
Accounts payable 258
Accrued compensation and benefits 46
Other current liabilities 85
Pension and postretirement benefits 13
Liabilities held for sale $ 402

Assets and liabilities classified as held for satge required to be recorded at the lower of cagyialue or fair value less any costs to
Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20Be Company recorded an impairment charge of $4liomio write down the headliner a
sun visor long-lived assets to zero . Additionathhe Company recorded asset and investment impairaearges of $43 milliom the thirc
quarter of fiscal 2014 to write down the carryirgjue of the Electronics assets held for sale toviue less any cost to sell. Refer to Note
"Impairment of Longtived Assets" of the notes to consolidated finahstatements for further information regarding innpeent charges. Ti
headliner and sun visor product lines classifietheld for sale are immaterial to the Company irdlially and in the aggregate, and do
constitute a distinguishable business in ordeletolassified as a discontinued operation.

In May 2014, the Company announced the signing rofagreement to form a global automotive interiamtj venture with Yanfer
Automotive Trim Systems. As a result, a majoritytled Automotive Experience Interiors business rhetdriteria to be classified as held
sale. Additionally, in September 2014, the Companyounced its intention to divest its Global Wodqa Solutions business and
determined that the business meets the critetie tassified as held for sale.
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The following table summarizes the carrying valdeh® Interiors and Global Workplace Solutions &ssmnd liabilities held for sale |
millions):

September 30, 2014
Global Workplace

Interiors Solutions Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ — $ 20 $ 20
Accounts receivable - net 59¢€ 723 1,31¢
Inventories 20¢ 9 21¢
Other current assets 174 57 231
Property, plant and equipment - net 49€ 34 53C
Goodwill 12 258 265
Other intangible assets - net 4 35 39
Investments in partially-owned affiliates 83 — 83
Other noncurrent assets 35 47 82
Assets held for sale $ 1,60¢ $ 1,17¢ $ 2,78
Short-term debt $ — 8 3 % 3
Accounts payable 65E 591 1,24¢
Accrued compensation and benefits 24 12¢ 152
Other current liabilities 154 24¢ 40C
Liabilities held for sale $ 83 $ 96¢ $ 1,801

These divestitures could result in a gain or lassale to the extent the ultimate selling pricéed#f from the carrying value of the net as
recorded for each business. The Interiors businkssified as held for sale does not meet theri@it® be classified as a discontin
operation at September 30, 2014 primarily due ® @ompany's anticipated continuing involvement hiese operations following
divestiture. The Global Workplace Solutions businelassified as held for sale does not meet thierizrito be classified as a discontin
operation at September 30, 2014 primarily due ¢outhicertainty regarding the Company's potentiatioaoimg involvement in these operatis
following a divestiture and the status of transattiegotiations.

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in milligns

September 30,
2014 2013
Raw materials and supplies $ 1,12¢ % 1,08¢
Work-in-process 39¢ 45¢
Finished goods 95C 78C
Inventories $ 2471 $ 2,32¢
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥dhg (in millions):

September 30,
2014 2013
Buildings and improvements $ 325¢ % 3,04¢
Machinery and equipment 7,94 8,18¢
Construction in progress 1,151 1,441
Land 37C 374
Total property, plant and equipment 12,71¢ 13,05(
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,405 (6,465
Property, plant and equipment - net $ 6,312 $ 6,58¢

Interest costs capitalized during the fiscal yearded September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $&8m $42 million and $55 million
respectively. Accumulated depreciation related apital leases at September 30, 2014 and 2013 wasn$ition and $44 million,
respectively.
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6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill ache of the Company’s reporting segments for theafigears ende8eptember 30, 20
and 2013 were as follows (in millions):

Currency
September 30, Business Business Translation an.  September 30,
2012 Acquisitions Divestitures Impairments Other 2013

Building Efficiency

North America Systems and

Service $ 1,22¢ % — 3 — — 3 @ s 1,22¢

Global Workplace Solutions 187 79 — — 9) 257

Asia 39¢ — — — ®) 38¢

Other 994 — — — 9 1,00z
Automotive Experience

Seating 2,48¢ 187 (15) — 3 2,65¢

Interiors 40z — — (430 28 —

Electronics 25( — (257) _ 1 _
Power Solutions 1,04( — — — 14 1,05¢
Total $ 6,98: $ 266 $ (266) $ (430 $ 37 % 6,58¢

Currency
September 30, Business Business Translation an.  September 30,
2013 Acquisitions Divestitures Impairments Other 2014

Building Efficiency

North America Systems and

Service $ 1,22¢ 3 — 3 — — 3 @ s 1,22

Global Workplace Solutions 257 — (259 _ (4 _

Asia 38¢ 34 — — (8 414

Other 1,00¢ 837 — (47 (5) 1,78¢
Automotive Experience

Seating 2,65¢ 2 — — (10¢) 2,55¢

Interiors — — 12 — 12 —
Power Solutions 1,054 10€ — — (18) 1,142
Total $ 6,58¢ $ 97¢ $ (265) $ 47 $ (12¢) ¢ 7,127

The fiscal 2014 Building Efficiency Global Workp&&olutions business divestitures amount inclu@&s $nillion of goodwill transferred f
assets held for sale on the consolidated stateafdimancial position. The fiscal 2014 Automotiveterience Interiors business divestitt
amount includes $12 millioof goodwill transferred to noncurrent assets hetdskle on the consolidated statement of finarmmmaition. Th
fiscal 2013 Automotive Experience Electronics basmdivestitures amount includes $74 milladrgoodwill transferred to assets held for
on the consolidated statement of financial positiBefer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operations,” oé thotes to consolidated finant
statements for further information regarding themPany's assets and liabilities held for sale.

During fiscal 2014, as a result of recent operatagylts, restructuring actions and expected fyuoétability, the Company's forecasted ¢
flow estimates used in the goodwill assessment wegatively impacted as of September 30, 2014HerRuilding Efficiency Other Latin
America reporting unit. As a result, the Compangaoded that the carrying value of the Buildingi&é&ncy Other Latin America reportin
unit exceeded its fair value as of September 30420he Company recorded a goodwill impairment geaof $47 millionin the fourtt
quarter of fiscal 2014, which was determined by paring the carrying value of the reporting unit®dwill with the implied fair value «
goodwill for the reporting unit. The Building Effency Other -Latin America reporting unit has no remaining gedddat September 3
2014.
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The Company's impairment testing in the fourth tpraof fiscal 2014 indicated that the estimated ¥aiue of the Building Efficiency Other -
Middle East reporting unit exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including goodwill by approxirlgt 9% . Accordingly, the Compai
has not recognized any impairment of goodwill aisged with this reporting unit, which as of SeptemB0, 2014 had a goodwill balance
$85 million . The Company continuously monitors for events amdumstances that could negatively impact the kegumptions |
determining fair value, including lontgrm revenue growth projections, profitability, cbsint rates, recent market valuations from tramnsas
by comparable companies, volatility in the Compsaumyarket capitalization, and general industry, raaaind macr@conomic conditions. It
possible that future changes in such circumstarnmes the variables associated with the judgmeassumptions and estimates use
assessing the fair value of the reporting unit, Weaquire the Company to record a nmash impairment charge. Except as described &
no other reporting units were determined to beskt of failing step one of the goodwill impairmeest as the impairment testing perfori
indicated that the estimated fair value of eacloripy unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorc
goodwill at September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

During fiscal 2013, based on a combination of festocluding the recent operating results of theotnotive Experience Interiors busine
restrictions on future capital and restructuringding, and the Company's announced intention tdoexstrategic options related to 1
business, the Company's forecasted cash flow astsmeed in the goodwill assessment were negativgigcted as of September 30, 2(
As a result, the Company concluded that the cagryalue of the Interiors reporting unit exceedsddir value as of September 30, 2013.
Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge &0rhillion in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, which wasettetined by comparing t!
carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill withe implied fair value of goodwill for the repioig unit.

The assumptions included in the impairment tesgsiire judgment, and changes to these inputs coofhét the results of the calculatic
Other than management's internal projections afréutash flows, the primary assumptions used iritipairment tests were the weighted-
average cost of capital and lotegm growth rates. Although the Company's cash florgcasts are based on assumptions that are eoee
reasonable by management and consistent with #res@nd estimates management is using to opertentterlying businesses, there
significant judgments in determining the expectatlife cash flows attributable to a reporting uifiihe impairment charges are noas}
expenses recorded within restructuring and impaitno®sts on the consolidated statements of inconmte ddd not adversely affect t
Company's debt position, cash flow, liquidity ormgaiance with financial covenants.

The Companys other intangible assets, primarily from busiresguisitions valued based on independent appraisatsisted of (in millions

September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Amortized intangible assets
Patented technology $ 86 $ (56) $ 30 % 92 % (53 $ 39
Customer relationships 1,015 (161 85¢€ 537 (13¢) 39¢
Miscellaneous 31z (10€) 20¢€ 33¢ (92) 24k
Total amortized intangible assets 1,41¢ (329 1,092 96~ (282) 68
Unamortized intangible assets
Trademarks/trade names 547 — 547 31¢ — 31¢
Total intangible assets $ 1,96z % (323 % 1,63¢ $ 1,281 % (282 $ 99¢

Amortization of other intangible assets for thedisyears ended September 30, 2014 , 2013 and284 %86 million , $75 million an#5€
million , respectively. Excluding the impact of afyture acquisitions, the Company anticipates airation for fiscal 2015 , 2016 , 2017
2018 and 2019 will be approximately $95 millior@0million , $86 million , $83 million and $77 min , respectively.

7. PRODUCT WARRANTIES
The Company offers warranties to its customers gipg upon the specific product and terms of th&ta@mer purchase agreement. A tyg
warranty program requires that the Company reptifective products within a specified time periodnfi the date of sale. The Comp

records an estimate for future warranty-relatedscbased on actual historical return rates and ddh@wvn
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factors. Based on analysis of return rates andrdtdwors, the Company’warranty provisions are adjusted as necessany.Cdmpan
monitors its warranty activity and adjusts its r@seestimates when it is probable that future weyraosts will be different than thc
estimates.

The Companys product warranty liability is recorded in the solidated statements of financial position in otharrent liabilities if th
warranty is less than one year and in other noratifiabilities if the warranty extends longer thare year.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Companytal product warranty liability, including exsad warranties for which defer
revenue is recorded, for the fiscal years endedeBdyer 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in nmgjo

Year Ended
September 30,
2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $ 25¢ % 27¢
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 27¢ 272
Accruals from acquisitions and divestitures 3 (5)
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (inaghgdchanges in estimates) 2 (14
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during théoge (21¢) (27%)
Currency translation (©)] —
Balance at end of period $ 31¢ % 25€

8. LEASES

Certain administrative and production facilitiesdlaquipment are leased under ldagn agreements. Most leases contain renewal apfm
varying periods, and certain leases include optionsurchase the leased property during or at tfiiead the lease term. Leases gene
require the Company to pay for insurance, taxesraathtenance of the property. Leased capital asselisded in net property, plant &
equipment, primarily buildings and improvementsrev@55 million and $79 million at September 30,£@hd 2013, respectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leased undangements that are accounted for as operatingsletstl rental expense for the fiscal y:
ended September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $4E8hm$470 million and $454 million , respectiye

Future minimum capital and operating lease paymandsthe related present value of capital leasenpais at September 30, 20d/ére a
follows (in millions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases
2015 $ 11 % 294
2016 8 232
2017 7 15€
2018 15 11z
2019 5 74
After 2019 21 10t
Total minimum lease payments 67 $ 97t
Interest (12
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 55
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9. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Short-term debt consisted of the following (in moifis):

September 30,
2014 2013
Bank borrowings and commercial paper $ 18z  $ 11¢
Weighted average interest rate on short-term detistanding 3.8% 4.€%

During fiscal 2013, the Company replaced its $alkoh committed four year credit facility, scheduled to mature in Feloyu2015, with i
$2.5 billion committed five -year credit facilitgleduled to mature in August 2018. The facilitysed to support the Compasydutstandin
commercial paper. There were diaws on the committed credit facilities during flseal years ended September 30, 2014 and 201&aéy
outstanding commercial paper for the fiscal yeateeinSeptember 30, 2014 was $1,252 million , ancgtthvas noneutstanding at Septeml
30, 2014. Average outstanding commercial papertHerfiscal year ended September 30, 2013 was $Indilti®n , and there wasone
outstanding at September 30, 2013.

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in molis; due dates by fiscal year):

September 30,
2014 2013

Unsecured notes
Floating rate notes due in 2014 ($350 million palue) $ — 3 35C
1.75% due in 2014 ($450 million par value) — 452
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par value) 12t 12t
5.5% due in 2016 ($800 million par value) 802 802
7.125% due in 2017 ($150 million par value) 15€ 15¢
2.6% due in 2017 ($400 million par value) 40C 40C
2.355% due in 2017 ($46 million par value) 46 46
1.4% due in 2018 ($300 million par value) 29¢ —
5.0% due in 2020 ($500 million par value) 49¢ 49¢
4.25% due 2021 ($500 million par value) 49¢ 497
3.75% due in 2022 ($450 million par value) 44¢ 44¢
3.625% due in 2024 ($500 million par value) 50C —
6.0% due in 2036 ($400 million par value) 39t 39t
5.7% due in 2041 ($300 million par value) 29¢ 29¢
5.25% due in 2042 ($250 million par value) 25C 25C
4.625% due in 2044 ($450 million par value) 447 —
6.95% due in 2046 ($125 million par value) 12t 12t
4.95% due in 2064 ($450 million par value) 44¢ —
Capital lease obligations 55 65
Foreign-denominated debt

Euro 663 42¢
Other 42 42
Gross long-term debt 6,497 5,37¢
Less: current portion 14C 81¢
Net long-term debt $ 6,357 $ 4,56(

At September 30, 2014 , the Company’s euro-dendetinang-term debt was at fixed rates with a weaigkdverage interest rate of 2.0%t
September 30, 2013 , the Company’s euro-denominaibgdterm debt was at fixed rates with a weighaedrage interest rate of 3.1% .
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The installments of long-term debt maturing in sduent fiscal years are: 2015 - $140 million ; 208915 million ; 2017 - $773 million
2018 - $405 million ; 2019 - $295 million ; 2020chthereafter - $3,969 million . The Company’s Idegn debt includes various financ
covenants, none of which are expected to restriaré operations.

Total interest paid on both short and long-termtdebthe fiscal years ended September 30, 201013 2nd 2012 was $314 millior$$30C
million and $299 million, respectively. The Company uses financial instmisiéo manage its interest rate exposure (see NptéDerivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities," and Note 1Eait Value Measurements," of the notes to conswmitldinancial statements). Th
instruments affect the weighted average interéstofithe Company’s debt and interest expense.

Financing Arrangements

At September 30, 2014, a 100 million euro revolvargdit facility, two 50 million euro revolving adé facilities, and a 37 millioreurc
revolving credit facility expired. The Company emte into a new 100 million euro revolving creditifay scheduled to expire iAugust 201!
and two new 50 million euro credit facilities schéll to expire in August and September 20iéspectively. The Company also entered
a new 37 million euro credit facility scheduledetpire in September 2015 . There were no drawseffeacilities in fiscal 2014.

At September 30, 2014, a $50 million revolving aréalility expired. The Company entered into a n&%0 millionrevolving credit facility
scheduled to expire in September 2015 . There n@draws on this facility during fiscal 2014.

In September 2014, the Company retired a $500anillifloating rate term loan plus accrued interest thatured in September 2014. -
Company also retired a $150 million , floating regem loan plus accrued interest initially schedute mature in January 2015.

In June 2014, the Company issued $300 million agageeprincipal amount of 1.4% senior unsecureddfiate notes due in fiscal 201850(
million aggregate principal amount of 3.625% semiosecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 202%&03$4illion aggregate principal amount
4.625% senior unsecured fixed rate notes due ¢alfd044 and $450 million aggregate principal amai®.95%senior unsecured fixed ri
notes due in fiscal 2064 . Aggregate net proce¢@i @ billion from the issuance were used to finance the aciuisif ADT and for othe
general corporate purposes. Refer to Note 2, "Asifijoms and Divestitures," of the notes to conskd financial statements for furt
information regarding the ADT acquisition.

In March 2014, the Company entered into a nine tmo®150 million , floating rate term loan schedul® mature in December 2014
Proceeds from the term loan were used for generpbcate purposes. The loan was repaid during wlaetey ended June 30, 2014.

In March 2014, the Company retired $450 milliorpincipal amount, plus accrued interest, of its6%fixed rate notes that matured Ma
2014.

In February 2014, the Company retired $350 miliioprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, oflitsiting rate notes that matured Febn
2014.

In January 2014, the Company entered into a orer,-$450 million , floating rate term loan schedute mature in January 201%roceec
from the term loan were used for general corpguatposes. The loan was repaid during the quarte®September 2014.

In November 2013 and December 2013, a $35 milliod $100 millioncommitted revolving credit facility expired, resgigely. The
Company entered into a new $35 million committeebheing credit facility scheduled to expire in Naoxwber 2014 and a ne$100 millior
committed revolving credit facility scheduled tgp@me in December 2014 . As of September 30, 201etetwere no draws on either facility.

In December 2013, the Company entered into a fiear; 220 million euro, floating rate credit failscheduled to mature in fiscal 201%he
Company drew on the full credit facility during tlygarter ended December 31, 2013. Proceeds fronflatikity were used for gene
corporate purposes.

In September 2013, the Company retired $300 millioprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, of4if875%fixed rate notes that matui
September 2013.

In August 2013, the Company made a partial repayrmed3 million euro, plus accrued interest, of 180 million euro floating rate crec
facility scheduled to mature in February 2017.
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In November 2012, the Company entered into a fpear, 70 millioneuro, floating rate credit facility scheduled totara in November 201
The Company drew on the credit facility during tipgarter ended December 31, 2012. Proceeds fronfathkty were used for gene
corporate purposes.

In November 2012, the Company retired $100 milliorprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, of5t8% fixed rate notes that matui
November 2012

Net Financing Charges

The Company's net financing charges line item édbnsolidated statements of income for the yeadead September 30, 2014 , 204r%
2012 contained the following components (in milByn

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest costs $ 254 % 25 $ 237
Banking fees and bond cost amortization 18 21 21
Interest income (20 (29 ()]
Net foreign exchange results for financing actasti (18) (10 (10
Net financing charges $ 244§ 247§ 231

10. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIE S

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumemtgeduce market risk associated with changesrigign currency, commodities, stock-
based compensation liabilities and interest rédtksler Company policy, the use of derivatives idrigted to those intended for hedg
purposes; the use of any derivative instrumenspeculative purposes is strictly prohibited. A digdgion of each type of derivative utilized
the Company to manage risk is included in the falhy paragraphs. In addition, refer to Note 11,i'Malue Measurements," of the note
consolidated financial statements for informatietated to the fair value measurements and valuatiethods utilized by the Company
each derivative type.

The Company has global operations and particigatéise foreign exchange markets to minimize itk o loss from fluctuations in forei
currency exchange rates. The Company primarily fieesgn currency exchange contracts to hedge inedfits foreign exchangeate
exposures. The Company hedges 70% to 90% of thénabamount of each of its known foreign excharrgegactional exposures.

The Company has entered into cressrency interest rate swaps to selectively hedgégms of its net investment in Japan. The cury
effects of the crossurrency interest rate swaps are reflected in #euraulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) actauthin
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsitimc. where they offset gains and losses recbatethe Companyg’ net investment
Japan. At September 30, 2014 , the Company hadcfoss-currency interest rate swaps outstandirdirigt 20 billion yen. AtSeptember 3
2013, the Company had five cross-currency intesgetswaps outstanding totaling 25 billion yen.

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firmtdrivatives market in cases where commodityeprisk cannot be naturally offset
hedged through supply base fixed price contractsni@odity risks are systematically managed purst@amplicy guidelines. As cash flc
hedges, the effective portion of the hedge gainesses due to changes in fair value are initiedlyorded as a component of AOCI and
subsequently reclassified into earnings when tlugée transactions, typically sales or costs reltdeshles, occur and affect earnings.
ineffective portion of the hedge is reflected ie ttonsolidated statements of income. The matuikifiedse commodity contracts coincide w
the expected purchase of the commaodities. The Coynpad the following outstanding commodity hedgetracts that hedge forecas
purchases:
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Volume Outstanding as of

Commodity Units September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013
Copper Pounds 9,536,001 14,705,00
Lead Metric Tons 5,20( 23,90(
Aluminum Metric Tons — 2,70¢
Tin Metric Tons 2,07( 2,052

The Company selectively uses equity swaps to recandet risk associated with certain of its stbesed compensation plans, such ¢
deferred compensation plans. These equity compenshabilities increase as the Compasistock price increases and decrease ¢
Companys stock price decreases. In contrast, the valdleeo$wap agreement moves in the opposite direcfitimese liabilities, allowing tt
Company to fix a portion of the liabilities at atgtd amount. As of September 30, 2014 and 2018 Ctimpany had hedged approximatel
million shares of its common stock.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapediace market risk associated with changes imasteates for its fixedate notes. As fe
value hedges, the interest rate swaps and relafetdbdlances are valued under a market approach psblicized swap curves. Change
the fair value of the swap and hedged portion efdbbt are recorded in the consolidated statenoéimsome. In the second quarter of fis
2011, the Company entered into a fixed to floafimgrest rate swap totaling $100 million to hedbe toupon of its 5.8%otes whicl
matured November 2012, two fixed to floating ingtnate swaps totaling $300 million to hedge thapom of its 4.875%otes which mature
September 2013 and five fixed to floating intereste swaps totaling $450 million to hedge the coupd its 1.75%notes mature
March 2014. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2018 Company entered into a fixed to floating interage swap totaling approximatehi 25
million to hedge the coupon of its 7.70% notes matuMarch 2015 and four fixed to floating intereate swaps totaling $800 millicio
hedge the coupon of its 5.50% notes maturing JgGk6. In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, then@pany entered into fodixed to floating
interest rate swaps totaling $400 million to hetlge coupon of its 2.6% notes maturing December 20f&efixed to floating interest ra
swaps totaling $300 million to hedge the couporit®fl.4% notes maturing November 2017 and fixed to floating interest rate sw
totaling $150 million to hedge the coupon of it425% notes maturing July 2017. There were thiria&rest rate swaps outstanding a
September 30, 2014 and ten interest rate swaptandisg as of September 30, 2013 .

In September 2005, the Company entered into tfoweard treasury lock agreements to reduce the etaigk associated with change:
interest rates associated with the Company’s graied fixedrate note issuance to finance the acquisition akYoternational Corp. (ca
flow hedge). The three forward treasury lock agrerts, which had a combined notional amount of $ill®n , fixed a portion of the futu
interest cost for 5-year, 10-year andy&@&r notes. The fair value of each treasury loglke@ment, or the difference between the treasui
reference rate and the fixed rate at time of neseiance, is amortized to interest expense oveliféhef the respective note issuance
January 2006, in connection with the Company’s defimancing, the three forward treasury lock agrests were terminated.

The following table presents the location and fealues of derivative instruments and hedging atiwiincluded in the Compary’
consolidated statements of financial position (itlioms):
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Derivatives and Hedging Activities Derivatives and Hedging Activities Not

Designated as Hedging Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
under ASC 815 under ASC 815
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Other current assets

Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 21 $ 19 $ 13 $ 14

Commodity derivatives — 8 — —

Interest rate swaps _ 2 _ _

Cross-currency interest rate swaps 15 7 _ —
Other noncurrent assets

Interest rate swaps 2 3 _ —

Equity swap — — 192 182

Total assets $ 38 % 39 % 208 % 197

Other current liabilities

Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 22 % 21 $ 1 $ 11

Commodity derivatives 3 3 _ _
Current portion of long-term debt

Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 12t 452 — —
Long-term debt

Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 1,64¢ 927 — —
Other noncurrent liabilities

Interest rate swaps 3

Total liabilities $ 1,80: $ 1,40 $ 1 % 11

The Company enters into International Swaps andvBtares Associations (ISDA) master netting agreetaevith counterparties that per
the net settlement of amounts owed under the darevaontracts. The master netting agreements géyegrrovide for net settlement of
outstanding contracts with a counterparty in theeoaf an event of default or a termination evehe Tompany has not elected to offse
fair value positions of the derivative contractsar@ed in the consolidated statements of finammmaition. Collateral is generally not requi
of the Company or the counterparties under the enasttting agreements. As of September 30, 2014 Samlember 30, 2013, rast
collateral was received or pledged under the mastiting agreements.

The gross and net amounts of derivative assetsiabilities were as follows (in millions):

Fair Value of Assets Fair Value of Liabilities
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Gross amount recognized $ 24 % 23 % 1,81 % 1,41¢
Gross amount eligible for offsetting 11 9 13 9)
Net amount $ 23z $ 227 $ 180 $ 1,40t

The following tables present the location and amairthe effective portion of gains and losses grotax on derivative instruments
related hedge items reclassified from AOCI into @mmpany’s consolidated statements of income ferfigcal years endefSeptember 3
2014 and 2013 and amounts recorded in AOCI neboitthe consolidated statements of financial msiin millions):

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from AOCI infcbme
Year Ended September 30,

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging Location of Gain (Loss)
Relationships Reclassified from AOCI into Income 2014 2013
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales $ 2 $ 1
Commodity derivatives Cost of sales 1 2
Forward treasury locks Net financing charges 1 2
Total $ —  $ 5
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Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Derivat

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging

Relationships September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ — 3 )
Commodity derivatives )
Forward treasury locks 6
Total $ 4 7

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Datie

Derivatives in ASC 815 Fair Value é_ggggrc])ir;gé ﬁallr?cg_n(:zsc)m vear Ended September 30,
Hedging Relationships Derivative 2014 2013 2012
Interest rate swap Net financing charges $ 5 $ 2 3 (8)
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating Net financing charges (5) 2 9
Total $ — 3 — 3 1
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Degtixe
Derivatives Not Designhated as Hedging é_ggggr?ig:é ﬁallr?cg)l_rgzsc))n vear Ended September 30,
Instruments under ASC 815 Derivative 2014 2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales $ 1 3 B8 $ 23
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Net financing charges 18 25 (19
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Provision for income taxes — 5) 1
Equity swap Selling, general and administrative (@) 65 6
Total $ 18 $ 7% 11

The amount of gains recognized in cumulative tetiteh adjustment (CTA) within AOCI on the effectiyaortion of outstanding n
investment hedges was $9 million and $4 milliofsaptember 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Foyehes ended September 30, 2G4
2013, no gains or losses were reclassified from €ito income for the Company’s outstanding neeistynent hedges, and gains or losse
were recognized in income for the ineffective gmtof cash flow hedges.
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11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurement," defines fairueahs the price that would be received to sellssetaor paid to transfer a liability in
orderly transaction between market participantshat measurement date. ASC 820 also establisheseei¢lrel fair value hierarchy th
prioritizes information used in developing assummpsi when pricing an asset or liability as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actaskers;

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbtd, are observable either directly or indirectigg

Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or noketidata, which requires the reporting entity teedep its own assumptions.
ASC 820 requires the use of observable market ddtan available, in making fair value measuremehlen inputs used to measure
value fall within different levels of the hierarghthe level within which the fair value measuremientategorized is based on the lowest |
input that is significant to the fair value measneat.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present the Company’s faitueshierarchy for those assets and liabilities messsat fair value as @eptember 30, 20
and 2013 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 34 3 — ¢ 34 % —
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 15 — 15 —
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 2 — 2 —
Investments in marketable common stock 4 4 — —
Equity swap 192 192 — —
Total assets $ 247 3 19€¢ $ 51 % —
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 33 % — ¢ 33 % —
Commaodity derivatives 3 — 3 —
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 12t — 12t —
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 1,64¢ — 1,64¢ —
Other noncurrent liabilities
Interest rate swaps 3 — 3 —
Total liabilities $ 181 $ — 3 181 $ —
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Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 33 % — ¢ 33 % —
Commaodity derivatives 8 — 8 —
Interest rate swaps 2 — 2 —
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 7 — 7 —
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 3 — 3 —
Investments in marketable common stock 30 30 — —
Equity swap 18z 18¢ — —
Total assets $ 266 3 212 % 53 ¢ —
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 32 % — ¢ 32 % —
Commaodity derivatives 3 — 3 —
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 452 — 452 —
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 927 — 927 —
Total liabilities $ 1,41  $ — 3 1,414 $ —

Valuation Methods

Foreign currency exchange derivativéehe Company selectively hedges anticipated traimsecthat are subject to foreign exchange rate
primarily using foreign currency exchange hedgetramts. The foreign currency exchange derivativesvalued under a market appro
using publicized spot and forward prices. As cdstv hedges under ASC 815, "Derivatives and Hedyitige effective portion of the hed
gains or losses due to changes in fair value dtialip recorded as a component of accumulated rottenprehensive income and

subsequently reclassified into earnings when tligée transactions occur and affect earnings. Aeffeéative portion of the hedge is reflec
in the consolidated statement of income. Theseractst were highly effective in hedging the varidiln future cash flows attributable
changes in currency exchange rates at Septemb2038,and 2013 The fair value of foreign currency exchange darixes not designated
hedging instruments under ASC 815 are recordelddrconsolidated statements of income.

Commodity derivatives The Company selectively hedges anticipated traimsecthat are subject to commodity price risk, ity using
commodity hedge contracts, to minimize overall @nitsk associated with the Compasiyurchases of lead, copper, tin and aluminum
commodity derivatives are valued under a marketagah using publicized prices, where availableJealer quotes. As cash flow hedges
effective portion of the hedge gains or losses ttuehanges in fair value are initially recorded aagomponent of accumulated ot
comprehensive income and are subsequently redtabsifto earnings when the hedged transactionscdifp sales or cost related to sa
occur and affect earnings. Any ineffective portiminthe hedge is reflected in the consolidated states of income. These contracts v
highly effective in hedging the variability in futicash flows attributable to changes in commauityes at September 30, 2014 and 2013 .

Interest rate swaps and related debhe Company selectively uses interest rate swapediace market risk associated with changes imas
rates for its fixed-ate notes. As fair value hedges, the interestsasgps and related debt balances are valued underket approach usi
publicized swap curves. Changes in the fair valuthe swap and hedged portion of the debt are decbim the consolidated statement
income. In the second quarter of fiscal 2011, thenfany entered into a fixed to floating interes¢ swap totaling $100 millioto hedge th
coupons of its 5.80% notes which matured Novemb&@ 2two fixed to floating interest rate swaps lioga$300 millionto hedge the coup
of its 4.875% notes which matured September 2043fiar fixed to floating interest rate swaps taigli$450 millionto hedge the coupon
its 1.75%notes matured March 2014. In the fourth quartefisufal 2013, the Company entered into a fixed tmtihg interest rate sw
totaling approximately $125 million
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to hedge the coupon of its 7.70% notes maturingcM&015 and four fixed to floating interest rateap® totaling $800 milliotio hedge th
coupon of its 5.50% notes maturing January 201éhdnthird quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company mdednto fourfixed to floating intere:
rate swaps totaling $400 million to hedge the coupbits 2.6% notes maturing December 2016, tlivesl to floating interest rate swa
totaling $300 million to hedge the coupon of it4%.notes maturing November 2017 and one fixedaatifhg interest rate swap totalig5(
million to hedge the coupon of its 7.125% couponumag July 2017. There were thirteen interest sataps outstanding as $&ptember 3
2014 and ten interest rate swaps outstanding sember 30, 2013 .

Cross-currency interest rate swaps - The Compalegtseely uses crossurrency interest rate swaps to hedge the foreigrency rate ris
associated with certain of its investments in Jaj&e crosssurrency interest rate swaps are valued using wakkr market data. Change:
the market value of the swaps are reflected inféheign currency translation adjustments compormdrdaccumulated other comprehen:
income where they offset gains and losses recasddtie Company’s net investment in Japan. At Selpéer80, 2014 , the Company hiadir
cross-currency interest rate swaps outstandingjrtgt@0 billion yen. At September 30, 2013 , then@pany had five crossurrency intere:
rate swaps outstanding totaling 25 billion yen.

Investments in marketable common stockhe Company invests in certain marketable commonkstwhich is valued under a mar
approach using publicized share prices. There werenrealized gains recorded in accumulated other celhgmsive income on the
investments as of September 30, 2014. As of SemeBl 2013 the Company recorded unrealized gdi8§ onillion in accumulated oth
comprehensive income. The Company recorded no lizeddosses in accumulated other comprehensiveniecas ofSeptember 30, 20
and 2013 . During fiscal 2014, the Company soldatemarketable common stock for approximately 8#lion . As a result, the Compa
recorded $8 million of realized gains within sefljgeneral and administrative expenses in the Aotiven Experience Seating segment.

Equity swaps - The Company selectively uses equiigps to reduce market risk associated with cedfiits stockbased compensation pla
such as its deferred compensation plans. The equifyps are valued under a market approach asitheafae of the swaps is equal to
Companys stock price at the reporting period date. Chamgésir value on the equity swaps are reflectethim consolidated statement:
income within selling, general and administratixpenses.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaeceivable, shoterm debt and accounts payable approximate thaiying values. Th
fair value of long-term debt, which was $6.8 bitliand $5.7 billion at September 30, 2014 and 20&3pectively, was determined prima
using market quotes classified as Level 1 inputhiwithe ASC 820 fair value hierarchy.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On January 23, 2013, the shareholders of the Coygaproved the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibosntive Plan (the "2012 Plar
The types of awards authorized by the 2012 Planpcem of stock options, stock appreciation rigpex,formance shares, performance 1
and other stockased awards. The Compensation Committee of thep@oyts Board of Directors will determine the typésawards to k&
granted to individual participants and the termd eonditions of the awards. The 2012 Plan provitias 37 millionshares of the Compan
common stock are reserved for issuance under th2 P@n, and 34 million shares remained availafniéssuance at September 30, 2014.

Prior to shareholder approval of the 2012 Plan,Gbenpany maintained the Johnson Controls, Inc. ZB0¢k Option Plan and the John
Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan (the S8Exg Plans"). The Existing Plans terminated orudayn 23, 2013 as a result of sharehc
approval of the 2012 Plan, ending the authoritgrant new awards under the Existing Plans. All @samder the Existing Plans that w
outstanding as of January 23, 2013 continue todwerged by the Existing Plans. Pursuant to thetigisPlans, all forfeitures under st
plans will be deposited into the reserve for th&@2Blan.

The Company has four shavesed compensation plans, which are described b&logvcompensation cost charged against incoméjding
the offsetting impact of outstanding equity swdps,those plans was approximately $81 million , $8illion and $55 millionfor the fisca
years endeSeptember 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2QX2spectively. The total income tax benefit reéogd in the consolidated statement
income for share-based compensation arrangemestap@oximately $32 million , $36 million and $22llimn for the fiscal years end
September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectiidlg. Company applies a naubstantive vesting period approach whereby expis
accelerated for those employees that receive aveardisire eligible to retire prior to the award irest

Stock Options

Stock options are granted with an exercise priagaktp the market price of the Compasgtock at the date of grant. Stock option aw
typically vest between two and three years aftergitant date and expire ten years from the grast da
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The fair value of each option is estimated on thie @f grant using a BlacReholes option valuation model that uses the assongpnoted i
the following table. Expected volatilities are bégn the historical volatility of the Compasystock and other factors. The Company
historical data to estimate option exercises angl@yee terminations within the valuation model. Expected term of options represents
period of time that options granted are expectelet@utstanding. The ridkee rate for periods during the contractual lifetlee option i
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effethatime of grant.

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Expected life of option (years) 6.7 5.0-6.7 4.8-6.4
Risk-free interest rate 1.92% 0.62% - 1.33% 0.54% - 1.61%
Expected volatility of the Company’s stock 36.00% 41.00% 40.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Company’s stock 721 2.03% 1.81%

A summary of stock option activity at September3W1 4 , and changes for the year then ended, septed below:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contractual Value
Option Price Option Life (years) (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2013 $ 28.2¢ 29,403,28
Granted 48.3i 788,85¢
Exercised 28.42 (6,629,08)
Forfeited or expired 29.9( (835,13
Outstanding, September 30, 2014 $ 28.8: 22,727,91 5.4 $ 34¢
Exercisable, September 30, 2014 $ 28.22 16,152,49 4.3 $ 25¢

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of ogtigranted during the fiscal years ended SepteBthe2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $14,70
$8.58 and $8.92 , respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrithe fiscal years ended September 30, 2014 , 288132012 was approximateBi 3t
million , $154 million and $19 million , respectiye

In conjunction with the exercise of stock optiomarged, the Company received cash payments fdistte years ended September 30, 2014
2013 and 2012 of approximately $186 million , $28iflion and $40 million , respectively.

The Company has elected to utilize the alternatramsition method for calculating the tax effectsstockbased compensation. 1
alternative transition method includes computati@nadance to establish the beginning balance efattiditional paida capital pool (API(
Pool) related to the tax effects of employee stoaked compensation, and a simplified method tormiéte the subsequent impact on
APIC Pool for employee stodkased compensation awards that are vested andmditsjy upon adoption of ASC 718. The tax benedin
the exercise of stock options, which is recordedanpital in excess of par value, was $34 millig85 million and $3 milliorfor the fisca
years endeSeptember 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectiValy.Company does not settle stock options granmeénshardsased payme
arrangements for cash.

At September 30, 2014 , the Company had approxlyn&ks million of total unrecognized compensation cost relatedaivested stoc
options granted. That cost is expected to be razedrover a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS)

SARs vest under the same terms and condition®ak sption awards; however, they are settled it ¢asthe difference between the ma
price on the date of exercise and the exercisepAs a result, SARs are recorded in the Commanghsolidated statements of finan
position as a liability until the date of exercise.

The fair value of each SAR award is estimated usirgimilar method described for stock options. Tdie value of each SAR award

recalculated at the end of each reporting periatithe liability and expense adjusted based on ¢wefair value.
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The assumptions used to determine the fair valibeoSAR awards at September 30, 2014 were asvillo

Expected life of SAR (years) 0.05-4.41
Risk-free interest rate 0.01% - 1.57%
Expected volatility of the Company’s stock 36.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Company’s stock 721

A summary of SAR activity at September 30, 2014d ehanges for the year then ended, is presented:be

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contractual Value
SAR Price SAR Life (years) (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2013 $ 27.9¢ 3,744,79.
Granted 48.3i 47,61°
Exercised 26.67 (942,42)
Forfeited or expired 29.3¢ (206,340
Outstanding, September 30, 2014 $ 27.7¢ 2,643,64 6.0 $ 41
Exercisable, September 30, 2014 $ 28.4¢ 1,485,92! 45 $ 23

In conjunction with the exercise of SARs granté@, Company made payments of $21 million , $11 arilland $2 millionduring the fisce
years endeSeptember 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Restricted (Nonvested) Stock

The 2012 Plan provides for the award of restrictiettk or restricted stock units to certain emplgy@diese awards are typically share se
unless the employee is a nonS. employee or elects to defer settlement uatitament at which point the award would be setifedash
Restricted awards typically vest after thyears from the grant date. The 2012 Plan allowgliiéerent vesting terms on specific grants \
approval by the Board of Directors.

A summary of the status of the Company’s nonveststricted stock awards at September 30, 204dd changes for the fiscal year t
ended, is presented below:

Weighted Shares/Units
Average Subject to
Price Restriction
Nonvested, September 30, 2013 $ 29.1¢ 1,241,85
Granted 48.3: 1,234,42
Vested 27.71 (363,409
Forfeited 41.8¢ (159,06
Nonvested, September 30, 2014 $ 40.5% 1,953,81

At September 30, 2014 , the Company had approxIymn@&8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost relategotovested restricts
stock arrangements granted. That cost is expeathd tecognized over a weighted-average periodioyears.

Performance Share Awards

The 2012 Plan permits the grant of performabased share unit ("PSU") awards. The number of RBhisted is equal to the PSU aw
value divided by the closing price of the Compargmmon stock at the grant date. The PSUs are @i@neontingent on the achievemen
pre-determined performance goals over a tlyese- performance period as well as on the awarden'sl continuous employment until

vesting date. Each PSU that is earned will beegkttlith a share of the Company's common stockviatig the completion of the performat
period, unless the award holder elected to defertion or all of the award until retirement whialould then be settled in cash.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonveB®Us at September 30, 201d4nd changes for the fiscal year then ended,asemte
below:

Weighted Shares/Units
Average Subject to
Price PSU
Nonvested, September 30, 2013 $ 30.7¢ 541,70(
Granted 48.3¢ 326,82.
Forfeited 37.71 (74,157
Nonvested, September 30, 2014 $ 37.3: 794,361

At September 30, 2014 , the Company had approxiyn&24 million of total unrecognized compensation cost relatedaiavested PSL
granted. That cost is expected to be recognizedaweighted-average period of 1.8 years.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluted eamagshare (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcutgtédi/iding net income attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. by the weighted average murabcommon shares outstanding during the regppigriod. Diluted EPS is calcula
by dividing net income attributable to Johnson @alst Inc. by the weighted average number of commslmeres and common equiva
shares outstanding during the reporting period #natcalculated using the treasury stock methodstimeck options and unvested restris
stock. The treasury stock method assumes thatdhg@ny uses the proceeds from the exercise of sigidn awards to repurchase comi
stock at the average market price during the pefibe assumed proceeds under the treasury stodlochetclude the purchase price that
grantee will pay in the future, compensation costffiture service that the Company has not yetgeieed and any windfall tax benefits t
would be credited to capital in excess of par valhen the award generates a tax deduction. If tiwerdd be a shortfall resulting in a cha
to capital in excess of par value, such an amountddvbe a reduction of the proceeds. For unvesstticted stock, assumed proceeds L
the treasury stock method would include unamortzmdpensation cost and windfall tax benefits orsaibs.

The Company's outstanding Equity Units due 2042reflected in diluted earnings per share using"the€onverted" method. Under tl
method, if dilutive, the common stock is assumedésl as of the beginning of the reporting periadiianluded in calculating diluted earnii
per share. In addition, if dilutive, interest expennet of tax, related to the outstanding EquitjtdJis added back to the numerato
calculating diluted earnings per share.

The following table reconciles the numerators aadaininators used to calculate basic and diluteniregs per share (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012

Income Available to Common Shareholders
Income from continuing operations $ 1,43: % 1,077 $ 1,09¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (21¢) 101 88
Basic income available to common shareholders 1,21F 1,17¢ 1,18¢

Interest expense, net of tax —_ — 1
Diluted income available to common shareholders $ 1,21t $ 1,17¢  $ 1,18t
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 666.¢ 683.7 681.t
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and unvested restricted stock 7.6 5.E 5.2

Equity units — — 1.6
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 674.¢ 689.2 688.¢
Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase common shares 0.1 0.8 1.4
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During the three months ended September 30, 20&42843 , the Company declared a dividend of $0:22 $0.19, respectively, pt
common share. During the twelve months ended SdyeB80, 2014 and 2013 , the Company declared foarterly dividends totalin§0.8¢
and $0.76, respectively, per common share. With the exceptib the quarterly dividend declared and paid ia three months end
December 31, 2012, the Company paid all dividendeé month subsequent to the end of each fiscateyu
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14. EQUITY AND NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

Other comprehensive income includes activity retatio discontinued operations. The following scheslpresent changes in consolidi
equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. andawontrolling interests (in millions, net of tax):

Equity Attributable to Johnson Equity Attributable to

Controls, Inc. Noncontrolling Interests Total Equity
At September 30, 2011 $ 11,15« $ 136 % 11,29:
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,18¢ 58 1,24z
Foreign currency translation adjustments (22)) — (22))
Realized and unrealized gains on derivatives 39 — 39
Realized and unrealized losses on marketable
common stock (0] — (0]
Pension and postretirement plans 8) — 8)
Other comprehensive loss (29) — (297
Comprehensive income 992 58 1,051
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.72 per share) (492 — (492)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — (48) (48)
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redééma
noncontrolling interests (35) — (35)
Repurchases of common stock (102) — (102)
Other, including options exercised 107 — 107
At September 30, 2012 11,62t 14¢ 11,77
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,17¢ 71 1,24¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments (21) — (21)
Realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 5) — (5)
Realized and unrealized gains on marketable
common stock 2 — 2
Pension and postretirement plans (16) — (16)
Other comprehensive loss (40) — (40)
Comprehensive income 1,13¢ 71 1,20¢
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.76 per share) (520) — (520
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — (39 (39
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redéésma
noncontrolling interests 59 — 59
Repurchases of common stock (350) — (350)
Change in noncontrolling interest share — 80 80
Other, including options exercised 362 — 362
At September 30, 2013 12,31« 26( 12,57¢
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,21t 90 1,30¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments (640) 2) (642)
Realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 3 — 3
Realized and unrealized losses on marketable
common stock (@) — (@)
Pension and postretirement plans (5) — (5)
Other comprehensive loss (655) 2 (657)
Comprehensive income 56( 88 64¢
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.88 per share) (58¢€) — (58€)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — (59) (59)
Repurchases of common stock (1,249 — (1,249
Change in noncontrolling interest sh. — (32) (32)



Other, including options exercised 27z (6) 26€

At September 30, 2014 $ 11,31 $ 251 % 11,56:
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In November 2013, the Company's Board of Directarthorized a $3 billiorincrease in the Company's share repurchase progvaial
brought the total authorized amount under the @mase program to $3.65 billiorThe share repurchase program does not have &t
date and may be amended or terminated by the Bufalddrectors at any time without prior notice. TB®@mpany has spent approxima
$1,249 million on repurchases under the stock @age program in fiscal 2014.

The Company consolidates certain subsidiaries iichwthe noncontrolling interest party has withireithcontrol the right to require t
Company to redeem all or a portion of its intefiesthe subsidiary. The redeemable noncontrollintgrists are reported at their estim
redemption value. Any adjustment to the redempt@atue impacts retained earnings but does not impattincome. Redeema
noncontrolling interests which are redeemable arggn future events, the occurrence of which is matently probable, are recordec
carrying value.

The following schedules present changes in thearadble noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Year Ended September Year Ended September Year Ended September

30, 2014 30, 2013 30, 2012
Beginning balance, September 30 $ 157 $ 25 % 26C
Net income 38 48 69
Foreign currency translation adjustments — 1 @
Change in noncontrolling interest share — (63) (95)
Dividends @) (23 (15)
Redemption value adjustment — (59 35
Other 6 — —
Ending balance, September 30 $ 194 $ 157 $ 258

The following schedules present changes in accuadilather comprehensive income (AOCI) attributafoleJohnson Controls, Inc.
millions, net of tax):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2012

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Balance at beginning of period $ 39z % 41 % 634

Aggregate adjustment for the period (net of tar@fbf $7, $19 and $(15)) * (640) (21) (22))

Balance at end of period (24¢) 392 413
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivagis

Balance at beginning of period 7 12 (27

Current period changes in fair value (net of tdeetfof $(1), $(2) and $9) (©)] 2 14

Reclassification to income (net of tax effect of $@) and $17)) ** — (©) 25

Balance at end of period 4 7 12
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable common stoc

Balance at beginning of period 7 5 6

Current period changes in fair value (net of tfeefof $0, $0 and $(3)) 1) 2 (1%)

Reclassifications to income (net of tax effect (f)$$0 and $0) *** (6) — 14

Balance at end of period — 7 5
Pension and postretirement plans

Balance at beginning of period 12 28 3€

Reclassification to income (net of tax effect BX$G(9) and $(7)) **** 4 (18) (ac)

Other changes (net of tax effect of $0) 1) 2 2

Balance at end of period 7 12 28

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),oémuriod $ (237) % 418 $ 45¢
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* During fiscal 2014, $203 million of cumulativerigign currency translation adjustments were reamghias part of the divestiturelatec
losses recognized within discontinued operatiore @sult of the divestiture of the Automotive Esiprce Electronics business.

** Refer to Note 10, "Derivative Instruments andddeng Activities," of the notes to consolidateddfittial statements for disclosure of
line items on the consolidated statements of incaffexted by reclassifications from AOCI into incemelated to derivatives.

*** Refer to Note 11, "Fair Value Measurements," the notes to consolidated financial statementsdfsclosure of the line item on i
consolidated statements of income affected by seiflaations from AOCI into income related to maetde common stock.

*+++ Refer to Note 15, "Retirement Plans,” of thetes to consolidated financial statements for dsale of the components of the Compe
net periodic benefit costs associated with itsrafi benefit pension and postretirement plans. k®iyears ended September 30, 2014
2012, the amount reclassified from AOCI into incofoe pension and postretirement plans were primagtorded in cost of sales on
consolidated statement of income. For the year ci@ptember 30, 2013, the income reclassified fAddCI to income for pension a
postretirement plans was split approximately evémiween cost of sales and selling, general andréstrative expenses for the consolid
statement of income.

15. RETIREMENT PLANS
Pension Benefits

The Company has non-contributory defined benefitspen plans covering certain U.S. and ndi$. employees. The benefits provided
primarily based on years of service and averagepemsation or a monthly retirement benefit amouffedive January 1, 2006, certain of
Companys U.S. pension plans were amended to prohibit nasticipants from entering the plans. Effective ®epber 30, 2009, acti
participants will continue to accrue benefits untler amended plans until December 31, 2014. Funfitind).S. pension plans equals
exceeds the minimum requirements of the EmploydedReent Income Security Act of 1974. Funding fandJ.S. plans observes the la
legal and regulatory limits. Also, the Company mekentributions to union-trusteed pension fundsctorstruction and service personnel.

For pension plans with accumulated benefit oblagegi(ABO) that exceed plan assets, the projectadfti@bligation (PBO), ABO and f:
value of plan assets of those plans were $3,418mil $3,363 million and $2,642 million , respeetly, as of September 30, 2014 &B]J06¢
million , $2,981 million and $2,392 million , respively, as of September 30, 2013 .

In fiscal 2014 , total employer and employee cdmttions to the defined benefit pension plans wdi@million , of which $84 milliorwere
voluntary contributions made by the Company. Thenany expects to contribute approximately $64 omlin cash to its defined bene
pension plans in fiscal 2015 . Projected benefinpents from the plans as of September 30, 201ésimmated as follows (in millions):

2015 $ 224
2016 22¢
2017 22¢
2018 23z
2019 24C
2020-2024 1,27¢

Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides certain health care and tifuriance benefits for eligible retirees and theipehdents primarily in the U.S. ¢
Canada. Most non-U.S. employees are covered byrgoent sponsored programs, and the cost to the &ayrip not significant.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meeting cartgiears of service and retirement age qualificatiofrhese benefits may be subjec
deductibles, cgayment provisions and other limitations, and them@any has reserved the right to modify these litsneEffective
January 31, 1994, the Company modified certairrisalglans to place a limit on the Compangbst of future annual retiree medical ben
at no more than 150% of the 1993 cost.

The health care cost trend assumption does notdaignificant effect on the amounts reported.
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In fiscal 2014 , total employer and employee cdwittions to the postretirement plans were $8 milliaf which $6 millionwere voluntar
contributions made by the Company. The Company doégxpect to make any significant contributionst$ postretirement plans in fis
year2015 . Projected benefit payments from the plaraf &ptember 30, 2014 are estimated as followm{ilions):

2015 $ 20
2016 20
2017 20
2018 20
2019 20
2020-2024 86

In December 2003, the U.S. Congress enacted thacktedPrescription Drug, Improvement and ModermiratAct of 2003 (Act) fo
employers sponsoring postretirement care planspitatide prescription drug benefits. The Act intuods a prescription drug benefit ur
Medicare as well as a federal subsidy to spondamstioee health care benefit plans providing adfig¢nthat is at least actuarially equivalen
Medicare Part D.1. Under the Act, the Medicare &lypbamount is received directly by the plan spored not the related plan. Further,
plan sponsor is not required to use the subsidyuatrio fund postretirement benefits and may usestisidy for any valid business purps
Projected subsidy receipts are estimated to beoappately $2 million per year over the next tenrgea

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors various defined contributiings plans that allow employees to contributemtign of their pre-tax and/or aftéax
income in accordance with plan specified guidelihgsder specified conditions, the Company will ¢intte to certain savings plans base
the employees<tligible pay and/or will match a percentage of ¢éieployee contributions up to certain limits. Matahcontributions charg
to expense amounted to $132 million , $118 milkord $105 million for the fiscal years ended 202813 and 2012 , respectively.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans

The Company contributes to multiemployer benefiingl based on obligations arising from collectiveghiming agreements related to cer
of its hourly employees in the U.S. These planvigeretirement benefits to participants basedheir tservice to contributing employers. -
benefits are paid from assets held in trust fot thapose. The trustees typically are responsibtedétermining the level of benefits to
provided to participants as well as for such matésrthe investment of the assets and the adraimistrof the plans.

The risks of participating in these multiemployenbfit plans are different from single-employer éf@rplans in the following aspects:

» Assets contributed to the multiemployer benefitnplay one employer may be used to provide bendditerhployees of oth
participating employers.

» If a participating employer stops contributing i@ tmultiemployer benefit plan, the unfunded oblmya of the plan may be borne
the remaining participating employers.

» If the Company stops participating in some of itslt,employer benefit plans, the Company may be ireguto pay those plans
amount based on its allocable share of the undéeftistatus of the plan, referred to as a withdrdiafaility.

The Company participates in over 3@Qiltiemployer benefit plans, primarily related te Building Efficiency business in the U.S., norf
which are individually significant to the Companihe number of employees covered by the Commanmyltiemployer benefit plans t
remained consistent over the past three yearsthame have been no significant changes that atfiectomparability of fiscal 2014 , 20&Bic
2012 contributions. The Company recognizes expémsthe contractuallyequired contribution for each period. The Compaagtributer
$44 million , $44 million and $47 million to multigployer benefit plans in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and20despectively.

Based on the most recent information available Gbmpany believes that the present value of aetuacicrued liabilities in certain of the
multiemployer benefit plans may exceed the valuthefassets held in trust to pay benefits. Cutyetite Company
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is not aware of any significant multiemployer bétsgplans for which it is probable or reasonablggble that the Company will be obliga
to make up any shortfall in funds. Moreover, if liempany were to exit certain markets or otherwisase making contributions to th
funds, the Company could trigger a withdrawal ligi Currently, the Company is not aware of angnéicant multiemployer benefit pla
for which it is probable or reasonably possibla tha Company will withdraw from the plan. Any agat for a shortfall or withdrawal liabili
will be recorded when it is probable that a liapikxists and it can be reasonably estimated.

Plan Assets

The Companys investment policies employ an approach wherebydaof equities, fixed income and alternative invesnts are used
maximize the longerm return of plan assets for a prudent levelisi.rThe investment portfolio primarily containsdeversified blend ¢
equity and fixed income investments. Equity investis are diversified across domestic and domestic stocks, as well as growth, value
small to large capitalizations. Fixed income inwestts include corporate and government issues, skitht-, mid- and longerm maturities
with a focus on investment grade when purchasedaatatget duration close to that of the plan ligbillnvestment and market risks
measured and monitored on an ongoing basis threegblar investment portfolio reviews, annual ligpilmeasurements and perio
asset/liability studies. The majority of the realade component of the portfolio is invested inversified portfolio of highguality, operatin
properties with cash yields greater than the tadjeippreciation. Investments in other alternatisseticlasses, including hedge funds
commodities, diversify the expected investmentrretuelative to the equity and fixed income investits. As a result of our diversificat
strategies, there are no significant concentratidmisk within the portfolio of investments.

The Companys actual asset allocations are in line with taegletcations. The Company rebalances asset allosatie appropriate, in orde!
stay within a range of allocation for each assetguary.

The expected return on plan assets is based o@dhgany’s expectation of the logrm average rate of return of the capital marke

which the plans invest. The average market retarasadjusted, where appropriate, for active ass@iagement returns. The expected re
reflects the investment policy target asset mix @mubiders the historical returns earned for easbktecategory.
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The Company’s plan assets at September 30, 2012Q481, by asset category, are as follows (in amil):

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category September 30, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pension
Cash $ 25 % 25 % — 8 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 43t 43t — —

Small-Cap 224 224 — —

International - Developed 44% 44% — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 22C 194 26 —

Corporate/Other 822 67t 147 —
Hedge Funds 4 — — 4
Real Estate 331 — — 331
Total $ 250 % 1,99 $ 17¢  $ 33t
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash $ 17¢  $ 17¢ % — 3 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 68 68 — —

International - Developed 112 112 — —

International - Emerging 16 16 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 30C 30C — —

Corporate/Other 34¢ 34¢ — —
Hedge Fund 15E — 15E —
Real Estate 26 6 — 20
Total $ 1,201 $ 1,02¢ $ 158§ 20
Postretirement
Cash $ 7 % 7 % — 3 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 36 36 — —

Smal-Cap 10 10 — —



International - Developed
International - Emerging

Fixed Income Securities
Government
Corporate/Other

Commodities

Real Estate

Total

24
14

25

73

16

14

24
14

25

73

16

14




Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category September 30, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pension
Cash $ 30 % 30 % — 8 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 52t 52t — —

Small-Cap 261 261 — —

International - Developed 528 528 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 17z 16€ 7 —

Corporate/Other 84z 652 19C —
Hedge Funds 17 — — 17
Real Estate 28t — — 28t
Total $ 2,65¢ $ 2,157 $ 197 $ 302
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash $ 30 % 30 % — % —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 132 132 — —

International - Developed 371 26¢ 10z —

International - Emerging 31 31 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 37€ 37€ — —

Corporate/Other 531 531 — —
Commodities 6 6 — —
Hedge Fund 89 — — 89
Real Estate a0 81 — 9
Total $ 1,65¢ $ 1,45¢ $ 10z $ 98
Postretirement
Cash $ 10 $ 10 $ — 3 —
Equity Securities

| arne-C.an 2R 2R — J—



Small-Cap

International - Developed

International - Emerging
Fixed Income Securities

Government

Corporate/Other

Commodities

Real Estate

Total

12
29
14

24

71

17

13

12
29
14

24

71

17

13

22¢

22¢

93




The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for assets measured at fair value.
Cash: The fair value of cash is valued at cost.

Equity Securities: The fair value of equity securities is determingddirect or indirect quoted market prices. If iredit quoted market pric
are utilized, the value of assets held in sepaeateunts is not published, but the investment mensageport daily the underlying holdin
The underlying holdings are direct quoted markétgs on regulated financial exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: The fair value of fixed income securities is detiered by direct or indirect quoted market pricesntfirect quote
market prices are utilized, the value of assetsl lwelseparate accounts is not published, but thestiment managers report daily
underlying holdings. The underlying holdings anedi quoted market prices on regulated financiaharges.

Commodities: The fair value of the commodities is determineddupted market prices of the underlying holdingsregulated financi
exchanges.

Hedge Funds: The fair value of hedge funds is accounted for hey ¢ustodian. The custodian obtains valuations fuoiherlying manage
based on market quotes for the most liquid assetsalernative methods for assets that do not Baffecient trading activity to derive prict
The Company and custodian review the methods ugetthé underlying managers to value the assets. Gdrapany believes this is
appropriate methodology to obtain the fair valugtafse assets. During fiscal 2014, the underlfumgl structure and pricing frequency
certain nond.S. hedge fund investments was modified, and,rasult, those investments are now classified agl2 investments compal
to the previous classification of Level 3.

Real Estate: The fair value of Real Estate Investment TrustsITREis recorded as Level 1 as these securitiefraded on an open exchar
The fair value measurement of other investmenteah estate is deemed Level 3 since the value edfetlinvestments is provided by fi
managers. The fund managers value the real estastiments using any one of, or a combinationhef following methods: independent tf
party appraisals, discounted cash flow analysisedfcash flows projected to be generated by thesinwent and recent sales of compai
investments. Assumptions used to revalue the ptiegeasre updated every quarter. The Company belithie is an appropriate methodol
to obtain the fair value of these assets. For tirmponent of the real estate portfolio under develemt, the investments are carried at
until they are completed and valued by a thirdypappraiser.

The methods described above may produce a faiewaiculation that may not be indicative of neliradle value or reflective of future fi
values. Furthermore, while the Company believegdtaation methods are appropriate and consistéhtother market participants, the us
different methodologies or assumptions to deterntivee fair value of certain financial instrumentsulcbresult in a different fair val
measurement at the reporting date.
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The following sets forth a summary of changes ie fair value of assets measured using significarttbservable inputs (Level 3)

millions):

U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2012
Additions net of redemptions

Realized gain

Unrealized gain (loss)

Asset value as of September 30, 2013
Additions net of redemptions

Realized gain

Unrealized gain

Asset value as of September 30, 2014

Non-U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2012

Additions net of redemptions
Unrealized gain

Asset value as of September 30, 2013
Additions net of redemptions

Unrealized gain
Transfers out - to Level 2

Asset value as of September 30, 2014

95

Total Hedge Funds Real Estate
$ 334 % 94 3 24C
(74) (80) 6
32 13 19
10 (10) 20
$ 302 % 17 8 28t
4 (13 17
9 — 9
20 — 20
$ 33t % 4 3 331
$ 64 $ 56 $ 8
31 31 —
3 2 1
$ 98 $ 89 % 9
10 — 10
1 — 1
(89 (89 —
$ 20 % — $ 20




Funded Status

The table that follows contains the ABO and reclatidns of the changes in the PBO, the changqdan assets and the funded statu

millions):
Pension Benefits Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefits

September 30, 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 285 $ 283 % 1477 $ 1,90¢ — % —
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 2,902 3,73¢ 1,997 2,02t 24E 26¢€
Service cost 7C 9C 38 38 5 5
Interest cost 13¢ 151 71 64 12 11
Plan participant contributions — — 5 5 6
Acquisitions 37 — 1 2 —
Divestitures (1) — — (62€) (20) — —
Actuarial (gain) loss 241 (452) 25C 84 (26) (22)
Amendments made during the year 1 2 Q) 1 — —
Benefits and settlements paid (519 (627) (89 (17¢) (26) (22
Estimated subsidy received — — — — 2 1
Curtailment — — ) (15 — —
Other — — 3 4 — —
Currency translation adjustment — — (79 (15 Q) Q)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 287t $ 290: $ 1572 $ 1,997 224 3 24k
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2,65¢ $ 298t $ 1,65¢ $ 1,657 226 $ 227
Actual return on plan assets 307 282 15¢ 11C 11 12
Acquisitions 43 — — 1 — —
Divestitures (1) — — (617) — — —
Employer and employee contributions 12 1C 152 8t 8 13
Benefits paid (110 (136) (59) (64) (2€) (22)
Settlement payments (409 (48E) (32) (112) — —
Other — — 4 3 — —
Currency translation adjustment — — (65) (29 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 250« $ 265 $ 1201 $  1,65¢€ 21¢  $ 22¢
Funded status $ 37 $ (246) $ 37) $ (341 B $ (19
Amounts recognized in the statement of financiaiian consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost $ 47 % 28 % € % 83 57 % 51

Accrued benefit liability (41¢) (275) (407) (429 (62) (70)
Net amount recognized $ B77) $ (246) $ 37) $ (34)) B $ a9)
Weighted Average Assumptions (2)
Discount rate (3) 4.35% 4.9(% 3.25% 3.6(% 4.35% 4.9(%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.3(% 3.0(% 2.6(% NA NA
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(1)

(@)
(3)

Fiscal 2014 includes $617 million of plan assend $626 milliorof projected benefit obligations transferred toeéssnd liabilitie
held for sale on the consolidated statement ofnfir@ position for norld.S. plans. The prepaid benefit cost and accrueefh
liability transferred are $24 million and $33 nulfi , respectively. The plan assets transferre¢@mrised of $553 millionf Leve|
1 investments and $64 millioof Level 2 investments. The Level 1 investmentsabget category, are cash, equity securities,
income securities, real estate and commoditiehiégnamounts of $11 million , $110 million , $356 lioih , $70 million and$6
million , respectively. The Level 2 investments are hedgel finvestments. The weighted average discount aatk rate ¢
compensation increase assumptions at Septemb2030,are 2.30% and 2.10% , respectively.

Fiscal 2013 includes $14 millioof projected benefit obligations transferred tdilisies held for sale on the consolida
statement of financial position for non-U.S. plans.

Refer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operations,” of thetes to consolidated financial statements forh&ntinformatiol
regarding the Company's disposal groups classifieldeld for sale.

Plan assets and obligations are determineedbais a September 30 measurement date at Septd@2914 and 2013

The Company considers the expected benefinpays on a plan-bgtan basis when setting assumed discount ratea. rasult, th
Company uses different discount rates for each gigmending on the plan jurisdiction, the demogrepluf participants and t
expected timing of benefit payments. For the Ueghgon and postretirement plans, the Company udesaunt rate provided by
independent third party calculated based on anogpiate mix of high quality bonds. For the nois. pension and postretirem
plans, the Company consistently uses the relevanitcy specific benchmark indices for determining various discount rates.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensivariacon the consolidated statement of financial mositexclusive of tax impacts, tl
have not yet been recognized as components ofenietdic benefit cost at September 30, 2014 arel&safs (in millions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (income)
Net transition obligation $ 1 $ —
Net prior service credit @) 3
Total $ 6) $ 3

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriag@xpected to be recognized as components oenedi benefit cost over the next

fiscal year are shown below (in millions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Amortization of:
Net transition obligation $ —  $ —
Net prior service cost credit (1) (0]
Total $ (1) % (1)
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost

The table that follows contains the componentsebforriodic benefit cost (in millions):

Pension Benefits

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Postretirement Benefits

Year ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

2014 2013 2012

Components of Net
Periodic Benefit Cost

(Credit):
Service cost $ 70 % MM 3 69 $ 38 $ 38 $ 41 3 5 & 5 & 5
Interest cost 13¢ 151 15C 71 64 73 12 11 13
Expected return on plan
assets (207) (232 (214 (75) (72) (75) (12 (23 (12)
Net actuarial (gain) loss 12¢€ (439 432 172 48 30 (249 (20 (15
Amortization of prior

service cost (credit) 1 1 1 (€N} (€N} (€N} @) ()] ()]
Curtailment gain — — — 2 (26) 2 — — —
Settlement (gain) loss 15 (69) — 1 Q) — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost
(credit) $ 14 $ (492 $ 43 $ 204 % 51 $ 66 $ (2600 $ (349 $ (29
Expense Assumptions:
Discount rate 4.9(% 4.15% 5.25% 3.6(% 3.4(% 4.0(% 4.9(% 4.15% 5.25%
Expected return on plan
assets 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.5(% 4.7%% 4.55% 5.15% 5.8(% 5.8(% 6.3(%
Rate of compensation
increase 3.3(% 3.25% 3.3(% 2.6(% 2.45% 2.45% NA NA NA

16. SIGNIFICANT RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT COS TS

To better align its resources with its growth stgi¢s and reduce the cost structure of its glopatations to address the softness in ce
underlying markets, the Company committed to sigaift restructuring plans in fiscal 2014, 2013 @0d2 and recorded $324 millioi$957
million and $287 million, respectively, of restructuring and impairmenttsds the consolidated statements of income. Th&ueturing
actions related to cost reduction initiatives ia tbompanys Automotive Experience, Building Efficiency andviRo Solutions businesses
included workforce reductions, plant closures, asglet and goodwill impairments. The restructurictipas are expected to be substant
complete by the end of fiscal 2015.

Additionally, the Company recorded $53 million ,8snillion and $10 millionof restructuring and impairment costs within disiunec
operations related to the Automotive ExperiencetEbmics business in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 201sheetively.
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The following table summarizes the changes in tlmm@anys restructuring reserve, included within other eatrliabilities in th
consolidated statements of financial position (itlioms):

Employee
Severance and Long-
Termination Lived Asset Goodwill Currency
Benefits Impairments Impairment Other Translation Total
Balance at September 30, 2012 $ 221 % — % — % 7 % — $ 22¢
Additional restructuring and impairment
costs 392 15€ 43C 7 — 98t
Utilized—cash (141 — — (7 — (14¢)
Utilized—noncash — (15€) (430 4 2 (58¢)
Transfer to liabilities held for sale (32) — — — — (32)
Balance at September 30, 2013 $ 441 $ — $ — $ 3 3 2 3 44¢€
Additional restructuring and impairment
costs 191 134 47 5 — 371
Utilized—cash (229 — — 3 — (227)
Utilized—noncash — (139 47 — (16) (197)
Transfer from liabilities held for sale 31 — — — — 31
Transfer to liabilities held for sale (29 — — — — (24)
Balance at September 30, 2014 $ 418§ — — 5 % (14 $ 40¢

The $31 millionof transfers from liabilities held for sale repneseestructuring reserves that were included ihiliées held for sale in t
consolidated statement of financial position attSeyper 30, 2013, but were excluded from liabilittedd for sale at September 30, 2
based on transaction negotiations. See Note 3,ctbimued Operations," of the notes to consoliddirdncial statements for furtt
information regarding the Company's assets anditiab held for sale.

The Company's restructuring plans included worldaeductions of approximately 20,600 employees,@ddfor the Automotive Experien
business, 8,500 for the Building Efficiency busmesd 1,1000or the Power Solutions business). Restructuringrgdss associated w
employee severance and termination benefits aré paér the severance period granted to each emmployeon a lump sum basis
accordance with individual severance agreementsofASeptember 30, 2014, approximately 13,800Qhe employees have been sepal
from the Company pursuant to the restructuring $l&m addition, the restructuring plans includee@rtty-seven plant closures ( ninetden
Automotive Experience, six for Building Efficienand two for Power Solutions). As of September 3M 4 fifteen of the twentgevel
plants have been closed.

Refer to Note 17, "Impairment of Lorigved Assets," of the notes to consolidated finahstatements for further information regarding
long-lived asset impairment charges recorded ap#ne restructuring actions.

Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and other Intangible Ass" of the notes to consolidated financial staets for further information regarding
goodwill impairment charges recorded.

Company management closely monitors its overallt abgicture and continually analyzes each of itsifesses for opportunities
consolidate current operations, improve operatifigiencies and locate facilities in low cost coues in close proximity to customers. T
ongoing analysis includes a review of its manufacty engineering and purchasing operations, akagghe overall global footprint for all
businesses. Because of the importance of new eebides by major automotive manufacturers to ojpastthe Company is affected by
general business conditions in this industry. Fatatlverse developments in the automotive indusindcimpact the Company’liquidity
position, lead to impairment charges and/or recaididitional restructuring of its operations.

17. IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairnvémenever events or changes in circumstancesatelibat the assetcarrying amou
may not be recoverable. The Company conductsig-lived asset impairment analyses in accordante AC 360-10t5, "Impairment ¢
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”" ASC 360-16-requires the Company to group assets and tiabilat the lowest level for which identifia
cash flows are largely independent of the cash dlafv other assets and liabilities and evaluateabset group against the sum of
undiscounted future cash flows. If the undiscoumi@sh flows do not indicate the
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carrying amount of the asset is recoverable, araimpent charge is measured as the amount by whelkdrrying amount of the asset gr
exceeds its fair value based on discounted cashdilysis or appraisals.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2014 thompany concluded it had triggering events réggiiassessment of impairment for cer
of its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructurangions announced in fiscal 2014. In addition,ha fourth quarter of fiscal 201
the Company concluded that it had a triggering evequiring assessment of impairment of |divgd assets held by the Building Efficier
Other - Latin America reporting unit due to the amiqment of goodwill in the quarter. As a resule ompany reviewed the lotiged assel
for impairment and recorded a $91 milliaompairment charge within restructuring and impainineosts on the consolidated statemel
income, of which $45 million was recorded in thedhuarter and $46 milliom the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014. Of the toi@lpairmen
charge, $45 million related to the Automotive Expece Interiors segment, $34 million related to Buglding Efficiency Other segmer?
million related to the Automotive Experience Segtsegment and $5 milliorelated to corporate assets. In addition, the Compeacorde
$43 million of asset and investment impairments within discorgd operations in the third quarter of fiscal 20dlted to the divestiture
the Automotive Experience Electronics businesseR#&l Note 3, "Discontinued Operations,” and NoBe "Bignificant Restructuring a
Impairment Costs," of the notes to consolidatedriirial statements for additional information. Thpairment was measured, dependin
the asset, either under an income approach uglifbrecasted discounted cash flows or a marketoggpr utilizing an appraisal to deterrr
fair values of the impairment assets. These methoelssonsistent with the methods the Company ereplay prior periods to value otl
long-ived assets. The inputs utilized in the analyseschassified as Level 3 inputs within the fairw@hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "I
Value Measurement.”

In the second, third and fourth quarters of fifal3, the Company concluded it had a triggeringiekequiring assessment of impairmen
certain of its londived assets in conjunction with its restructuramgions announced in fiscal 2013. In addition,hia fourth quarter of fisc
2013, the Company concluded that it had a triggeenent requiring assessment of impairment for ltrg-ived assets held by t
Automotive Experience Interiors segment due toittgairment of goodwill in the quarter. As a restiie Company reviewed the lotiged
assets for impairment and recorded a $156 millepairment charge within restructuring and impainineosts on the consolidated stater
of income, of which $13 million was recorded in gexond quarter, $36 million in the third quarted 107 millionin the fourth quarter
fiscal 2013. Of the total impairment charge, $5Tiam related to the Automotive Experience Intesiegment, $40 milliorelated to th
Building Efficiency Other segment, $22 million ridd to the Automotive Experience Seating segmel®, iillion related to the Pow
Solutions segment, $12 million related to corpoessets and $7 milliorelated to various segments within the Buildingidiincy busines
Refer to Note 16, "Significant Restructuring andplimment Costs," of the notes to consolidated fitelnstatements for additior
information. The impairment was measured, dependimghe asset, either under an income approadkingilforecasted discounted c
flows or a market approach utilizing an appraisatietermine fair values of the impairment assekes€é methods are consistent with
methods the Company employed in prior periods taevather londived assets. The inputs utilized in the analysesctassified as Level
inputs within the fair value hierarchy as definedNSC 820, "Fair Value Measurement."

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 tompany concluded it had a triggering event raggiassessment of impairment for cer
of its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructurangions announced in fiscal 2012. In addition,ha fourth quarter of fiscal 201
the Company concluded it had a triggering eventiregy assessment of impairment for certain ofdtgydived assets due to volume decli
in the European automotive markets. As a result,Gompany reviewed the long-lived assets for immpait and recorded $39 million
impairment charge within restructuring and impaintneosts on the consolidated statement of incofmehah $3 millionwas recorded in ti
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quartdrfiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $tillion related to the Power Solutic
segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Eigrece Interiors segment, $4 millisalated to the Building Efficiency Other segmend
$10 million related to corporate assets. Refer to Note 16,nifBignt Restructuring and Impairment Costs," of thotes to consolidat
financial statements for additional information.eThmpairment was measured, depending on the asifieer under an income appro
utilizing forecasted discounted cash flows or aketapproach utilizing an appraisal to determirievfalues of the impairment assets. Tt
methods are consistent with the methods the Compemployed in prior periods to value other Idhgd assets. The inputs utilized in
analyses are classified as Level 3 inputs withenftir value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "R&afue Measurement.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compa&apnded an impairment charge related to an invedtmenarketable common stock du
the investee’s bankruptcy announcement in Marct220% a result, the Company recorded a $14 mililopairment charge within sellir
general, and administrative expenses in the PowlertiSns segment. The impairment reduced the imvest to zerand was measured un
a market approach using the publicized share pfibe. inputs utilized in the analysis are classifeedLevel 1 inputs within the fair val
hierarchy as defined in ASC 820.

At September 30, 2014 and 201tBe Company concluded it did not have any ottiggéring events requiring assessment of impairroéits
longdived assets. Refer to Note 1, "Summary of Sigaific Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consdkdafinancial statements -
discussion of the Company’s goodwill impairmentites Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and Other Intarigib
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Assets," of the notes to consolidated financialest&nts for further information regarding the goddimpairment charges recorded in
fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 and 2013.

18. INCOME TAXES
At March 31, 2014, the Company determined thatAitdsomotive Experience Electronics segment met thier@a to be classified as
discontinued operation, which required retrospectapplication to financial information for all peds presented. Refer to Note

"Discontinued Operations," of the notes to consdéd financial statements for further informati@garding the Company's discontin
operations.

The more significant components of the Companysine tax provision from continuing operations adaflows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012

Tax expense at federal statutory rate $ 71z % 66C $ 48k
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 9 39 13
Foreign income tax expense at different rates arelgn losses

without tax benefits (203 (309) (387)
U.S. tax on foreign income (229 (60) (18)
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustments 34 197 13
U.S. credits and incentives 9 (28) (13
Business divestitures 80 8 —
Restructuring and impairment costs 75 22¢ 78
Change in assertion over permanently reinvestetdresy 35 4 —
Other (29) (44) (10
Provision for income taxes $ 48z $ 69€ $ 161

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory fatefiscal 2014primarily due to the benefits of continuing glolak planning initiatives ar
income in certain nol.S. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than theSUstatutory tax rate partially offset by the onsequences
business divestitures, significant restructurind empairment costs, the change in assertion owevestment of foreign undistributed earni
related to the Global Workplace Solutions busireess valuation allowance adjustments. The effeatite is above the U.S. statutory rate
fiscal 2013primarily due to the tax consequences of significastructuring and impairment costs, and valuasittowance and uncertain 1
position adjustments, partially offset by favoratdg audit resolutions, the benefits of continughgbal tax planning initiatives and income
certain nond.S. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than the&SUstatutory tax rate. The effective rate is belbevU.S. statutory rate for fisi
2012 primarily due to continuing global tax plargiimitiatives and income in certain n@hS. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower thar
U.S. statutory tax rate.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedeftax asset valuation allowances on a quartedisbar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation alowae, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groepording the net deferred tax asset are considaledg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthito@ompanys valuation allowances m
be necessary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014he Company performed an analysis related todghkzability of its worldwide deferred tax asseAs. ¢
result, and after considering tax planning initiati and other positive and negative evidence, trapany determined that it was more lik
than not that deferred tax assets within Italy wloubt be realized. Therefore, the Company reco&82dmillion of net valuation allowanc
as income tax expense in the three month periodd8éptember 30, 2014 .

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Companyedined that it was more likely than not that tleferred tax asset associated with a c¢
loss in Mexico would not be utilized. Therefores Bompany recorded a $21 million valuation alloweaas income tax expense.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compamyedmined that it was more likely than not thatedefd tax assets within Germany
Poland would not be realized. The Company alsorchéed that it was more likely than not that théedeed tax assets within
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two French Power Solutions entities would be reaizlherefore, the Company recorded $145 millibnet valuation allowances as incc
tax expense in the three month period ended Sepiedih 2013.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compagterdhined that it was more likely than not thatoatipn of the deferred tax assets wit
Brazil and Germany would not be realized. Thereftire Company recorded $94 million of valuatiomwatnces as income tax expense.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overallégase to its valuation allowances of $47 millmmmarily due to a discrete period inca
tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fougtlarter of fiscal 2012, the Company determinedlith@as more likely than not that defer
tax assets within Power Solutions in China would v realized. Therefore, the Company recorded&rélion valuation allowance
income tax expense in the three month period eSeptember 30, 2012.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the HrS. numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isiiregl in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relassets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehef Companys business, there are m.
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.

At September 30, 2014 , the Company had gross ffexted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,655 milliohwhich $1,505 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalaet accrued interest at September 30, 2014appoximately $106 milliorfnet of tas
benefit).

At September 30, 2013 , the Company had gross ffexted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,345 milliohwhich $1,198 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal @et accrued interest at September 30, 2013appsoximately $84 millior(net of tas
benefit).

At September 30, 2012 , the Company had gross ffexted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 milliohwhich $1,274 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal et accrued interest at September 30, 2012appsoximately $72 millior(net of tas
benefit).

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inlimils):

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance, September 30 $ 1,348 $ 1,465 $ 1,35
Additions for tax positions related to the currgear 32¢ 12z 14z
Additions for tax positions of prior years 31 84 36
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (36) (43 (58)
Settlements with taxing authorities 9) (160 —
Statute closings (5) (45) (13
Audit resolutions — (79 —
Ending balance, September 30 $ 1,65t $ 1,34t 1,46t
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In the U.S., fiscal years 2010 through 2012 areernily under exam by the Internal Revenue SeniBS&) and 2004 through 200fre
currently under (IRS) appeals. Additionally, thengany is currently under exam in the following midfreign jurisdictions:

Tax Jurisdiction Tax Years Covered
Belgium 2012

Brazil 2004 - 2008
Canada 2007 - 2012
France 2002 - 2013
Germany 2001 - 2012

Italy 2005 - 2009, 2011
Korea 2008 - 2012
Mexico 2003 - 2004, 2007 - 2013
Poland 2012 - 2013

United Kingdom 2011 - 2012

It is reasonably possible that certain tax exarionat appellate proceedings and / or tax litigatigihconclude within the next
twelve months, the impact of which could be up ®&58 million benefit to tax expense.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, tax audit fesions resulted in a net $79 million benefit tcame tax expense.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million .

As a result of certain events related to priorgkenning initiatives, during the third quarter efdal 2012, the Company reduced the resen
uncertain tax positions by $22 million , includifig3 million of interest and penalties, resultingibenefit to income tax expense.

Other Tax Matters

During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company rirezl significant charges for restructuring and impant costs. Refer to Note :
"Significant Restructuring and Impairment Costd,'ttee notes to consolidated financial statementsafigitional information. A substant
portion of these charges cannot be benefited foptaposes due to our current tax position in thjessdictions and the underlying tax bt
in the impaired assets, thus causing $75 millid229 million and $78 millionncremental tax expense in fiscal 2014, 2013 ant®;
respectively.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compaecorded a discrete tax benefit of $51 milliare do change in entity status.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compamgvided income tax expense on the foreign undisteth earnings of the ndo:-S.
subsidiaries related to the Global Workplace Sohgibusiness, which resulted in $35 million of éapense.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compamgpdised of its Automotive Experience Interiors higedland sun visor product lines. Refe
Note 2, "Acquisitions and Divestitures," of the @®to consolidated financial statements for adufianformation. As a result, the Comp:i
recorded a pre-tax loss on divestiture of $95 milland income tax expense of $38 millioThe income tax expense is due to
jurisdictional mix of gains and losses on the salbjch resulted in nc-benefited losses in certain countries and taxahiasgin othe
countries.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compangoteed certain Mexican tax issues, which resulted 561 millionbenefit to income te
expense.

I mpacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates
The "look-through rule," under subpart F of the Ur8ernal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyeptember 30, 2014 . The "look-
through rule" had provided an exception to the Walation of certain income generated by foreigbsaliaries. It is generally thought t

this rule will be extended with the possibility retroactive application. The "look-through ruleepiously
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expired for the Company on September 30, 2012 last extended in January 2013 retroactive to thenbeyj of the Company's 2013 fis
year.

As a result of changes to Mexican tax law in thietfquarter of fiscal 2014, the Company recorddxtefit to income tax expense $2¢
million . Tax legislation was also adopted in various ojhdsdictions during the fiscal year ended Septen8®, 2014. These law chan
did not have a material impact on the Company'saiithated financial statements.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqumarter of fiscal 2013, the Company increasetbitd reserve for uncertain tax positic
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million .

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 208X Jdgislation was adopted in Japan which redutedtatutory income tax rate by 5%
Also, tax legislation was adopted in various juig§dns to limit the annual utilization of tax lessthat are carried forward. None of tt
changes had a material impact on the Company’sotidaged financial condition, results of operatiarscash flows.

Continuing Operations

Components of the provision for income taxes ortinaing operations were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Current

Federal $ 12C $ 58 $ 14¢
State 18 30 7
Foreign 611 352 22¢
74¢ 44C 382

Deferred
Federal (13¢) 21F (88)
State (6) 14 21
Foreign (12%) 27 (159
(267) 25€ (221
Provision for income taxes $ 48z $ 69€ $ 161

Consolidated domestic income from continuing openst before income taxes and noncontrolling intsrder the fiscal years enc
September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was income ,dl$Imillion , $2,169 million and $2,119 millignrespectively. Consolidated fore
income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes and noncontrolling interests for theafigears ended September 30, 20281,
and 2012 was income (loss) of $620 million , $(28&)ion and $(733) million , respectively.

Income taxes paid for the fiscal years ended SdmeB0, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $782 million 31$/illion and $496 million,
respectively.

The Company has not provided additional U.S. incoaxes on approximately $8.1 billiaf undistributed earnings of consolidated for
subsidiaries included in shareholdeesjuity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Seelnnings could become taxable upon the se
liquidation of these foreign subsidiaries or upawidend repatriation. The Compamyintent is for such earnings to be reinvestedhg
subsidiaries or to be repatriated only when it widee tax effective through the utilization of fageitax credits. It is not practicable to estin
the amount of unrecognized withholding taxes arférded tax liability on such earnings. In the féuguarter of fiscal 2014, the Compi
provided income tax expense on the foreign undisted earnings of the ndw-S. subsidiaries related to the Global Workplaotutns
business, which resulted in $35 milliafi incremental tax expense. Refer to "Capitalizdttiwithin the "Liquidity and Capital Resourct
section of Iltem 7 for discussion of domestic aneifgn cash projections.
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Deferred taxes were classified in the consolidatatements of financial position as follows (inlmits):

September 30,
2014 2013
Other current assets $ 55¢ $ 567
Other noncurrent assets 1,83¢ 1,34¢
Other current liabilities (51) 4
Other noncurrent liabilities (427) (58)
Net deferred tax asset $ 1912 $ 1,85/

Temporary differences and carryforwards which géseto deferred tax assets and liabilities inctu@e millions):

September 30,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 197 $ 43¢
Employee and retiree benefits 243 17z
Net operating loss and other credit carryforwards 3,23: 2,752
Research and development 11¢€ 14€

3,791 3,51(
Valuation allowances (1,285 (1,172

2,50¢€ 2,33¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 12¢ 12¢
Intangible assets 27¢ 19¢
Other 18¢ 16C

592 484

Net deferred tax asset $ 1912 ¢ 1,85¢

Note that the above tables exclude the amountsfefidd tax assets and liabilities for fis2014and 2013 that have been transferred to ¢
held for sale and liabilities held for sale wittive consolidated statement of financial position.

At September 30, 2014 , the Company had availati@perating loss carryforwards of approximatelys$llion , of which $2.5 billiorwill
expire at various dates between 2015 and 2084d the remainder has an indefinite carryforwaedod. The Company had available |
foreign tax credit carryforwards at September 3 Lof $1,170 million, which will expire at various dates between 20h6 2022. Th
valuation allowance, generally, is for loss carryfards for which realization is uncertain becauss unlikely that the losses will be reali
given the lack of sustained profitability and/anifed carryforward periods in certain countries.

19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganittexdreportable segments within its Building Effioig business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aesiviPrior to this reorganization, Building Effioiey was comprised of fiveeportabli
segments for financial reporting purposes: Northefina Systems, North America Service, Global WakplSolutions, Asia and Other. A
result of this change, Building Efficiency is nownaprised of foureportable segments for financial reporting purpogéth the only chang
being the combination of North America Systems Blodth America Service into oneportable segment called North America System:
Service. Historical information has been reviseceftect the new Building Efficiency reportable segnt structure.

At March 31, 2014, the Company determined thapitviously reported Automotive Experience Electosnsegment met the criteria to
classified as a discontinued operation, which megluretrospective application to financial inforinatfor all periods presented. Refer to M
3, "Discontinued Operations," of the notes to ctidated financial statements for further informatieegarding the Company's discontin
operations.
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ASC 280, "Segment Reporting," establishes the stasdfor reporting information about segments iaficial statements. In applying
criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company has mheitged that it has severeportable segments for financial reporting purposkhe
Company’s seven reportable segments are presentébei context of its three primary business@&uilding Efficiency, Automotiv:
Experience and Power Solutions.

Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency designs, produces, markets arsfialls heating, ventilating and air conditionift¢y/AC) and control systems that monit
automate and integrate critical building segmenii@gent and conditions including HVAC, fisafety and security in commercial buildil
and in various industrial applications.

* North America Systems and Service provides HVAC emitrols systems, energy efficient solutions audhhical services, includi
inspection, scheduled maintenance, and repair @pldaement of mechanical and control systems teresidential buildings ar
industrials applications in the North American megace.

» Global Workplace Solutions provides site staff for complete real estate services, ifgaiiperation and management to improve
comfort, productivity, energy efficiency and coffeetiveness of building systems around the globe.

» Asia provides HVAC and refrigeration systems aruhitécal services to the Asian marketpl:

e Other provides HVAC and refrigeration systems agchhical services to markets in Europe, the Midehst and Latin Americ
Other also designs and produces heating and adfitamring solutions for residential and light conmial applications, and marki
products to the replacement and new constructiakets

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesiémteystems and products for passenger cars ghtltliucks, including vans, piakg
trucks and sport utility/crossover vehicles.

e Seating produces automotive seat metal structum@sn@chanisms, foam, trim, fabric and complete sgstems

» Interiors produces instrument panels, floor corsaled door pane

Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive origingiigment manufacturers and the battery aftermableproviding advanced batte
technology, coupled with systems engineering, ntangeand service expertise.

Management evaluates the performance of the segnested primarily on segment income, which reptssgrrome from continuir
operations before income taxes and noncontrolingrésts excluding net financing charges, signifigastructuring and impairment co
and net mark-tanarket adjustments on pension and postretirememsplGeneral corporate and other overhead expamsesllocated |
business segments in determining segment incomenekdioned above, the previously reported Autongofixperience Electronics segnm
met the criteria to be classified as a discontinojeeration, and general corporate overhead waalloaated to discontinued operations.
Company reported discontinued operations througbgpective application to all periods presentedulting in general corporate allocal
changes between the segments in the prior perkidancial information relating to the Compasyeportable segments is as follows
millions):
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Net Sales
Building Efficiency
North America Systems and Service
Global Workplace Solutions
Asia
Other

Automotive Experience
Seating
Interiors

Power Solutions

Total net sales

Segment Income (Loss)
Building Efficiency
North America Systems and Service (1)
Global Workplace Solutions (2)
Asia (3)
Other (4)

Automotive Experience
Seating (5)
Interiors (6)

Power Solutions (7)

Total segment income

Net financing charges
Restructuring and impairment costs

Net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and
postretirement plans

Income from continuing operations before income$ax

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
4,33 $ 4,49; $ 4,53¢
4,07¢ 4,26 4,29¢
2,06¢ 2,022 1,987
3,68( 3,812 3,90(
14,16« 14,59: 14,71¢
17,53: 16,28¢ 15,85¢
4,501 4,17¢ 4,12¢
22,03: 20,46 19,98:
6,632 6,35¢ 5,90¢
42,82¢ $ 41,41C $ 40,60¢
Year Ended September 30,
2014 2013 2012

458 $ 50€ $ 44¢

95 113 51

33€ 277 26€

44 88 14C

93C 984 90€
88C 71C 68¢
6 (12 (29

88€ 69¢ 66(
1,061 1,00¢ 78¢
2871 % 2,68¢ $ 2,34¢
(244) (247 (231
(329 (957) (287)
(274 40t (445)
2,03t % 1887 $ 1,38¢
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Assets

Building Efficiency
North America Systems and Service
Global Workplace Solutions (8)
Asia
Other

Automotive Experience
Seating
Interiors (8)
Electronics (8)

Power Solutions
Assets held for sale
Unallocated

Total

Depreciation/Amortization
Building Efficiency
North America Systems and Service
Global Workplace Solutions
Asia
Other

Automotive Experience
Seating
Interiors

Power Solutions
Discontinued Operations

Total

September 30,

2014 2013 2012
2,75¢ % 2,69¢ $ 2,84¢
— 1,28¢ 1,23¢
1,341 1,352 1,31¢€
5,45¢ 3,76¢ 3,947
9,55¢ 9,10¢ 9,34¢
8,96¢ 9,76: 9,33¢
321 1,872 2,571
— — 84z
9,29( 11,63¢ 12,75:
6,88¢ 7,45¢ 7,312
2,781 804 —
4,281 2,514 1,547
32,80¢ $ 3151¢ $ 30,95¢

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
42 % 36 3 37
24 25 24
19 19 19
99 89 66
184 16¢ 14¢€
32¢ 354 32C
12¢ 11€ 10¢
45€ 47C 42¢
31t 27z 214
_ 41 35
95t $ 95z $ 824
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Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Capital Expenditures
Building Efficiency
North America Systems and Service $ 37 % 12 3 31
Global Workplace Solutions 16 7 7
Asia 26 73 38
Other 16C 10€ 10¢
23¢ 19¢ 17¢
Automotive Experience
Seating 42C 467 54¢
Interiors 181 23t 171
Electronics 31 52 57
632 754 777
Power Solutions 32¢ 42% 87t
Total $ 1,19¢ $ 1,377 $ 1,831

1)

(@)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Building Efficiency - North America SystemsdaBervice segment income for the years ended Septe3f, 2014 , 2018nd 201
excludes $12 million , $38 million and $8 milliomespectively, of restructuring and impairmenttsoBor the year ended Septen
30, 2012, North America Systems and Service segmeoine includes $1 million of equity income.

Building Efficiency - Global Workplace Solutie segment income for the years ended Septemb&03G, and 2012 exclud&b4
million and $16 million , respectively, of restrudng and impairment costs.

Building Efficiency - Asia segment income fitve years ended September 30, 2014 , 2013 ande@lixles $4 million $5 million
and $1 million , respectively, of restructuring @mgpairment costs. For the years ended Septembe&t(3@ , 2013 and 2012Asie
segment income includes $21 million , $2 milliord&8 million , respectively, of equity income.

Building Efficiency - Other segment income the years ended September 30, 2014 , 2013 and &@l2des $126 million $9:
million and $64 million , respectively, of restrudng and impairment costs. For the years endede8dgger 30, 2014 , 2018nc
2012 , Other segment income includes $14 milli26 million and $23 million , respectively, of eguincome.

Automotive Experience - Seating segment incdonehe years ended September 30, 2014 , 2012abd excludes $29 million
$152 million and $101 million , respectively, ofstricturing and impairment costs. For the yearedrseptember 30, 201£201:
and 2012 , Seating segment income includes $25®mjl$287 million and $194 million , respectivebf equity income.

Automotive Experience - Interiors segment imeofor the years ended September 30, 2014 , 201 2@tR2 excludes $130 million
$560 million and $48 million , respectively, of regturing and impairment costs. For the years dr@8gptember 30, 2014 , 2048c
2012, Interiors segment income includes $35 mmilli®16 million and $17 million , respectively, edfuity income.

Power Solutions segment income for the yeaded September 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 excludem$lion , $36 million andb37
million , respectively, of restructuring and impaegnt costs. For the years ended September 30, 22043 and 2012 Powe
Solutions segment income includes $75 million , 6ion and $100 million , respectively, of equitycome.

Current year amounts exclude assets held for Ralfer to Note 3, "Discontinued Operations," of tiwtes to consolidated financ
statements for further information regarding thempany's disposal groups classified as held for. sale

The Company has significant sales to the automadtideistry. In fiscal years 2014 , 2013 and 20120, customer exceeded 1086
consolidated net sales.
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Geographic Segments

Financial information relating to the Company’s @i®ns by geographic area is as follows (in mil&in

Net Sales

United States

Germany

Mexico

Other European countries
Other foreign

Total

LongLived Assets (Yeaend)
United States

Germany

Mexico

Other European countries
Other foreign

Total

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012

17,50t $ 16,52( $ 15,37:
4,06¢ 4,60¢ 4,631
2,01¢ 2,042 1,90¢
10,64: 9,40¢ 10,06:
8,601 8,83¢ 8,63¢
42,82¢ % 41,41C % 40,60¢
2,76z $ 2,551 % 2,521
91C 1,057 87¢
567 56C 58¢
1,06¢ 1,43¢ 1,55
1,011 97¢ 89t
6,314 $ 6,58t $ 6,44(

Net sales attributed to geographic locations aseth@n the location of the assets producing thesshbne-lived assets by geographic local

consist of net property, plant and equipment.

20. NONCONSOLIDATED PARTIALLY-OWNED AFFILIATES

Investments in the net assets of nonconsolidatethiyowned affiliates are stated in the "Investmis in partiallypwned affiliates" line i
the consolidated statements of financial positisrofiSeptember 30, 2014 and 2013 . Equity in thanm®me of nonconsolidated partially-
owned affiliates is stated in the "Equity incomigiel in the consolidated statements of income feryibars ended September 30, 20201,:
and 2012 .

The following table presents summarized financa&bdor the Company’s nonconsolidated partiallyned affiliates. The amounts include:
the table below represent 100% of the results efatpns of such nonconsolidated partialyned affiliates accounted for under the ec
method. An equity investment is considered a sicguit noneonsolidated partially owned affiliate ("SignifidaAffiliate™) and is show
separately below.

Summarized balance sheet data is as follows (itomdgl):

September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013

Significant Significant
Affiliate All Other Affiliate All Other
Current assets 1,111 $ 3,25¢ % 1,06: 2,92¢
Noncurrent assets 49C 1,33¢ 471 1,304
Total assets 1,601 $ 4,58¢ $ 1,53¢ 4,22¢
Current liabilities 99¢ $ 2,328 % 994 2,052
Noncurrent liabilities 33 537 29 584
Shareholders’ equity 57& 1,724 511 1,592
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1601 $ 4,58¢ $ 1,53¢ 4,22¢
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Summarized income statement data for the yearsde®éptember 30 is as follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Significant Significant Significant
Affiliate All Other Affiliate All Other Affiliate All Other
Net sales $ 2851 $ 7,96 $ 2,45 $ 752 $ 2,000 $ 7,261
Gross profit 39¢ 1,24z 352 1,13C 301 1,122
Net income attributable to the
entity 294 493 23¢€ 401 224 44C

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company accrues for potential environmentailltées when it is probable a liability has beerurred and the amount of the liability
reasonably estimable. Reserves for environmerailities totaled $24 million and $25 million atf@ember 30, 2014 and 2018spectively
The Company reviews the status of its environmesitak on a quarterly basis and adjusts its reseageordingly. Such potential liabilit
accrued by the Company do not take into considergibssible recoveries of future insurance proceEdsy do, however, take into accc
the likely share other parties will bear at remédra sites. It is difficult to estimate the Compasiyltimate level of liability at mar
remediation sites due to the large number of gbheties that may be involved, the complexity ofedetining the relative liability among thc
parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and sobgize investigations and remediation to be cotetiicthe uncertainty in the applicatior
law and risk assessment, the various choices astd associated with diverse technologies that neaysled in corrective actions at the s
and the often quite lengthy periods over which éwaliremediation may occur. Nevertheless, the Complaes not currently believe that
claims, penalties or costs in connection with kneamvironmental matters will have a material advexect on the Compang’financia
position, results of operations or cash flows.ddition, the Company has identified asset retirednobligations for environmental matters 1
are expected to be addressed at the retiremeptsdik removal or abandonment of existing owneditias, primarily in the Power Solutio
business. At September 30, 2014 and 2013 , the @wynmecorded conditional asset retirement obligatiof $52 million and $56 million
respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of productilipband various other casualty lawsuits incidémthe operation of its businesses.
Company maintains insurance coverages and recstidsaéed costs for claims and suits of this natlirie.managemenrd’ opinion that none
these will have a material adverse effect on the@any’s financial position, results of operations or cigtvs. Costs related to such mat
were not material to the periods presented.
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JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012
Accounts ReceivableAllowance for Doubtful Accounts
Balance at beginning of period $ 68 $ 78 % 89
Provision charged to costs and expenses 50 68 47
Reserve adjustments (22 (50) (15)
Accounts charged off (19 27 (42
Acquisition of businesses 1 1 —
Divestiture of businesses — QD —
Currency translation Q) — Q)
Transfers to held for sale (5) 1) —
Balance at end of period $ 72 $ 68 % 78
Deferred Tax AssetsValuation Allowance
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,172 $ 766 $ 71¢
Allowance provision for new operating and othesloarryforwards 121 16E 11¢
Allowance provision (benefit) adjustments (8) 25C (72
Transfers to held for sale — 9) —
Balance at end of period $ 128§ 117: ° $ 76€
ITEM9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompanys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic has evaluated t
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure contaold procedures (as such term is defined in Rulelb8a) under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) athefend of the period covered by this report. Bas® such evaluations, the Company’
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offideave concluded that, as of the end of such petiedCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures are effective in recording, processngimarizing, and reporting, on a timely basis, imiation required to be disclosed by
Company in the reports that it files or submits emthe Exchange Act, and that information is acdated and communicated to
Company’s management, including the Companghief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic as appropriate, to allow tim
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing andtanaing adequate internal control over financgorting, as such term
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Compamyanagement, with the participation of the ConmyparChief Executive Officer al
Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effemtigss of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting basedtle framework i
Internal Controlintegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Commitfe®ponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Corsiois Based ¢
this evaluation, the Company’s management has adadl that, as of September 30, 2014 , the Companyernal control over financ
reporting was effective.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to risk that controls may become inadeqgbatsause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

112




PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registaurblic accounting firm, has audited the Compsuegnsolidated financial stateme
and the effectiveness of internal controls oveaffitial reporting as of September 30, 2@&4tated in its report which is included in Iterof
this Form 10-K and is incorporated by referencesimer

Management has excluded Air Distribution Technadsgilnc. (ADT) from its assessment of internal oanbver financial reporting as
September 30, 2014 given its acquisition date of ADJune 2014. ADT is a wholly owned subsidiantted Company whose combined t
assets and total revenues excluded from our aseassapresent approximately 1% and less than 18pertively, of the related consolida
financial statement amounts as of and for the gaded September 30, 2014.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s inteon#rol over financial reporting during the quarended September 30, 2Ql#at hav
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

The Company is undertaking the implementation néa& global enterprise resource planning (ERP) systehich will occur over a period
several years. As the phased it of the new ERP system occurs, the Company mpgrience changes in its internal control overriirial
reporting. No significant changes were made to @mmpanys current internal control over financial reportiag a result of tt
implementation of the new ERP system during theafigear ended September 30, 2014 .

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

The information required by Part lll, Iltems 10, 1B and 14, and certain of the information requibgdtem 12, is incorporated herein
reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement fo2@$5 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (which we rdferas the fiscal 201#roxy

Statement), dated and to be filed with the SECraaibout December 8, 2014, as follows:

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GO VERNANCE

Incorporated by reference to the sections entif@dWhere can | find Corporate Governance matef@sohnson Controls?," "Proposal C
Election of Directors,"” "Corporate Governance," &® and Committee Membership,” "Audit Committee &&pand "Section 16(
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" of tiseél 2014Proxy Statement. Required information on execubiffieers of the Compar
appears at Part |, Item 4 of this report.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the sections entit@arporate Governance," "Board and Committee Mestipr" "Compensation Committ
Report," "Compensation Discussion and Analysis,itéEtor Compensation during Fiscal Year 2Q14Potential Payments and Benefits U
Termination or Change of Control," and "Johnsont@ids Share Ownership" of the fiscal 2014 Proxyté&teent.
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to the section entitlemhhson Controls Share Ownership" of the fiscal2@ibxy Statement.

The following table provides information about tiempany's equity compensation plans as of Septegih&014 :

(a) (b) (©)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for Futul

Number of Securities to be Issuance Under Equity
Issued upon Exercise of Weighted-Average Exercise Compensation Plans (Excludi
Outstanding Options, Warrants Price of Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in Column
and Rights Warrants and Rights ()

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved

by shareholders 22,72791 % 28.8: 33,623,91
Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareholders — — —

Total 2272791 $ 28.8: 33,623,91

(c) Includes shares of Common Stock that remaiilabla for grant as follows: 33,513,925 shares unde 2012 Omnibus Plan and 109,
shares under the 2003 Stock Plan for Outside Qirgct

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to the section entitfédrporate Governance" of the fiscal 2014 ProxyeBiant.

ITEM14  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the section entitkeddit Committee Report" of the fiscal 2014 Proxat8ment.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page in
Form 10-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ frorm 10-K:
(1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 54
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@&&ptember 30, 2014, 2013 and
2012 56
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjlLfor the years ended
September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 56
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at&eber 30, 2014 and 2013 57
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadled September 30, 2014, 2013
and 2012 58
Consolidated Statements of ShareholdErglity Attributable to Johnson Controls, |
for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 at2l 20 59
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 59
(2) Financial Statement Schedule
For the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 drid 20
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 112

(3) Exhibits
Reference is made to the separate exhibit indetaowd on pages 119 through 122 filed herewith.

All other schedules are omitted because they ateapplicable, or the required information is shoinnthe financial statements or nc
thereto.

Financial statements of 50% or lemsned companies have been omitted because therfioobe share of their profit before income t:
and total assets are individually less than 20%hefrespective consolidated amounts, and invesgierstuch companies are less than 20
consolidated total assets. Refer to Note 20, "NonsGlidated Partiallfdwned Affiliates" of the notes to consolidated fioal statements f
the summarized financial data for the Company’scoosolidated partially-owned affiliates.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the amendmeatthé rules governing Form &-under the Securities Act of 1933, the undersi
registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which tiaéiang shall be incorporated by reference intastegnt’s Registration Statements on Fi
S-8 Nos. 33-30309, 33-31271, 33-58094, 333-10783;43564, 333-141578, 333-173326 and 333-188430.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisingder the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitteditectors, officers and controlling pers
of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing pravisi or otherwise, the registrant has been aduisadin the opinion of the SEC st
indemnification is against public policy as expessin the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefareenforceable. In the event that a clain
indemnification against such liabilities (other ththe payment by the registrant of expenses induarepaid by a director, officer



controlling person of the registrant in the suchidstefense of any action, suit or proceeding)siseated by such director, officer or control
person in connection with the securities beingsteged, the registrant will, unless in the opinadrits counsel the matter has been settle
controlling precedent, submit to a court of appiater jurisdiction the question whether such inddioation by it is against public policy
expressed in the Act and will be governed by thelfadjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

By /sl Brian J. Stief
Brian J. Stief

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 19, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belswf November 19, 2014by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated:

sl Alex A. Molinaroli /sl Brian J. Stief

Alex A. Molinaroli Brian J. Stief

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and

(Principal Executive Officer) Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
/sl Suzanne M. Vincent [s/ David Abney

Suzanne M. Vincent David Abney

Vice President and Corporate Controller Director

(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Dennis W. Archer /sl Natalie A. Black

Dennis W. Archer Natalie A. Black

Director Director

/s/ Julie L. Bushman /s/ Eugenio Clariond Reyd®etana
Julie L. Bushman Eugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana
Director Director

/sl Raymond L. Conner /sl Richard Goodman

Raymond L. Conner Richard Goodman

Director Director

/sl Jeffrey A. Joerres /s/ William H. Lacy

Jeffrey A. Joerres William H. Lacy

Director Director

/s/ Mark P. Vergnano
Mark P. Vergnano
Director
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Exhibit Title

3.(i) Restated Articles of Incorporation of Johnson Galstrinc., as amended through January 23, 2013rfiocated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, Bi€urrent Report on Form <filed January 28, 2013) (Commissi
File No. 1-5097).

3.(ii) Johnson Controls, Inc. Byaws, as amended and restated through July 24, Zdt8rporated by reference
Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Bg@n Form 8-K filed July 25, 2013) (CommissioheANo. 1-5097).

4.A Miscellaneous long-term debt agreementsfanashcing leases with banks and other creditotsdabenture indentures.*
4.B Miscellaneous industrial development bamigtterm debt issues and related loan agreemedteases.*
4.C Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 betdelenson Controls, Inc., LaSalle National Trust, NaAd Fidelity

Management Trust Company which replaces LaSalléoNat Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the Johnson Costraic.
Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust with Fidelittatdgement Trust Company as Successor Trustee fived!
January 1, 1991 (incorporated by reference to Hix4iF to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual ReportFmrm 10K for
the year ended September 30, 1991) (CommissiorNeile-5097).

4.D Senior indenture, dated January 17, 2006, betwebnsdn Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Asstmn, ac
successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase Bank, Natkssalciation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Johnso
Controls, Inc. Registration Statement on Form 8&g. No. 333-157502]).

4.E Credit Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2013 andafgson Controls, Inc., the financial institutiqresties thereto ar
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative a§j@sbrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Jolmn&montrols
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 913) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

4.F Supplemental Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, mwlmhnson Controls, Inc., as Issuer, and U.S. Béational
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referg¢adexhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrBeport on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1%5A).

4G Subordinated Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, Etwiehnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nationalo8mtion, a
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4£2Jbhnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Fori/A filed
March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

4.H Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 16, 2(#9ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nal
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referg¢adexhibit 4.3 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrBeport on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 150).

4. Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 1, 20&ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nat
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referéadexhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrBefport on Form &
filed March 1, 2012) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

4. Officers’ Certificate, dated December 2, 2011, establishieg2t600% Senior Notes due 2016, 3.750% SeniorsNite
2021 and 5.250% Senior Notes due 2041 (incorpotayectference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Contrais,’s Curren
Report on Form 8-K filed December 2, 2011) (Comiois$ile No. 1-5097).

4K Form of Subordinated Note (incorporated by refeeet Exhibit 4.8 to Johnson Controls, IscCurrent Report ¢
Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission Fil@NL-5097).

4.L Officers’ Certificate, dated March 9, 2010 creating 5.000%i@eNotes due 2020 (incorporated by referenc
Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Bepn Form 8-K filed March 10, 2010) (CommissioileANo. 1-
5097).
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Exhibit

Johnson Controls, Inc
Index to Exhibits

Title

4.M

4.N

10.A

10.B

10.C

10.D

10.E

10.F

10.G

10.H

10.1

10.J

Officers’ Certificate, dated June 13, 2014, establishingltd@0% Senior Notes due 2017, 3.625% Senior Nate
2024, 4.625% Senior Notes due 2044 and 4.950% Shluites due 2064 (incorporated by reference to liiHil to
Johnson Contrals, Inc.’s Current Report on Form Bidd June 13, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

Officers’ Certificate, dated February 4, 2011, establishirey Eloating Rate Notes due 2014, 1.75% Senior Ndue
2014, 4.25% Senior Notes due 2021 and 5.70% Séintes due 2041 (incorporated by reference to ExMHilii to
Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form #ddl February 7, 2011). (Commission File No. 1930

Global Assignment Letter between Dr. Beda Bolzerind Johnson Controls, Inc. dated as of Septemh20131, filec
herewith.**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase RiarExecutives as amended through November 17, 20
effective December 1, 2004 (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.B to Johnson Controls, IscAnnual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 200dini@ission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plam Gertain Directors, as amended and restated tiv
November 18, 2009 (incorporated by reference taltkixh0.C to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual RepmrtForm 10K
for the year ended September 30, 2009) (CommidslerNo. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Benefigin, as amended and restated effective SepterBpezQD¢
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.D to Ja@m€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form K(for the year ende
September 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Tax Refund Purchase Agreement among Dr. Beda Biolzedohnson Controls, Inc. and Christiane Bolzewniated a
of November 30, 2012 (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, IreQuarterly Report on For
10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31220Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Global Assignment Letter between Susan F. DavisJamsson Controls, Inc. dated as of June 9, 20tbi{porated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls,'$nQuarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the quarterly period ended Ji
30, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of indemnity agreement effective January T862 between Johnson Controls, Inc. and each afiteetors an
elected officers (incorporated by reference to BiHiO.L to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual RepamtForm 10K for
the year ended September 30, 2007) (CommissiorNBild-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Director Share Unit Plararagnded and restated effective September 20, @@ddrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.H to Johnson Controls, thé&nnual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended September
2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, rmeraled and restated effective January 1, 2009 r(incated by
reference to Exhibit 10.I to Johnson Controls, 'hé&nnual Report on Form 1K-for the year ended September
2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsonti@ts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendedutyin
October 1, 2001, as in use through March 20, 26@®(porated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to JolhnSontrols, Inc$
Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 15, 20@5pmmission File No. 1-5097).**
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Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Rlaramended and restated effective September 20, (R@&brporate!
by reference to Exhibit 10.K to Johnson Contralg,.’s Annual Report on Form I+or the year ended September
2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of restricted stock award agreement for JomrSontrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, ast famende
March 21, 2006 with effectiveness of August1, 20@@d as currently amended effective September220,1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.L to Jam€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form KCor the year ende
September 30, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred CompémsaPlan, as amended and restated effective Jyl2B33
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.M to Jaim€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form K(fer the year ende
September 30, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for OutBitectors, as amended September 1, 2009 (incogxbiat referenc
to Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s AnniRéport on Form 1@ for the year ended September 30, 2(
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performamian, as amended and restated effective Janua2@d§
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to J@m€ontrols, Inc.’s Current Report FornK8filed February 1, 2011
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Retirement Restoration Rlaramended and restated effective November 1B, @d€orporate!
by reference to Exhibit 10.P to Johnson Contrals,’$ Annual Report on Form 10for the year ended September
2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Compensation Summary for -Eimployee Directors as amended and restated ef&
October 1, 2014, filed herewith.**

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsont@ts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendede®dper 16
2006, as in effect since October 2, 2006 (incorjgardy reference to Exhibit 10.CC to Johnson Cdsitiac.’s Annua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended SeptembgP@06) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. LonBerm Incentive Performance Plan, as amended artdtedseffective January 1, 20
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Je@mn€ontrols, Inc.’s Current Report on FornK&iled February 1
2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan, atednas of September 20, 2011 (incorporated by erfer tc
Exhibit 10.U to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Bgpon Form 1K for the year ended September 30, 2(
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option or stock appreciation rightaaglvagreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 S@gotion Plar
effective September 20, 2011 (incorporated by egfee to Exhibit 10.V to Johnson Controls, IacAnnual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 201ani@ission File No. 1-5097).**

Supplemental Agreement to the Employment Contrativéen Johnson Controls GmbH and Dr. Beda Bolzeditesc
August 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExHiB.EE to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual ReportForm 10K
for the year ended September 30, 2008) (CommigslerNo. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Compensation ltefRecoupment Policy effective September 15, 2@8%amende
through September 25, 2012 (incorporated by reeréa Exhibit 10.X to Johnson Controls, Inc.'s AainReport ot
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2018n(@ission File No. 1-5097).**
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Form of employment agreement, including form ofrdmin control agreement, between Johnson Contraisand al
elected officers and named executives, as amenukdeatated July 28, 2010 (incorporated by refereadExhibit 10.Y
to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Quarterly Report onnrd0-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010n{@&ssior
File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Rilacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) tbrimn Controls
Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2@&1 3) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of performance share unit agreement for Joh&antrols, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Plan faripeents whc
have not announced an intention to retire (incafeat by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) to Johnsont@ts Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 21, 20@3mmission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of restricted stock/restricted stock unit agment for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus IticenPlar
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) tbrdson Controls, Inc.'s Current Report on Forik fled November 21
2013) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of option/stock appreciation right agreementlohnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus IncentiamRincorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) to Johnson Conjriiig.'s Current Report on Formk8filed November 21, 201:
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of performance share unit agreement for Joh&antrols, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Plan faripgnts whc
have announced an intention to retire (incorporégedeference to Exhibit 10.1(d) to Johnson Costriic.'s Currer
Report on Form 8-K filed November 21, 2013) (Consiur File No. 1-5097).**

Separation Agreement and Release of All Claims éetwJohnson Controls, Inc. and C. David Myers dateabi
September 30, 2014, and amendment thereto, dateth&@9, 2014, filed herewith.**

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed chargesthe years ended September 30, 2014, 2013, 2012, and 201(
filed herewith.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herewith.

Consent of Independent Registered PublaAwsting Firm dated November 19, 2014, filed hetlewi

Certification by the Chief Executive @#Ht pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxt&yA2002, filed herewith.
Certification by the Chief Financial @#r pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#y#A2002, filed herewith.

Certification of Periodic Financial Report by théni€f Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeursuant tc
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002dfierewith.

The following materials from Johnson Controls, m@nnual Report on Form 1K-for the year ended September
2014, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business RepgrtLanguage): (i) the Consolidated Statements infircial
Position, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Ineofiii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehe&nkicome (Loss
(iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowt{e) Consolidated Statements of Shareholdegsiity Attributable tc
Johnson Controls, Inc. and (vi) Notes to Consoéidd&inancial Statements, filed herewith.



*%k

These instruments are not being filed as extib@rewith because none of the ldagn debt instruments authorizes the issuan
debt in excess of 10% of the total assets of Jah@mmtrols, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a conatdéid basis. Johnson Controls, |
agrees to furnish a copy of each agreement to¢barflies and Exchange Commission upon request.

Denotes a management contract or compensatary. p
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EXHIBIT 10.A

Johnson ﬂ))ﬁ

Controls

Global Assignment Letter

Expatriate Name: Dr. Beda Bolzenius
Home Country: United States

Host Country: China

Host Location: Shanghai, China

International Assignment Services: Joyce D Sadler

This offer sets forth the specifics of the compensation and allowance package established for you in connection with
your assignment as a corporate officer & Vice Chairman - Asia Pacific & President, Automotive Experience of Johnson
Controls, Inc. (the "Company"), reporting to the CEO of the Company.

This Global Assignment Letter should be read in conjunction with the Employment Agreement between the employee
and Johnson Controls, if applicable. To the extent there is a conflict between the terms of this letter and the terms of
the Employment Agreement, the terms of this Global Assignment Letter will be controlling.

This Assignment Letter is subject to you being able to obtain the necessary work visa/residence permit(s) in China and
the necessary vaccinations/immunizations if applicable.

Your foreign assignment is expected to last three years , commencing on October 1, 2014, provided that all
immigration documents are in order. For the two year period following the completion of this assignment, you will be
provided with a Corporate Vice President position based at the Johnson Controls Headquarters located in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin. It is understood that at that time your title will no longer include Vice Chairman - Asia Pacific.

Base Salary :
Your base salary effective with the assignment will be $71,250.00 USD monthly ($855,000 USD annually). Salary

administration procedures are in accordance with your home country guidelines. While on foreign assignment, you will
be paid once a month.
Bonus :

Your annual performance bonus will be targeted at 90% of your base salary.

Goods and Services Allowance :




You will receive a Goods and Services allowance, where applicable, using information that we receive from our cost of
living data provider. If applicable, you will be paid this allowance every month to offset the difference in costs for goods
and services between your home country and your Host location. The current rate as of the date hereof will be $3,000
USD per month and subject to change effective January 1, 2015. This index is based upon the Cost Effective Home
Country Index. This will become effective the date you move into long term housing and cease to be reimbursed for
temporary living expenses. This allowance will cease the date you move out of permanent housing in the Host
country, or if you have to leave the Host country for an extended period. It is your responsibility to notify your
International Assignment Analyst about the dates you move in and/or out of temporary living.

Relocation Allowance :

You will receive a Relocation Allowance of $13,355.00 at the beginning of your assignment. This allowance is
delivered less applicable taxes paid by you, and will be delivered in your first monthly assignment paycheck.

Upon successful completion of your assignment, and return to your home country, you will receive a Relocation
Allowance of $13,355.00, less applicable taxes paid by you.

Hardship Allowance :

The Company will pay a 10% of your base salary hardship allowance to you. The hardship allowance begins with the
effective date of your assignment. Please refer to your compensation worksheet for the monthly allowance amount. It
will be paid each monthly pay period and will continue only during the time that the area is classified as an area that
warrants a hardship allowance. The hardship percentage will be reviewed annually and may increase or decrease
depending on the change in conditions. The hardship allowance will discontinue upon the completion of this
assignment.

Housing Allowance :

You will receive housing in your Host location that is commensurate with your peers in that location. If you continue to
maintain your residence in Mexico, 100% of the housing costs will be covered at your Host location. If you purchase
property in the Host location, the cost becomes 100% your responsibility.

Utilities, including heat, water, electricity, and the installation charges for cable and telephone, are included in the
company paid Host country housing payments. Service utilities, such as phone and cable, are not reimbursed, as they
are part of the goods and services allowance.

The housing allowance will commence the day you take residence in your Host country housing.

Home Sale:

The Company will provide assistance if you incur a loss on the sale of a primary residence in the United States, due to
unfavorable regional home sale market conditions, up to a maximum of $75,000 USD .

Home Leave :

For each year of this assignment, a total of twelve personal round trips via Business Class will be provided for use by
you Or your spouse.

Also, it is the Company’s intent to establish an office for you in Mexico at either your residence or a close Company
plant to allow you to be productive during your time in Mexico.




Host Country Transportation :

The Company will provide a company car or an automobile allowance.

Vacations and Holidays :

You will continue to be eligible for vacation based upon your home country policy. You will observe the work hours and
holidays of the Host country.

Host Country Club Membership :

You are eligible for reimbursement of club membership and initiation fees up to a maximum of $10,000 annually.
Company Car
You will continue to have use of a Company car to assist you while you are in Mexico.

Tax Equalization :

You will receive Tax Equalization assistance minimize, within practical limits, any tax advantage, or disadvantage of
your foreign assignment (in accordance with the Johnson Controls Tax Equalization Policy). This comes in the form of
tax preparation work from our tax provider. It will remain your responsibility to file the necessary income tax returns,
including any estimated returns, in your home country and Host location. You are required to furnish any withholding
allowances and exemption certificates that are necessary, so that the company’s withholding tax payments can be
minimized within the requirements of the law. For US Expatriates, Social Security Contributions will continue to be
made by you.

Termination :

During your assignment and for the two year period thereafter, you will remain an at-will employee of the Company
subject to the terms of your Employment Agreement, which means that you or the Company may terminate your
employment at any time.

Benefits :

You will continue to participate in the benefit programs of your home country, unless prohibited by home or Host
country laws, regulations, or costs. In such cases, an applicable coverage in the form of an expatriate benefits
package will be provided to cover pension, medical, disability, and death benefits, if necessary.

Relocation :

You are eligible for destination services by the Host Country HR Representative or our Third Party Provider, Brookfield
Global Relocation Services.

You are eligible for settling in services by our Third Party Provider, Brookfield Global Relocation Services, or the Host
Country HR Representative.

You will be reimbursed for a shipment of essential items not available, or included, in the Host country, furnished
housing.

Storage of household goods will be provided for the sale of your Michigan home.

The Company will not pay the costs associated with the relocation of household pets.




Repatriation :

You will be reimbursed for travel expenses back to your home country.

You will be allowed a total of 30 days of temporary living. If for some reason this needs to change, please speak with
Susan Davis or Alex Molinaroli.

You will be allowed a return shipment of goods, which can be 10% greater than the original shipment weight.
Any items in storage will be delivered to your home country residence.

Disputes About This Letter:

The parties agree that all disputes regarding this assignment letter or interpretation of the letter shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Wisconsin and the parties further agree that the exclusive judicial forum for resolving all such
disputes shall be the courts of the State of Wisconsin. If any provision of this Assignment Letter is judicially or
otherwise declared to be invalid, unenforceable or void, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be effective to the
same extent as if such invalid or unenforceable provision had never been included.

Accepted by:

/s/ Dr. Beda Bolzenius _9/9/14
Dr. Beda Bolzenius Date

Approved by:

[s/ Susan F. Davis _9/6/14
Susan F. Davis Date
Executive Vice President Human Resources

/sl Alex A. Molinaroli _9/4/14
Alex A Molinaroli Date
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 10.EE

SEPARATION AGREEMENT
AND
RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS

This Separation Agreement and Release of All Cldlagreement”) is entered into between Johnson
Controls, Inc. (the "Company") and C. David Myéisrtiployee™). Employee enters into this Agreemenbehalf of
himself, his spouse, heirs, successors, assigasuexs, and representatives of any kind, if any.

Employee has elected to resign his employment théghCompany and to resign as an officer and
director of the Company and/or all affiliated comjas, effective September 30, 2014. In order tolvesall issues

between them, the Company and Employee agreelaw/$ol

1. Neither the Company’s signing of this Agreemamt any actions taken by the Company toward
compliance with the terms of this Agreement couatgiin admission by the Company that it has aotedaperly or
unlawfully with regard to Employee or that it haslated any state or federal law.

2. Employee hereby resigns his employment withQbmpany, effective September 30, 2014. He also
resigns as an officer and director of the Compard/a all affiliated companies, effective SeptemB@yr2014. Durin
the period from September 15, 2014 to Septembe2@D4, Employee will work in good faith to traneitihis job
duties and responsibilities to his successor puatsiwathe specific written request of the Compar§E0 or General
Counsel.

3. During the period from October 1, 2014, untilieta31, 2015, (the "consulting period”), the
Company and Employee will maintain a consultingtiehship, under which Employee will be availaldesérve as a
consultant for the Company concerning transitiagssles related to the business. In that capaa@tyith perform
services on behalf of the Company only upon theifipavritten request of the Company’s CEO or Gaeh€ounsel.
Employee’s separation benefits under this Agreeraemintended to serve as compensation for Emplegeasulting

services during the period from October 1,




2014, until March 31, 2015, and in addition, Em@ewill be paid an additional hourly fee of $100p@® hour for
any consulting services performed pursuant toAlgieement.
4, The Company will pay or provide Employee thédwing:

a. Separation pay in the amount of Four Million@hiHundred Thousand Dollars
($4,300,000.00), less withholdings. This sum wdlgzaid to Employee in a lump sum within thirty (8@)ys
after the Effective Date (as defined in paragrajpel®w).

b. During the consulting period, continued vestmdi) the October, 2011 stock option award
and the October, 2012 stock option award that \yeaated under the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Shatlor
Plan and (ii) the November, 2010 restricted stoglrd and the October, 2012 award that were gramddr
the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stoak,Rh each case as permitted by the terms of glacis.

C. Payments pursuant to the terms of the follovalags, in accordance with their respective
terms: i) the FY2014 bonus under the Annual Insen@erformance Plan ("AIPP"), in December 2014hig)
FY2012 award under the Long-Term Incentive PerforceaPlan ("LTIPP"), in December 2014, iii) deferred
compensation pursuant to the Employee’s electidRRA lump sum in July 2015 and LTIPP - three
installments in July 2015, January 2016 and Jan2@ty), and iv) a retirement restoration lump sarduly

2015.

The Company shall not be obligated to make the paymnder paragraph (a) to Employee unless and

until the Agreement becomes enforceable and effecinder paragraph 8 below.

5. In consideration for the promises containedaragraph 3 and 4(a), Employee hereby releases and
forever discharges the Released Parties (definesvp&om any and all claims, demands, rights, iliabs and causes
of action of any kind or nature, known or unknownsing prior to or through the Effective Date,luding, but not
limited to, any claims, demands, rights, liabikti@nd causes of action arising or having arisebaot in connection
with Employee’s employment or termination of emptmnt with the Company and the termination of Eme&ly

officer and director assignments.




“Released Parties” includes the Company, its sudngidrelated and affiliated companies, and its dsir past and
present employees, directors, officers, agentsebbélers, insurers, attorneys, executors, assigt®ther
representatives of any kind. Employee also releasdsvaives any claim or right to further compeiosatoenefits,
bonuses, stock options, damages, penalties, aggiriees, costs or expenses of any kind from then@any or any of
the other Released Parties, except as set fogaragraph 4 and this paragraph 5. This releasdfisp#yg includes,
but is not limited to, a release of any and alimkapursuant to U.S. law, state and local fair eyplent law(s); Title
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; the Rehabilttan Act of 1973; the Reconstruction Era Civil Rigicts, 42
U.S.C. 88 1981-1988; the Civil Rights Act of 1981e Age Discrimination in Employment Act ("ADEA"he
Americans with Disabilities Act; state and feddeahily and/or medical leave acts; state and fedeegle payment
laws, and any other federal, state or local lawsqgulations of any kind, whether statutory or diegial, to the full
extent such claims can legally be waived. Thisasdealso includes, but is not limited to, a reledseny claims for
wrongful termination, retaliation, tort, breachaaintract, defamation, misrepresentation, violatbpublic policy or
invasion of privacy. This release specifically umbbs a release of any claims Employee may have angeseverance
or bonus policy or program and under any contiactuding but not limited to his Executive Employmeé\greement
dated January 17, 2008, and his Change of Conkexdiiive Employment Agreement dated September@R,,2
except for the continued vesting and payments thestin paragraph 4. This release does not incudaiver of any
claim (i) that cannot legally be waived, (ii) foraued but unpaid salary and paid-time off throGgptember 30,
2014, (iii) for vested retirement benefits undex ohnson Controls, Inc. Pension Plan, Johnsorrd@sninc. Savings
and Investment (401K) Plan, the Johnson Controts,Retirement Restoration Plan and the Johnsotr@sninc.
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, and bengiitier any health and welfare plan, all pursuatiiéaerms of
such plans, (iv) to enforce a right to indemnificat if any, under applicable corporate law, or llydaws or articles

of incorporation of the Company, (v) to enforce any




rights, if any, as an insured under any directand officer’s liability insurance policy of the Cany, and (vi) to
enforce this Agreement.

6. Employee has not filed or joined in any comgiitawsuits, or proceedings of any kind against th
Company or any of the other Released Parties, anudyee promises never to file, pursue or joinng Bwsuits or
proceedings asserting any claims that are relaagbts Agreement, to the fullest legal extent Eaygle can legally
give up his right to do so. Nothing in this Agreemhprevents Employee from (a) filing a claim forésnployment
Compensation to which Employee may be entitledcfiallenging the enforceability of this Agreemender the
ADEA,; or (c) filing a charge with the EEOC or otlhx@se cooperating with or providing information teetEEOC,;
however, this Agreement does prohibit Employee folotaining any personal or monetary relief basezhuguch
cooperation, provision of information, or chargdether filed by Employee or anyone else on beHatnoployee.

7. Employee acknowledges his obligation to complyall applicable laws relating to trade secrets,
confidential information, and unfair competitiohd parties also hereby incorporate by referenceagnek that
paragraphs 7 and 8 of Employee’s Executive EmployrAgreement dated January 17, 2008, survive antinee in
effect after the termination date and the Effecbate, with the following modifications:

a. 7.(a) first sentence: change "for a period @& year after the termination of active

employment hereunder” to “through September 306201

b. 7.(a) first sentence: change "in the year prege@grmination of employment with the

Company," to "any time since September 30, 2013pout which Executive learned confidential bussnes

information at any time since September 30, 20id&yided such information remains unavailable to the

public,”

C. 7.(a) Delete the entire second sentence commgmath "This restriction shall also..."




d. 8 (a) second sentence: change "During employarahfor two years after termination of the

Executive’s employment with the Company" to "Thrbupril 1, 2016,"

8. Employee hereby acknowledges that the sepanasigriescribed in paragraph 4(a) satisfies and
exceeds all obligations or liabilities the Compé&ag to Employee under his Executive Employment &guent dated
January 17, 2008, the Change of Control ExecutmplByment Agreement dated September 25, 2012, aderany
other law, regulation, contract, policy or programptherwise. Employee is and was encouraged @vided to
consult with an attorney before signing this Agreaeim Employee has up to twenty-one (21) days tsiden whether
to accept this Agreement and Employee enters inoluintarily. Employee may revoke this Agreememtyriting,
within seven (7) days after signing it. This Agresarhwill become enforceable and effective uponetk@ration of the
revocation period provided Employee has not revak@tie "Effective Date").

9. Employee will return all Company property to tbempany prior to September 30, 2014. This
includes, without limitation, all Company vehiclggones, hardware, software, electronic files, asiens and
computer records, customer lists, and all other @y confidential information.

10. Employee agrees that he will not defame the Comparmyy of the Released Parties. The Comj
(for this purpose, its corporate officers and afficpokespersons) agrees not to defame Employee.

11. Employee is not entitled to reinstatement enmgloyment with the Company and will not at any
time after the execution of this Agreement applyagosition with the Company or any of its sulesigj related, or
affiliated companies.

12. If any portion of this Agreement is found toleenforceable, the parties desire that all other
portions that can be separated from it, or appabglsi limited in scope, shall remain fully validdaenforceable.
Employee enters into this Agreement knowingly aallintarily and without any coercion.

13. This Agreement supersedes and replaces all afjneements between the parties, except as

specifically agreed herein, and except also thaptrties further agree that if any disputes arise




hereunder, or unless otherwise specified in thissAment, they are covered by Section 9 of EmplsyEgécutive

Employment Agreement, which is incorporated byn&iee and made a part of this Agreement.

Employee certifies as follows: | understand all pinevisions of this Agreement and | agree to thiem.
understand that this Agreement contains a gengledse of all known and unknown claims of any lagdinst

the Company and the other Released Parties, and/oluntarily entering into it.

/s/ C. David Myers Date: September 30, 2014
C. David Myers

Johnson Controls, Inc.

By: /s/ Simon Davis Date; September 30, 2014
Simon Davis

Title: Assistant Chief Human Resources Officer




AMENDMENT TO
SEPARATION AGREEMENT
AND
RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS

This Amendment, dated October 29, 2014, amendSeparation Agreement and Release of All Claims (the
"Agreement") between Johnson Controls, Inc. (themi@any"”) and C. David Myers ("Employee") executegtS8mbe
30, 2015 and effective October 8, 2014. Capitalieeohs used and not defined in this Amendment seel as defined
in the Agreement.

1. The Company and Employee desire to amend tfegRanh 4(a) of the Agreement to read as
follows:

"(a) Separation pay in the amount of Four Millionrde Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,300,000.00), less
withholdings. This sum will be paid to Employeesitump sum on December 17, 2014."

2. To induce Employee to enter into this Amendmerd,Glompany will pay Employee $250,(
on December 17, 2014.

3. Except as amended hereby, the Agreement renmainl force and effect.

/sl C. David Myers
C. David Myers

Johnson Controls, Inc.

By: /s/ Simon Davis

Title: Assistant Chief Human Resources Officer
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EXHIBIT 10.Q

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

COMPENSATION SUMMARY FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Annual Compensation for Non-Employee Directors

(@)

(b)

(€)

Compensation for noemployee members of the Board of Directors (theatB9 of Johnson Controls, Inc. (
"Company"), effective October 1, 2014, consistthefpayment for the Company’s fiscal year of tHfaing:

Retaine

A retainer at the annual rate of $265,000 to eamiremployee director in the form of $120,000 in cashk
$145,000 in common stock of the Company (the "Retd).

Committee Chair F¢

A Committee Chair fee at the annual rate of $25j00€ash to each noemployee chair and successor chai
the Audit, Compensation, Corporate Governance andnEe Committees of the Board (the "Committee
Fee"). References to a successor chair or succiesgbdirector in this summary are to directors wihve bee
designated to succeed a then-current committee ohdne therczurrent lead director, respectively, pursuai
the Company’s policies or practices regarding Baarctession.

Lead Director Fe

A Lead Director Fee to the non-employee lead direghd successor lead director in cash at the anageof:

() $30,000 if the non-employee director is natoah noremployee chair or successor chair for the A
Compensation, Corporate Governance or Finance Ctesnbf the Board (a "No@Ghair Lea
Director"); or

(i) $15,000 if the non-employee director is aBmonemployee chair or successor chair for the A
Compensation, Corporate Governance or Finance Ciesmif the Board (a "Committee Chair L
Director").

Payment of Common Stock Portion of the Retainer

(@)

The Company will pay the common stock portion @& Betainer on the date of the annual shareholdeesimg
to each director then in office, subject to thédiwing:

Directors Retiring or Newly or Recently Electedadishe Annual Shareholders Meeting

@ If a director is retiring from the Board as of tdate of such annual shareholders meeting, the
director will be entitled to receive common stocikhwan aggregate value equal to (x) the numbeiagt
that have elapsed from October 1 of the fiscal yeavhich such annual shareholders meeting oca
the date of the annual shareholders meeting diigleg) 365, multiplied by $145,000.
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(b)

(€)

(i) If a director is newly elected to the Board at sacimual shareholders meeting, or was appointec
director on or after the October 1 of the fiscahiyegn which such annual shareholders meeting of
then the director will be entitled to receive conmstock with an aggregate value equal to (x) thele
of days in the period from the effective date @& tlirectors appointment or election to the Board thrc
September 30 of the fiscal year in which such ahshareholders meeting occurs divided by (y)
multiplied by $145,000.

Director Newly Elected or Appointed After the Anh&hareholders Meeting

If a director is newly appointed or elected to Bward after the annual shareholders meeting irfiscal year ¢
such appointment or election, then the directot el entitled to receive upon the effective datehisfor he
appointment or election common stock with an agagegalue equal to (i) the number of days in théopdromn
the effective date of the directerappointment or election through September 30heffiscal year of su
appointment or election divided by (ii) 365, muliigga by $145,000.

Director Retiring Prior to the Date of the Annudia®eholders Meeting

If a director retires from the Board either on Q&ol1 or after October 1 of a fiscal year but pteothe annui
shareholders meeting in such fiscal year, themiteetor will be entitled to receive upon the effee date of hi
or her date of retirement common stock with an egate value of (i) the number of days that havpseld fron
October 1 of the fiscal year in which the retiremeccurs to the date of the direcoretirement divided by (
365, multiplied by $145,000.

Payment of the Cash Portion of the Retainer and Comittee Chair or Lead Director Fee

(@)

(b)

Quarterly Payments

The Company will pay the cash portion of the Retaend the Committee Chair or Lead Director Feénforn
of a quarterly payment ($30,000 per quarter for ¢ash portion of the Retainer, $6,250 per quarnterttie
Committee Chair Fee and $7,500 or $3,750 for thadLBirector Fee, as applicable) in advance on itist
business day of each quarter (except for the secomadter, which will be typically paid as of thenama
shareholders meeting) to each director then ic@#intitled to receive such fees.

Newly Appointed Directors and Newly Appointed Contex Chairs and Lead Director (and Succes

If a director is either (i) newly elected or appeith to the Board or (ii) newly appointed as a CotteaiChair (c
successor to a Committee Chair) or Lead Directosigocessor to the Lead Director) at any time dyiire fisce
year after the first business day of a quartem thiech director will receive upon the effective edaf sucl
election or appointment, for the quarter in whiciets election or appointment is effective, a prataaeiount ¢
the cash portion of the Retainer and/or any Coremitthair or Lead Director Fee with such amountd
determined in the manner set forth below:

() Cash Portion of RetainerThe director newly elected or appointed to theamBloshall receive a ce
amount equal to (x) the number of days from theative date of the appointment or election to ths
day of the next quarter divided by (y) 90, muligaliby $30,000.

(i) Committee Chair FeeThe director appointed as a Committee Chair gocsessor to a Committee Ch
shall receive a cash amount equal to (x) the nurnbdays from the effective date of the appointnie
the first day of the next quarter divided by (y) &tultiplied by $6,250.
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(i)

Lead Director Fee The director appointed as Lead Director (or sasoeto the Lead Director) sk
receive a cash amount equal to (x) the number yf &tam the effective date of the appointment &

first day of the next quarter divided by (y) 90, Itmlied by (A) $7,500, if the director is a NdDhail
Lead Director, or (B) $3,750, if the director i€ammittee Chair Lead Director.

Other Provisions

(@) No Attendance Fees

The Company will not pay any fees for attendanaeestings of the Board or any committee of the Boar

(b) Stock Issued Under 2003 Stock Plan for Qutsidediirs

All shares of stock to be issued to directors agaraplated above will be issued pursuant to the& Z&0ck Pla
for Outside Directors.

(c) Deferrals

Non-employee directors are permitted to defer all or part of their Retainer, Committee Chair Fees, lagak
Director Fees under the Johnson Controls, Inc. ibedeCompensation Plan for Certain Directors.

(d) Reimbursements

The Company will also reimburse non-employee dmesctor any expenses related to their service erBthard.



EXHIBIT 12
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
The following table shows our ratio of earningdixed charges for the fiscal years ended Septer@®e2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Year Ended September 30,
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,43: $ 1,077 $ 1,09¢ $ 1,32¢ $ 1,322

Income tax provision 482 69¢€ 161 18¢ 13C
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 12C 114 12¢ 117 75
Income from equity affiliates (395) (399 (33¢) (28%) (252)
Distributed income of equity affiliates 204 21C 19C 194 212
Amortization of previously capitalized interest 1€ 18 9 1C 11
Fixed charges less capitalized interest 47€ 44¢ 40¢ 331 30z

Earnings $ 233 $ 2164 $ 165¢ $ 1,83 $ 1,80(

Fixed charges:
Interest incurred and amortization of debt expense $ 3B $ 33 % 31z % 224 $ 19¢

Estimated portion of interest in rent expense 152 157 151 141 13C

Fixed charges $ 50€ $ 49C $ 464 % 365 $ 32z
Less: Interest capitalized during the period (28) (42 (59 (34) (21)
Fixed charges less capitalized interest $ 47¢  $ 44 $ 40¢ $ 331 % 30z
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 4.€ 4.4 3.€ 5.2 S5.€

For the purposes of computing this ratio, "earringmsist of net income attributable to Johnsont@ds, Inc. from continuing operatic
before income taxes, income attributable to nonodliitg interests and income from equity affiliatphis (a) amortization of previou:
capitalized interest, (b) distributed income froquigy affiliates and (c) fixed charges, minus iefgrcapitalized during the period. "Fi;
charges" consist of (i) interest incurred and arpatibn of debt expense plus (ii) the portion oftrexpense representative of the inte
factor.



EXHIBIT 21
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

The following is a list of significant subsidiarie§the Company, as defined by Section 1.02(w)@fitation S-X, as of October 31, 2014.

Jurisdiction Where Subsidiary is

Name Incorporated

York International Corporation

Delaware
Johnson Controls Battery Group, Inc.

Wisconsin



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéncthe Registration Statements on Form S-3 ananF88 listed below of Johnsi
Controls, Inc. of our report dated November 19,£¢Hlating to the financial statements, financtatement schedule and the effectivene
internal control over financial reporting, whichpagars in this Form 10-K.

1. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatlo. 3330309

2. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatio. 3331271

3. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registndtio. 3358094

4. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatlo. 33310707

5. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatio. 33341564

6. Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registndtlo. 333178148

7. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registmatlo. 333141578

8. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registmatlo. 333173326

9. Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registmatlo. 333179613

10. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Regisindtlo. 333188430

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 19, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Alex A. Molinaroli, Chairman, President and Chixecutive Officer, of Johnson Controls, Inc.,tdgrthat:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Johnson Controls, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nlaadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeagiitsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regsit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors ersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 19, 2014

/9 Alex A. Molinaroli

Alex A. Molinarioli
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Brian J. Stief, Executive Vice President andeElkinancial Officer of Johnson Controls, Inc. tfgrthat:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Johnson Controls, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nlaadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeagiitsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regsit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors ersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 19, 2014

/9 Brian J. Stief

Brian J. Stief
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS

We, Alex A. Molinaroli, Chairman, President and €htxecutive Officer, and Brian J. Stief, ExecutWiee President and Chief Financial
Officer, of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify, puratito Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@02t:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yearesh8eptember 30, 2014 (Periodic Report) to whighdtatement is an exhibit fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)%(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15.G. 78m or 780(d)) and

2. information contained in the Periodic Repomlygoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
Johnson Controls, Inc.

Date: November 19, 2014

/s/ Alex A. Molinaroli

Alex A. Molinaroli
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/9 Brian J. Stief

Brian J. Stief
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




